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Directors’ Profile
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SHI QI

Chairlady and Executive Director

Ms. Shi Qi, aged 42, appointed as an executive Director on 6 April
2016. She has obtained a master’s degree of Business Administration
from Centenary College, New Jersey, majoring in Finance in May
2009. She has more than 10 years of experiences in corporate
reorganization, corporate and project financing, investments in real
estate, securities and non-securities assets and risk management. In
2009, she founded Seven Ocean Investments Limited (“Seven
Ocean”), and under her leadership, Seven Ocean has developed
from a small scale financing company to a company that principally
engages in providing financing and corporate solutions and
consultancy services, and large scale medical and healthcare
development projects. In 2015, she invested in the development of
Central Maine Healthcare Institute, which delivers quality healthcare
services in Auburn, Maine (USA). She will also be responsible for the
on-going management and daily operation of the Central Maine
Healthcare Institute. She has also invested in the construction of the
Central Leisure Park* (R YK A &) in Tongzhou Xincheng* (&M
), Beijing, a public infrastructure covering an area of approximately
42.62 hectares and providing sports, entertainment, medical and
healthcare related services. She was responsible for financing,
devising the conceptual design and the implementation plan and
monitoring and managing the progress of the construction. She will
also be responsible for the project’s subsequent operation and
maintenance for 30 years.

Ms. Shi, the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is deemed to be interested
in 796,875,490 Shares, representing approximately 60.98% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report.

Ms. Shi is the Chairlady, and a member of the Executive Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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Directors’ Profile
SE[{N

LIU WENGANG

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Liu Wengang, aged 41, appointed as an executive Director on 26
August 2020. He has over a decade of extensive experience in
capital, finance and corporate management. He served as the chief
investment officer and an executive director of China Carbon Neutral
Development Group Limited (@ company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1372)) from November 2019 to
August 2020. From January 2017 to August 2019, He served as the
chairman’s assistant and chief financial officer of China Tian Yuan
Finance Group (Holdings) Limited. From April 2011 to December
2016, he served as the managing director of Huarong International
Trust Co., Ltd. From July 2006 to March 2011, he worked in Ernst and
Young. He obtained a master’s degree in 2006 in economics from
the Capital University of Economics and Business in the PRC and a
bachelor’s degree in 2003 in economics from Tianjin University of
Finance and Economics.

Mr. Liu is the Chief Executive Officer and the chairman of the
Executive Committee.

CHENG HONG

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hong, aged 45, appointed as an executive Director on 8
January 2019. He graduated at Beijing Wuzi University with a
bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1998. After graduation, he
joined Haier Group* (/& # £ [E) as project manager from 1999 to
2004. From 2004 to 2012, he worked at Beijing Tecsun Technology
Development Co., Ltd.* (It R # & AR EHEER AR 2 &) as the
deputy general manager. From 2012 to 2015, he served as the
general manager of Beijing Jingtian Shiji Technology Development
Co., ltd.,* (At mE Rt 42 B 3 B B R 2 7]) and was responsible
for the daily operation. From 2015 to 2018, he held the position of
general manager of Zhongshi Jiaxin (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.,* (&
& 5212t R E AR 2 7)) and was responsible for the project
development.

Mr. Cheng is a member of the Executive Committee.
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Directors’ Profile
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GAO FENG

Executive Director

Mr. Gao Feng, aged 41, appointed as a non-executive Director on 6
April 2016 and re-designated as an executive Director on 13
November 2019. He has more than 10 years of experience in
corporate management. He has been the general manager of Beijing
Zhongmei Zhengchen Construction Co., Ltd.* (1t s B IFRER

FR A |]), which mainly engages in real estate and construction since
2012. He was the general manager of Beijing Kaiyun Zhifeng Industry
and Trade Co., Ltd* (At Reli8 2 & TE AR A 7)) from 2009 to 2012.

CHAN TSUN HONG PHILIP

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Tsun Hong Philip, aged 43, appointed as a non-executive
Director on 3 August 2020. He has over 15 years’ experience in
auditing, financial accounting and reporting. He worked in BDO
Limited and KPMG from 2005 to 2014 and from 2014 to 2019
respectively. His last position with KPMG was a senior audit manager.
He is currently the senior vice president at the group finance
department of Mason Group Holdings Limited (@ company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 273)), acting as
the group financial controller and oversees all functions of the
group'’s finance department. He holds a bachelor of information
technology degree in data communications from Queensland
University of Technology in Australia, and a master of practising
accounting degree from Monash University in Australia. He is also a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
CPA Australia.
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HAN LEI

Non-executive Director

Mr. Han Lei, aged 52, appointed as a non-executive Director on 6
April 2016. He has more than 20 years of entertainment and
performing experience in the music industry and had received
numerous awards in the industry. He has participated in CCTV Spring
Festival Evening Galas, charity performances, cultural and tourism
promotion performances, etc. Other than his entertainment career,
he also actively participates in various political associations and
social campaigns. He was a member of the tenth session of All-China
Youth Federation (1 2 2 B & F Bt & ). He was appointed as the
“Celebrity of Health”* (f2FZ4& A) by the preceding Kang Yi Wang* (52
£#8) and the image ambassador in “Yao Yang"” public pension project*
(2R3 ] &E Q258 H ) conducted by Red Cross Society of China.

CHAN SIU TAT

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Chan Siu Tat, aged 52, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 April 2022. He graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a major in
Accounting. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
was (i) an executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company
Limited (a company previously listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 445)) from 2003 to 2006; (i) an independent
non-executive director and non-executive director of Tongguan Gold
Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 340)) from November 2006 to December 2007
and from December 2007 to May 2008 respectively; and (iii) an
independent non-executive director and executive director of
International Business Settlement Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 147)) from
September 2016 to September 2020 and from September 2020
respectively. He possesses over 20 years of experience in corporate
restructuring, financial capital planning and corporate management.

Mr. Chan is the chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, and a member of the Remuneration
committee.
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HU JIANGBING

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Jiangbing, aged 59, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 31 March 2020. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in computer software from University of Science and
Technology of China (R EIRH%Z R E) in 1984 and a master’s degree
in business administration from Peking University (1t A 22) in 1997.
From August 1984 to July 1989, he was the vice general manager of
the Sitong Group* (PU3E % EE &2 7). From July 1989 to July 1994,
he was the general manager (China region) of King Sun Computer
(HK) Limited (&€ LB IS ABR A F]). From July 1994 to July 1997,
he was the government relations director for Compaqg Computer
Limited (China) (Bl B3 % §& 2 7]). From 1997 to present, he has
been a general manager of Beijing Shengjinnuo Management
Consulting Co., Ltd (At REE & B IRFEAER A F]).

Mr. Hu has a personal interest in 850,000 Shares, representing
approximately 0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this Annual Report.

Mr. Hu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

WANG LINA

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Wang Lina, aged 38, appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 22 April 2020. She graduated in foreign-related
accounting from Shanghai Lixin University of Accounting (L8352
5T2B7) in 2005 and obtained her bachelor’s degree in accountancy
from Northeast Forestry University (B1b#R 2 KE%) in 2014. From
2005 to present, she has been the manager of finance department
and the senior manager of investment department for Shanghai
Guoteng Zhirui Co. Ltd.* (E/8 B EEIREHE AR A R))

Ms. Wang is a member of the Audit Committee.
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Chairlady’s Statement
RS

Dear shareholders and stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In spite of a challenging environment, the Group recorded an
improved operational and financial performance for the year ended
31 December 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in (i) designing and manufacturing of silicone rubber
products (the “Silicone Business”); and (i) providing healthcare and
hotel services (the “Healthcare and Hotel Business”). In January
2022, the Group also resolved to formally commence its business of
retail services (the “"Retail Business”) in the United Kingdom.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic, the
global market fluctuation, the geopolitical environment and the
competition pressure resulted to a difficult business environment for
the Group. In order to tackle such hardship, the management
decided to (i) enhance competitive advantages of the core business
which is the Silicone Business; (ii) explore realisation opportunity for
the underperforming business which is the Healthcare and Hotel
Business; and (iii) seek diversification opportunities with promising
prospects, such as the Retail Business.

Looking back into 2021, the strategies of the Group have been
proven as feasible, suitable and promising. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group recorded an improved performance with
(i) an increased revenue of approximately HK$362.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$354.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 2.3% as compared with the corresponding period in
2020; (ii) a decreased loss for the year of approximately HK$85.8
million (2020: approximately HK$95.8 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 10.4% as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020; and (jii) a decreased loss per share of
approximately HK$7.52 cent (2020: approximately HK$10.48 cent),
representing a decrease of approximately 28.2% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2020.
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Chairlady’s Statement
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the business environment remains challenging, but
the Group is positive about its prospects with the diligent works of
the management and employees.

The Silicone Business will remain as the principal business and the
core revenue generator of the Group. The Group is confident that it
will be capable of securing profitable orders, given its low sales price,
cordial client relationship and vast production experience. Also, the
Group expects to introduce more new products by conducting
research and development activities. The strategies on cost control
and new product introduction were effective in the past, and
expected to remain so in the future.

On the other hand, the Retail Business is expected to become a key
revenue stream of the Group in the future, given that the United
Kingdom market has a large demand. The Retail Business is directing
its resources and effects on physical retailing stores, but will actively
study expansion opportunities, such as launching brand flagship
stores and life-experiencing halls, or establishing online shopping
platform, in order to realise the potential of profitability to the
maximum.

Finally, the underperformance of the Healthcare and Hotel Business
may not be able to reverse in a short term, due to harsh environment
and uncertain prospect. Therefore, the Group will continuously
explore opportunities and consider measures to realise value of its
investment in this segment.
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Chairlady’s Statement
RS

FINAL DIVIDEND

No dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) is
recommended by the Board.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere thanks and gratitude to our management and
employees for their hard work and dedication, as well as our
shareholders, business partners and associates, bankers, auditors
and other stakeholders for their continuous support to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board of
Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Shi Qi
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was principally
engaged in (i) designing and manufacturing of silicone rubber
products (the “Silicone Business”); and (i) providing healthcare and
hotel services (the “Healthcare and Hotel Business”). In January
2022, the Group also resolved to formally commence its business of
retail services (the “Retail Business”) in the United Kingdom.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the business environment of
the Group was generally challenging, mainly due to the COVID-19
epidemic, the global market fluctuation, the geopolitical environment
and the competition pressure. In order to tackle such hardship, the
Group decided to (i) enhance competitive advantages of the core
business which is the Silicone Business; (ii) explore realisation
opportunity for the underperforming business which is the
Healthcare and Hotel Business; and (iii) seek diversification
opportunities with promising prospects, such as the Retail Business.

Looking back into 2021, the strategies of the Group have been
proven as feasible, suitable and promising. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group recorded an improved performance with
(i) an increased revenue of approximately HK$362.5 million (2020:
approximately HK$354.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 2.3% as compared with the corresponding period in
2020; (i) a decreased loss for the year of approximately HK$85.8
million (2020: approximately HK$95.8 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 10.4% as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020; and (jii) a decreased loss per share of
approximately HK$7.52 cent (2020: approximately HK$10.48 cent),
representing a decrease of approximately 28.2% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2020.
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The Silicone Business

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Silicone Business
remained as the core business of the Group in terms of the operation
size and the staff headcount, and has recorded an improved
performance when facing challenges of the COVID-19 epidemic and
competition pressure in the manufacturing sector.

The Silicone Business stayed committed to enhance its
competitiveness by lowering the production costs and expanding the
product category. Measures for cost control included adopting new
technologies, sourcing cost-effective materials and improving staff
productivity. The Group also invested in research and development
activities to expand product portfolio and to optimise product mix.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, major products of the
Silicone Business included consumer electronic devices’ peripheral
products and lifestyle products. As a response to the ever-changing
tastes of the customers, more products of the Silicone Business will
be introduced in the future.

On the other hand, the Group closely monitored the operation
efficiency of the Silicone Business, and continuously explored
improvement measures. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group conducted a disposal of properties in Huzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC, mainly because the production capacity of the
Huzhou base had not been fully utilised and the income generated
did not justify the maintenance and operation costs. Upon
completion of such disposal, the Group deployed more resources
into more profitable and sustainable production bases, such as the
core production factory located in Dongguan, Guangdong Province,
the PRC.
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The Healthcare and Hotel Business

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Healthcare and Hotel
Business continuously incurred an operational loss under travel
restrictions due to the COVID-19 epidemic and market fluctuation in
the property industry. In light of such underperformance, the Group
had been exploring opportunities to realise value of its investment in
the Healthcare and Hotel Business.

In July 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of 71% interests in Ta Yang Medical
Investment Limited (X J¥ & &% & B R 2 71 ) which operates the
Healthcare and Hotel Business. However, such disposal was
terminated in January 2022, due to the purchaser’s failure to fully
and punctually pay the consideration. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to seek other opportunities to realise value of its investment
in the Healthcare and Hotel Business.

The Retail Business

In January 2022 and after carefully studying the local market, the
Group resolved to formally commence the Retail Business in the
United Kingdom and to launch products of the Silicone Business
directly to end customers.

The Retail Business aimed to build a brand — “YOHOME Oriental Life
Style (AR E 574 /&% 58 )" which mainly focuses on the products
manufactured in the Silicone Business. The product catalogue of the
Retail Business covered high-quality silicone rubber products with
oriental characteristics, and ranged from living utensils, kitchen
utensils, stationaries to beauty products. The Retail Business
intended to create a cultural and life-style circle with oriental hints in
the United Kingdoms, and to serve the overseas Chinese and local
customers who are fond of Asian culture. For the year ended 31
December 2021, 2 physical stores of the Retail Business have been
opened.
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OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the business environment remains challenging.
Firstly, the COVID-19 epidemic is continuously causing difficulty and
inefficiency, and sometimes a total halt of operation, in the areas
where the Silicone Business and the Healthcare and Hotel Business
operate. On the other hand, the worldwide political and economic
environment is unpredictable, and intensive conflict arises from time
to time. As the Group in now further expanding its business portfolio
into the international level, any fluctuation in the politics or
economies will lead to new challenges.

Nevertheless, the Group remains positive about its prospects with
the diligent works of the management and employees. Historical
performance records have proven the strategies of the Group as
feasible, suitable and promising. Then the Group will continuously
explore measures to improve its profitability, to create return to its
investors and to maintain a positive relationship with its
stakeholders.

The Silicone Business

The Silicone Business will remain as the principal business and the
core revenue generator of the Group. The Group is confident that it
will be capable of securing profitable orders, given its low sales price,
cordial client relationship and vast production experience. Also, the
Group expects to introduce more new products by conducting
research and development activities. The strategies on cost control
and new product introduction were effective in the past, and
expected to remain so in the future.

The Healthcare and Hotel Business

Due to harsh environment and uncertain prospect, the
underperformance of the Healthcare and Hotel Business may not be
able to reverse in a short term. Therefore, the Group will
continuously explore opportunities and consider measures to realise
value of its investment in this segment.
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The Retail Business

Since the Retail Business was newly launched, its potential of
profitability may take some time to realise. As at this moment, the
Retail Business is directing its resources and effects on physical
retailing stores, but will actively study expansion opportunities, such
as launching brand flagship stores and life-experiencing halls, or
establishing online shopping platform. Given that the United Kingdom
market has a large demand, the Retail Business is expected to
become a key revenue stream of the Group in the future.

Other potential opportunities

The Group will continuously look for opportunities which can
reinforce its existing business portfolio or provide sound
diversification prospects, with an aim to improve the performance
and maximize the return. In addition to going downstream of its
industry chain, the Groups is also actively exploring opportunities in
the upstream, including the silicone/rubber raw material sector for
the Silicone Business. There has been a shortage of raw materials
over the past years which caused cost pressure and hence adversely
affected the gross margin of the Group. By going upstream, the
Group will be able to lower costs, and then enhance profitability.
Should there be any development for such potential opportunities,
the Company will make further announcement(s) as and when
appropriate.

RIGHTS ISSUE

On 13 May 2021, the Company announced a rights issue to raise a
maximum of approximately HK$61 million, whereby 435,589,000
rights shares would be allotted on the basis of one rights share for
every two shares held on the record date (i.e. 28 May 2021) at the
subscription price of HK$0.14 per rights share (representing a
discount of approximately 22.22% to the closing price of HK$0.18 per
share on 12 May 2021). The rights issue was declared unconditional
on 16 June 2021, and a total of 435,589,000 ordinary shares in the
par value of HK$0.1 each (representing an aggregate nominal value
of HK$43,558,900) were issued to qualifying shareholders who made
valid applications for provisional allotments and excess rights shares
under the rights issue.
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After deducting professional fees and other related expenses, net
proceeds of approximately HK$60 million (representing a net
subscription price of approximately HK$0.14 per right share) were
raised for the following: (i) approximately HK$42 million will be used
for repayment of the outstanding loan amount and/or settlement of
other payables; and (i) approximately HK$18 million will be used as
general working capital of the Group on purchase of raw materials
for its manufacturing of silicone rubber and related products. The
proceeds of the rights issue were used according to the intension
previously disclosed by the Company. The rights issue enabled the
Company to strengthen its capital base and to enhance the financial
position of the Group without increasing its debt or finance costs.
Following the rights issue, the shareholder base of the Company was
increased, while the liquidity and financial resources of the Group
were improved.

Save for the rights issue, the Company has not conducted any equity
fund raising activities for the year ended 31 December 2021.

TERMINATED DISPOSAL OF THE
HEALTHCARE AND HOTEL BUSINESS

On 5 July 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the "July SPA") to sell 71% interest in Ta Yang Medical
Investment Limited (K ¥ % & & & BB 2 7 ) to an independent
third party at the consideration of approximately RMB14.7 million.
The target company to be disposed of and its subsidiaries operated
the Healthcare and Hotel Business, and owned properties in Sanya,
Hainan Province, the PRC.

But the July SPA did not complete and was later terminated, mainly
because the consideration was not fully paid. On 28 January 2022,
relevant parties entered into a termination agreement to terminate
the July SPA immediately. In particular, all transaction arrangements
which had occurred by cause of the July SPA should be restored to
the position before entering into of the July SPA.

Termination of the July SPA has not caused any material adverse
impact on the financial position and operation of the Group.
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DISPOSAL OF THE HUZHOU PROPERTIES

On 10 September 2021, Huzhou Tayang Electronic Technology Co.,
Ltd.* CRMKAFBFRIEEABR AT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“September SPA") to dispose of properties (the "Huzhou
Properties”) to an independent third party at the consideration of
RMB115 million.

The Huzhou Properties are located at No. 389 Cheng Ye Road,
Huzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, and are for industrial use
purpose. The Huzhou Properties mainly comprise the land with site
area of approximately 66,679 m2 and the buildings of the industrial
complex with total gross floor area of approximately 71,042 mz2.
There are industrial buildings and structures attaching to the land
and the properties (such as roads, fences and drainage), electricity
equipment and green areas. Before the disposal, the Huzhou
Properties were mainly used by the Group for manufacturing of
silicone rubber input devices and certain part of the Huzhou
Properties had been rented out for rental income.

The Huzhou Properties were acquired by the Group before 2010.
Based on historical information, performances of the production
associated with the Huzhou Properties had fallen behind expectation.
In particular, the production capacity of the Huzhou Properties was
not fully utilised. As the income generated by the Huzhou Properties
did not justify the maintenance and operation costs, the Group
decided to proceed the disposal and to deploy its resources into
more profitable and sustainable production bases.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING IN
RELATION TO ACQUISITION OF THE
POSSIBLE PACKAGING BUSINESS

On 15 December 2021, Elegant Giant Holdings Limited (SERB4ZM A
A 7]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “December MOU"), according
to which the Group intended to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Fan Tat Packaging Limited GZZ®E B A F]). The target
group under the December MOU is principally engaged in the
manufacturing of packaging and containers for food and beverage.
The December MOU granted the Group an exclusivity period of six
months for due diligence and term negotiation. In return, the Group
paid a refundable deposit of RMB20 million which could be used as
partial payment for the consideration, if an acquisition materialises.
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As at the date of this report, the Group is in the course of due
diligence review on the target group under the December MOU,
mainly focusing on the asset valuation, financial position and
business prospects. Should there be any development, the Company
will make further announcement(s) in relation to the above matters
as and when appropriate.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$362.5 million (2020: approximately HK$354.2
million), representing an increase of approximately 2.3% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020.

The revenue was principally contributed by the Silicone Business
which recorded a revenue of approximately HK$361.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately HK$343.9
million), which accounted for approximately 99.6% of the total
revenue of the Group (2020: approximately 97.1%). The revenue
fluctuation of the Silicone Business was mainly due to the sales
volume change, including increase in certain non-recurring orders
placed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

On the other hand, the Healthcare and Hotel Business remained
unsatisfactory, and recorded a revenue of approximately HK$1.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$10.3 million), which accounted for approximately 0.4% of the
total revenue of the Group (2020: approximately 2.9%). The decrease
in revenue of Healthcare and Hotel Business was affected by the
transaction related to the potential disposal of 71% interest in Ta
Yang Medical Investment Limited which was subsequently
terminated in January 2022.

Gross profit

For year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit was
approximately HK$76.3 million (2020: approximately HK$77.7 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 1.8% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2020. For year ended 31 December
2021, the gross profit margin decreased to approximately 21.0%
(2020: approximately 21.9%). This was caused by the fact that the
COVID-19 epidemic leaded to a tougher business environment for
the Silicone Business. Also, the power restriction and the supply
shortage caused higher cost for raw materials and other materials.
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Other income and net gain

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the other income and net
gain was approximately HK$63.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$36.5 million), representing an increase of approximately 72.9% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020. The change in
other income and net gain was mainly due to the one-off disposal of
the Huzhou Properties and the decrease in the related rental income.

Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the selling and distribution
expenses were approximately HK$22.1 million (2020: approximately
HK$17.9 million), representing an increase of approximately 23.5% as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020. For year ended 31
December 2021, the administrative expenses were approximately
HK$157.0 million (2020: approximately HK$118.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 32.6% as compared with
the corresponding period in 2020. Such increase in the selling and
distribution expenses and the administrative expenses were mainly
caused by increase in staff cost, marketing expenses for promoting
silicone rubber and related products, and legal and professional fee
incurred for corporate transactions.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$84.9
million (2020: loss of approximately HK$95.8 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 11.4% as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020. For the year ended 31 December
2021, loss per share was approximately HK$7.52 cent (2020:
approximately HK$10.48 cent), representing a decrease of
approximately 28.2% as compared with the corresponding period in
2020. Such changes were mainly due to the improved performance
of the Group, as well as an increased shareholder base.
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Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's major source of
funds was cash generated from operating and financing activities,
and the Group's liquidity improved as compared with the
corresponding period in 2020.

Cash and cash equivalents (HK$'000)

Current ratio TREN L =R
Quick ratio EREN L 2R
Gearing ratio* BELE

* The gearing ratio of the Group was calculated by dividing total
borrowings by total equity.

Save for a stable operation performance, the improved liquidity and
financial resources of the Group was also caused by a rights issue of
the Company which was completed in June 2021. Net proceeds of
approximately HK$60 million from the rights issue were raised for
repayment of the outstanding loan amount, settlement of other
payables and general working capital of the Group.

Borrowing

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings
of approximately HK$190.4 million, which was borrowed by the
Group and was secured by (i) the Group's land and building; and (ii)
the Group's right-of-use assets. Such borrowings are mainly made in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, and approximately HK$4.6 million
are at fixed interest rates.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financials and prospects are affected by
risks and uncertainties. The risk factors listed below may directly or
indirectly lead to significant differences in the Group’s operating
performances, financial positions and development prospects from
its expected or past performances. These factors are not
comprehensive, and there may be other risks and uncertainties that
are not identified by the Group or may not be noticeable at present,
but may become significant in the future.
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Business risk

Performance of all business segments of the Group may be affected
by fluctuations in market prices and market demands of the Group's
final products. On the other hand, raw materials provided by the
Group's suppliers are subject to price fluctuations as well. For
example, the Silicone Business requires stocking of the silicone/
rubber raw materials, and the Group does not enter into any material
contracts to hedge against such price fluctuations. Therefore, any
price fluctuation in raw materials will exert pressures on the Group's
production costs, and then impact competitiveness of the Group'’s
final products. If the Group fails to adapt and respond successfully to
the changing demands and supplies, it may adversely affect business
performance and development prospects.

Industry risk

All business segments of the Group are operated in highly
competitive industries. In particular, the Silicone Business faces
competitions not only from other silicone rubber products, but also
from products of new material. Competition may also intensify as the
Group’s competitors expand their product categories, lower their
selling prices, increase their qualities or conduct promotions. If the
Group does not compete successfully against existing or new
competitors, its existing business scale and operation performance
may not be maintained.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$607.5 million and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$493.0 million. Despite that the Company has
conducted certain fund-raising activities (including a rights issue in
May and June 2021) and certain disposal (including the disposal of
the Huzhou Properties), the bank balances and cash on hand of the
Group remained tight when compared with its current liabilities. The
Group is required to recover its trade and other receivables for
repayment of certain current liabilities. If the receivables are not fully
recovered, the Group may not have sufficient resources to repay its
short-term obligations as they fall due.

Event risk

Event risk refers to the risk of a negative impact on the Company’s
operational performance and financial position as a result of an
unexpected event like a natural disaster or an industrial accident.
These kinds of events may interrupt the Group's operations, increase
prices of raw material and outsourced services, and deteriorate
other risks and uncertainty that the Group is facing. Due to the
unpredictable nature of such event risks, there is no guarantee that
the Group's responsive measures are sufficient.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the COVID-19 epidemic has
caused a lot of uncertainties in economy, and also increased the
safety and hygiene regulations imposed by the governments which
in turn put a higher cost pressure to the Group. Due to the safety and
hygiene concerns, the Group found that it is more difficult to
maintain a smooth and effective operation when compared with
before. As a response, the Group adopted a flexible working
schedule and re-arranged the production flow.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change to the
authorised share capital of the Company which is HK$2,000,000,000
dividable into 20,000,000,000 shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each.

As at 1 January 2021, the Company had issued a total of 871,178,000
shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each. In May and June 2021, the
Company conducted a rights issue on the basis of one rights share
for every two existing shares held on the record date (i.e. 28 May
2021) at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per rights share. The rights
issue was declared unconditional on 16 June 2021, and a total of
435,589,000 rights shares were allotted and issued. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had issued a total of 1,306,767,000
shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each, and all shares were fully paid
and rank pari passu with each other in all respects.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no outstanding options,
warrants, convertibles or other arrangements to issue shares.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE
GROUP

Save for the disclosed, the Group had no significant investment as at
31 December 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet provided
for in the financial statements as at 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$6.0 million (2020: approximately HK$2.1 million),
which was mainly related to the expansion of production capacity of
the Silicone Business. Such capital commitments will be financed by
the net proceeds from operating activities. As at 31 December 2021,
certain properties of the Group of approximately HK$152.5 million
(2020: approximately HK$297.8 million) were pledged to secure
banking facilities or bank and other borrowings granted to the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

No material contingent liabilities of the Group were noted as at 31
December 2021 (2020: nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

Save for the disclosed, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

TRANSACTIONS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Termination of a disposal of 71% interest in Ta
Yang Medical Investment Limited

In July 2021, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of 71% interests in Ta Yang Medical
Investment Limited ( KJ¥ & & #% & B R 2 71 ) which operates the
Healthcare and Hotel Business. However, such disposal was
terminated in January 2022, due to the purchaser’s failure to fully
and punctually pay the consideration. Termination of such disposal
did not have any material adverse impact on the financial position
and operation of the Group.

Formal commencement of the Retail Business

In January 2022, the Group resolved to formally commence its
business of retail services in the United Kingdom and launch the
Group's silicone products directly to the end customers.
Commencement of the Retail Business was an organic extension of
the Silicone Business and might increase profitability of the Group.

Save as disclosed, the Directors were not aware of any significant
event requiring disclosure that had taken place subsequent to 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report.
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CURRENCY MANAGEMENT AND
TREASURY POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's cash receipts
were denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Pound Sterling
("GBP") and Renminbi, while the labour costs, manufacturing
overheads, selling and administrative expenses of the Group were
mostly negotiated, measured and settled in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2021, the majority of the cash and cash equivalents are
held in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. As the Retail
Business in the United Kingdom has become a principal business of
the Group, it is expected that the GBP will constitute a key functional
currency of the Group in the future. Therefore, fluctuations of
Renminbi and GBP will affect the Group’s profitability. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any financial
instruments for hedging purpose. The Group will closely monitor the
currency movements and take appropriate measures to deal with
such exchange-rate exposure.

The Group adopted a conservative approach to the cash
management and investment of uncommitted funds. Unused funds
were placed as short-term deposits with authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As the Group is committed to improving production capacity,
developing high-quality products, and expanding industry chain,
experienced workers, engineers and professionals are crucial to the
Group. The Group offers on-the-job training and encourages staff to
attend continuous professional training in order to enhance their
skills and knowledge. The Group also offers competitive
remuneration packages, including quality staff quarters, medical
care, insurance coverage and retirement benefits, to employees. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 1,164 permanent and
temporary employees (2020: 1,080). The total salaries and related
costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$124.7 million (2020: approximately HK$92.3
million).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the
Group as it believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and amended from time to time
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, except:

() Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, generally should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors were unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 June
2021 due to inconvenience caused by the COVID-19 epidemic
and their respective business matters. Nevertheless, other
members of the Board attended this annual general meeting to
ensure effective communication with the shareholders.

(i) Code provision D.1.2 stipulates that the management of the
Company should provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the management of the Company did not
provide monthly updates to all members of the Board, as all
the executive Directors were involved in the daily operation of
the Group and were fully aware of the performances, positions
and prospects of the Group. On the other hand, the
management provided to all Directors from time to time a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performances, positions and prospects in sufficient detail. In
addition, the management provided all Directors, in a timely
manner, updates on any material changes and sufficient
background or explanatory information.

REEGEMN
ARABNEN R BB RADAAEERES
FEmmECEERT  AEREARNE
EERERRRFARREERRERRE R
BNERENEAEER - BEERHTHEERE

EfEA A EEEBHRRERNEEE R
i -

REBEE-TE-_—F+-_A=+—HILEEF
B ANAR—EESF iR RIS m AT E A
¥EBRTAI([RESA D S5 R TRHERTH
FASFRIESC M

() SFRAMGXECIOGREBILIFNTES
REMFDTESELRRAMEFTAA
REMcEEEKE  BERLFK
RRE URDZEEBRRNER - WA
FRTEEMNOBE I IFNTESARN
B RREERONMERRESENE
BARELEARAR T _—F XA
“tHhBEBRNKRRBERE - A
EFESHMNEBHHEZRBERBFKX
GUARREARBIBRETERER -

(i) ~TRMEXDA2KRTHA - RARIEEER
MEFELEREREEAETHNER
IHBRAARRRE  RARFEHA
ERSMEFOFAFNG BEFER
BLRZEFARTHEBRE BE_-F
5+ -A=1T—BLEE " KARF
EEEYENESE2RKNEBREHEA
FHER REARMBERTEEHES
EASENAREEE U2 THAR
BMOKRR - RARFR - m—TTH &
BEETHRAZBESRHEHEAEE
KB MARFSELHNALERFRE
AR - wtHN BEEREER DR
EENRRATMNEAEINRNEN
AR S FAHRAER



TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Corporate Governance Report

EREB]S

(i)  Code provision F.2.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company. Ms.
Shi Qi, the Chairlady, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 June 2021 due to
inconvenience caused by the COVID-19 epidemic. However,
she invited other members of the Board to attend this annual
general meeting to ensure effective communication with the
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries had been
made to all Directors and each Director had confirmed that she/he
had complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises four
executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive Directors has met the minimum requirement of the
Listing Rules, and represents not less than one-third of the total
Board members. Further, at least one of the independent non-
executive Directors possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and/or financial management expertise.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
Annual Report, the members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Shi Qi (Chairlady)

Mr. Liu Wengang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Hong

Mr. Gao Feng

Mr. Yin Zhigiang Note?

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Tsun Hong Philip
Mr. Han Lei
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Siu Tat ete?

Mr. Hu Jiangbing

Ms. Wang Lina

Mr. Lin Bing Netes

Mr. Liu Gang Note4

Ms. Zhang Lijuan "ote5

Notes:

1. Resigned on 11 January 2021
2. Appointed on 4 April 2022

3. Resigned on 4 April 2022

4. Resigned on 11 August 2021
5. Resigned on 19 July 2021

The Company has maintained on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange an updated list of directors identifying their roles
and functions and whether they are independent non-executive
Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are identified as
such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors.

The biographical details of the Directors are contained in the section
headed Directors’ Profile of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed, no
Director has any financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships with other Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. All executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience
and expertise to the Company.
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The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgment on the issues of strategy, performance and risk through
their contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board’s
committee meetings. The Board has received from each
independent non-executive Director the written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and
considers all of them to be independent having regard to (i) their
annual confirmation on independence as required under the Listing
Rules; (ii) absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Group; (iii) absence of any relationships or circumstances which
would interfere with the exercise of their independent judgment; and
(iv) absence of remuneration from the Company other than the
directors’ fee which is fixed, not equity-based and not performance-
related.

All Directors (including non-executive Directors) were appointed for a
specific term. Formal letters of appointment or service contracts sets
out the key terms and conditions of their appointment were in place.
Mr. Han Lei and Mr. Chan Tsun Hong Philip, the non-executive
Directors, have entered into formal appointment letters for a term of
one to three years subject to a termination by giving not less than
one month'’s prior written notice. Mr. Chan Siu Tat, Mr. Hu Jiangbing
and Ms. Wang Lina, the independent non-executive Directors, have
entered into formal appointment letters for a term of one to three
years subject to a termination by giving not less than one month’s
prior written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association
(“Articles”), () all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years; (i) any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
after his/her appointment; and (iii) any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting. At the annual general
meeting to be held in year 2022, Ms. Shi Qi, Mr. Han Lei and Mr. Hu
Jiangbing shall retire from offices by rotation and offer themselves
for re-election. On the other hand, Mr. Chan Siu Tat, being a newly
appointed Director, will hold office until the forthcoming general
meeting and offer himself for re-election at such meeting.
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Functions of the Board

The function of the Board is to guide the management to ensure the
interests of the shareholders of the Company are safeguarded. The
Board is responsible for the oversight of the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long
term shareholder’s value, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests.

The Board has the following main duties:

o to establish the Company’s purpose, values and strategy, and
culture;

o to determine material and significant corporate matters;
o to direct and supervise the businesses of the Group; and

o to ensure effectiveness on the Group's financial reporting and
compliance.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations and management of the
Group's businesses to the executive Directors and senior
management, and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees. The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and
these include:

o long-term strategy and business plan;

o major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

o long-term and material funding decision;

o internal controls, risk management and compliance; and

. annual and interim financial results and shareholder
communications.

When delegating aspects of the management and administration
functions, the Board has given clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, where the management should report
back and obtain prior Board approval before making decisions or
entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. While
allowing management substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board plays a key role in structuring and monitoring
the reporting systems and internal controls.
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Board meetings and Board practices

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held 4 regular
meetings and a total of 13 meetings, and the Company held 1
general meeting. The attendance records of the Directors to these

meetings are set out below:

EFSSENESEIEN

mF

Number of
Board meetings
attended Nete 7/

BE-T-—F+t-A=+t—HALFE E=F
AT ARBIE -
BAR1TRBERAE

HEBFBREERARAE

cBEREHFZFERMRLE

Number of
general meetings
attended Nete 7/

Number of Number of
Board meetings held general meetings held
for the year ended for the year ended

31 December 2021 or
during the Director’s
tenure (if applicable)

31 December 2021 or
during the Director’s
tenure (if applicable)

i H
Ezgemigrs BRAESH KRB
BE-ZE-_—F BE-Z=-—F
tZA=+—-BLFEH +ZA=+—-HLFER
RESEHR (WER) RESEHR (MER)
ETNESTSERNH BITRRASHRE
Shi Qi ik 1713 01
Liu Wengang 213 13/13 11
Cheng Hong [EV/N 0/13 0/1
Gao Feng =1 1/13 0/1
Yin Zhigiang Nete2 FrEagiE2 0/1 0/0
Chan Tsun Hong Philip fRiEE 10/13 0/1
Han Lei BE 0/13 0/1
Chan Siu Tat Note3 B g hass 0/0 0/0
Hu Jiangbing T & 13/13 0/1
Wwang Lina FREM 2/13 0/1
Lin Bing Note4 MR 11/13 01
Liu Gang Notes g mats 0/9 0/1
Zhang Lijuan Notes 3R J7,8MEe 0/9 0/1
Notes: Hie :
1. Thereis no attendance of the meeting by the alternate of the Directors 1. @ErEEirtHEeE
2. Resigned on 11 January 2021 2. RN-TE-——F—A+—AEEF
3. Appointed on 4 April 2022 3. R-oE-—FmANAEST
4. Resigned on 4 April 2022 4. - E— 4 APEEIT
5. Resigned on 11 August 2021 5. R-oZE-——®F A+ —BEF
6. Resigned on 19 July 2021 6. MoZ——4F+ A+ BEHE
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairlady also held meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without presence of
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Chairlady is primarily responsible, with assistance of the
Company Secretary, for drawing up and approving the agenda for
the Board meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notices are given to the
Directors for the regular Board meetings by the Company to facilitate
their attendance. All substantive agenda items with comprehensive
briefing papers are distributed to Directors at least 3 days before the
Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors may receive
accurate, timely and clear information to make informed decisions.
For non-regular Board meetings, reasonable advance notices are
given.

The Board meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All
Directors participate in discussing the strategy, operational and
financial performance and internal controls of the Group. The Board
may, upon reasonable request, seek independent professional
advise in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense and
ensure independent views and input are available to the Board. The
Board may resolve to provide separate independent professional
advise to Directors to assist them perform their duties to the
Company.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible for
ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed and
providing the Board opinions on matters in relation to the compliance
with the procedures of the Board meetings.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the Company will not deal with the matter
by way of written resolution or by a Board committee (except if that
Board committee was specifically established for such purpose) but
by a physical Board meeting. The independent non-executive
Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend the Board
meeting to deal with the matter as appropriate subject to the Listing
Rules and the Articles, as appropriate. Any Director who or whose
associates have any material interest in any proposed Board
resolutions shall not vote (nor be counted in the quorum) on the
relevant Board resolutions.
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All minutes of the Board meetings record in sufficient detail of the
matters considered and decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting views expresses. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively. Final versions of the minutes are kept by the
Company and are open to inspection by Directors at any time.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. The Company Secretary from time to time updates and
provides training materials to the Directors on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities. The
Directors may request the Company, pursuant to the policy for
Directors to seek independent professional advice, to provide
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company to
discharge their duties to the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has provided
training material on the following topics to the Directors:

1. Duties and responsibilities of directors and role and function of
board,;

2. Risk management, internal control and environmental, social
and governance reporting;

3. Corporate governance;
4. Regulatory updates; and

5. Other relevant matters.

IAEES SR CHIFMREME BNER
RAELHPRTE - BREFRONEMEEIER
&%‘%LMEHTHH © BRI ER L&
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RN FoE%k - QE%EE%?E??ZQH&Z"H&K’AEW%
Tr WAIHESRRERER -
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The Company maintains records of training received by the Directors. AR alRFEFEIEIINLEE - EFRNEHZE
The trainings received by the Directors for the year ended 31 —ZE=——F+=-F=+—RItEEEZHE

December 2021 were as follows: NN

Training Matters

EIEE

Shi Qi ik B
Liu Wengang 2132 ) B
Cheng Hong BR A, B
Gao Feng =& A B
Yin Zhigiang Note 1 Fr R ogiE N/A T A
Chan Tsun Hong Philip RIEE A B
Han Lei B A B
Chan Siu Tat vote2 BR g iar2 N/A 73
Hu Jiangbing TR A B
wang Lina TR A B
Lin Bing Note 3 M@i\ﬂﬁﬂ A B
Llu Gang Note 4 §|J ﬁlﬁlﬂfﬁf‘l B
Zhang Lijuan Motes ok J178%#s B
A:  attending seminars, training programmes and/or relevant conference A HERTE  ZIEta R SEEe s
B:  reading relevant material B  BIEARRAM R
Notes: /Z{TEI .
1. Resigned on 11 January 2021 1. R-E-_—F—A+—HEE
2. Appointed on 4 April 2022 2. R —FNNANAEZRT
3. Resigned on 4 April 2022 3 K= — — 4y f p | B
4. Resigned on 11 August 2021 4. RIE-—FN\AT+—HEMR
5. Resigned on 19 July 2021 5. RIZE-_—FtAt+hBET
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance ESLERHESTRE

The Company has renewed directors’ and officers’ liabilities AAFEAAATL2EEER SR/EIEASE
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of the HiEiZz T - —F+_-_A=+—HIIFENE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The insurance ERSHEIE A8 S5ER%  ZIRBAREE
covers them against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred DNREHMEENKA - WE - BEALE
arising out of the corporate activities. {F o
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CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer
are segregated in order to reinforce their independence and
accountability. For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Shi Qi
acted as the Chairlady while Mr. Liu Wengang acted as the Chief
Executive Officer. There are clear demarcations of responsibility and
authority between the Chairlady and the CEO which ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The responsibilities of the Chairlady include:

1. to ensure all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings,

2. to ensure all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner,

3. to provide leadership for the Board;

4. to ensure that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key issues in a timely manner;

5. todraw up and approve the agenda for Board meetings taking
into account any matters proposed by the other Directors for
inclusion in the agenda;

6. to take primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are in place, and to
oversee implementation of the practices and procedures on
corporate governance,

7. to give each Director an opportunity to express his/her
different views at Board meetings and to voice their concerns,
to encourage all Directors to fully contribute to the Board's
affairs and to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Company, and to allow sufficient time for discussion of
issues and to ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
CONsSensus;
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8. to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

9. to promote a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between executive and
non-executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the CEO include:
1. to provide leadership for the management;

2. to implement and to report to the Board on the Company’s
strategy;,

3. to oversee realisation by the Company of the objectives set by
the Board;

4. to provide all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of management,

5. to lead management of the Company’s relationships with its
stakeholders;

6. to put in place programs for management development and
succession; and

7. to establish and maintain proper internal controls and risk
management systems as well as disclosure controls and
procedures.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

In general, the daily management and administration functions of the
Group have been delegated to the management except for certain
matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision. The
management supplied the Board with appropriate and sufficient
explanation and information through financial reports, business and
operational reports and budget statements, in a timely manner, to
enable them to make informed decisions.

In order for the Directors to make enquires where necessary, the
Directors are also provided with names and contact details of the
Company’s senior management and the Company Secretary to
facilitate Director’s access to senior management and the Company
Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
currently delegated specific functions to four Board committees.
They are the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. The
Board is responsible for the functions of risk management and
corporate governance functions. For the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the composition of
each committee are as follows:

Executive Committee
Mr. Liu Wengang* Mote !
Ms. Shi Qi

Mr. Cheng Hong

Mr. Yin Zhigiang Mete?

Audit Committee
Mr. Chan Siu Tat* note3
Mr. Hu Jiangbing

Ms. Wang Lina Mete4
Mr. Lin Bing Notes

Mr. Liu Gang Note 6

Ms. Zhang Lijuan Mote”

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Hu Jiangbing*

Mr. Chan Siu Tat Mete?

Ms. Shi Qi Note

Mr. Lin Bing Netes

Mr. Liu Gang Note¢

Ms. Zhang Lijuan Nee”

Nomination Committee
Mr. Chan Siu Tat* Notes3

Mr. Hu Jiangbing

Ms. Shi Qi Note#

Mr. Lin Bing Notes

Mr. Liu Gang Mote ¢

Ms. Zhang Lijuan Mote”

*  Committee Chairman/Chairlady as at the date of this Annual Report
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Notes:

Appointed on 11 January 2021
Resigned on 11 January 2021
Appointed on 4 April 2022
Appointed on 11 August 2021
Resigned on 4 April 2022
Resigned on 11 August 2021
Resigned on 19 July 2021
Appointed on 11 August 2021

O NN =

All the Board committees have clear written terms of reference and
have to report on their decisions and recommendation to the Board.
These written terms of reference are available for access at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and each
of the committee members was furnished with a copy of the
respective terms of reference. The written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are also available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

All business dealt with by the Board committees were well-
documented. All minutes of the Board committee meetings record in
sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by members of the Board committees
or dissenting views expresses. Draft and final versions of minutes are
sent to all members of each respective committee for their comment
and records respectively. Final versions of the minutes are kept by
the Company and are open to inspection by members of the Board
committees at any time.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises three members, all of
which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Wengang (Committee
Chairman), Ms. Shi Qi and Mr. Cheng Hong.

Responsibility of the Executive Committee

The Executive Committee’s responsibilities include the following:

o to set strategies, policies, plans and operational directions for
the Group;

o to manage day-to-day financial and business affairs of the
Group;

HieE -
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4. RZBE-Z—FNA+—HEZE
5. RZE-——FABMHAFITE

6. RIZE_—F)N\A+—HEME
7. RIZEZ—F+tA+NBHEE
8. MIZE_—FNA+—HEZE
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o to approve projects not exceeding a monetary amount pre-
determined by the Board;

o to manage funds, bank facilities, loans, inter-company loans of
the Group;

o to manage the share option scheme of the Company.

Major works done by the Executive Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the major works done by the
Executive Committee were summarised as follows:

managed day-to-day operation of the Group's businesses;

o managed overall financial performance of the Group in
fulfillment of strategy, plans and budgets;

o managed the Group’s capital budgets and expenditures;

o managed relationship with important stakeholders of the
Group; and

o managed the share option scheme of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all of
which are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Siu Tat (Committee Chairman), Mr. Hu Jiangbing and Ms. Wang Lina.

Responsibility of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the following:

o to report to the Board on effective financial reporting controls,
internal controls and risk management;

o to monitor integrity of the Company's financial statements,
annual report and interim report, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained therein;

o to oversee the Company’s relationship with the external
auditor, review auditor’s letter of engagement and make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-
appointment of external auditor;
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o to review and monitor external auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o to review external auditor's management letter and any
material queries raised by the auditor to the management and
the management'’s response.

The Audit Committee has the following veto rights. The Company
cannot implement any of the following matters which have been
vetoed by the Audit Committee:

o to approve any connected transaction within the meaning of
the Listing Rules which requires an independent shareholders’
vote (unless the approval of such connected transaction is
made conditional on the obtaining of the approval of the
independent non-executive Directors and the independent
shareholders); and

o to employ or dismiss the Group's financial controller or the
internal audit manager or persons holding similar positions.

Major works done by the Audit Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the major works done by the
Audit Committee were summarised as follows:

o reviewed with the management and the external auditors (if
applicable) on the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2021 and the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021, and related announcements including the
related disclosures, the integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to the
submission to the Board's approval;

J discussed with management on significant judgments affecting
Group's consolidated financial statements;,

o reviewed and discussed the risk management and internal
control report including the status of implementing
recommendations on previous report;

o reviewed, assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's risk management and internal controls;
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considered the re-appointment of the external auditor;

reviewed and monitored the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit process;
and

reviewed and monitored the external auditor’'s non-audit
services.

The Audit Committee met two times for the year ended 31 December
2021, the attendance of the committee members is shown in the
following table:

Chan Siu Tat Mote2 Bei /) sz a2
Hu Jiangbing T E
Wang Lina Motes F R
Lin Bing More AR B
Liu Gang Moe® )| 4m 3
Zhang Lijuan Motes 3R Sy 8 Mite

Notes:

1.

oA wN

There is no attendance of the meeting by the alternate of the
committee members

Appointed on 4 April 2022

Appointed on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 4 April 2022

Resigned on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 19 July 2021

The external auditor and the internal audit adviser of the Company
also attended meetings of the Audit Committee by invitation.

o ERERINEAZEED

o HERMBEPESMEEIIBRIAN
BiuM - FEERERE K

o EBEREBIMNSZBENR TSRS -

ﬁvzﬁavaizgz—¢+*ﬂ:+—a
IHEERBITRREE - EEEKE HEE
mF -

Number of meetings
attended Note 7/

Number of meetings
held for the year ended
31 December 2021 or
during the Director’s
tenure (if applicable)

HEEB g/
BE-Z-—#§
+TZA=tTHLEFEER
EETHR(WNER)
BINEBRE
0/0
2/2
171
2/2
0/1
0/1
Kiet -
1. ZESREEEVELFSH
2. RZBE-—FHANBEZE
3. RIEZ—FNA+—HEZE
4. ot = e
5 RIZEZ—FNA+—HET
6. RZZEZ_—FtA+IBETE
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE LS

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members, #HMMEZES@H =K EAK - KZHK B AE
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors, namely Y 3EH{TE S B I E X4 (ZEE8€@EER
Mr. Hu Jiangbing (Committee Chairman and independent non- B JEMITEE)  BRAOEL A B IERITE
executive Director), Mr. Chan Siu Tat (independent non-executive =) kit (HiT7EE) -

Director) and Ms. Shi Qi (executive Director).

Responsibility of the Remuneration Committee HMEE8NET
The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities include the following: #ZE @M EEBIEUTEE :

e to recommend to the Board the policy and structure for all e MEZCEZARNREERSREERE
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of FrE ey B R R 4518
the Company;

. to determine, with delegated responsibility, the specific e BIBRERSE BFMERTESES
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior BEBABHARBHMNGTSE
management;

e to recommend to the Board's approval the remuneration of o  EHEZBZESHEIENTEESOEH : &
non-executive Directors; and

e to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved o  MRESSHEMBEAG 2 HET
in deciding his own remuneration. EAREHHB -

#

Major works done by the Remuneration HFMEE8TANEZIHF

Committee
T —F+_A=+—HILFE  FH

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the major works done by the #H=Z=—
ZESTHMEZETERMINT

Remuneration Committee were summarised as follows:

e conducted the annual review of the remuneration for all BEGFNBEERFEREE  SMEES
Directors (including the executive Directors), based on the (BENTES)WFHETFER
remuneration policy and annual performances; and IS8

e approved terms of service contracts of the executive Directors o  HERITTEE N SR EEENRBE L
and senior management. EIERK
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The Remuneration Committee met one time for the year ended 31
December 2021, the attendance of the committee members is
shown in the following table:

Hu Jiangbing TR
Chan Siu Tat Mote2 ek /L3 32
Shi Qi Nete3 FEIE S
Lin Bing Note4 Rz
Liu Gang Motes 2|45
Zhang Lijuan Mores 3 F) 8 Hits

Notes:

1. There is no attendance of the meeting by the alternate of the
committee members

Appointed on 4 April 2022

Appointed on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 4 April 2022

Resigned on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 19 July 2021

oA~ wN

Remuneration policy

The Company has adopted and updated a remuneration policy for
the Directors and senior management. The remuneration for the
executive Directors and senior management may comprise basic
salary, bonus, share options and pensions. Apart from basic salary,
executive Directors and senior management are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into account factors such as market
conditions as well as corporate and individual’s performance. The
remuneration of non-executive Directors may comprise basic salary
without equity-based and performance-related components, and
should be reviewed annually with reference to the comparable
companies and market condition. Remuneration adjustments may
be made, after taking into account performance of the individual,
contribution, responsibilities, and reference to comparable listed
companies in Hong Kong.

FMEEEREE_T_—F+_-_A=+—H
IEEARTREH  REGNEHFERR
Rk

Number of meetings
attended Nete 7/
Number of meetings
held for the year ended
31 December 2021 or
during the Director’s
tenure (if applicable)
HESE R g
BE-ZE=-—F
tTZA=tHLEFES
EEEHR(WEAR)
BITHEBRRE

1Al
0/0
0/0
11
0/1
0/1
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1. ZEEGRAZEYEHEER

2. RIE-—FANMAEZT
3. RZZEZ—FNA+—RHEZF
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5. KRB —FNA+—HBFIT
6. RZEZ—F AT BEE
116
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T BT ERE AR SER KBRS
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The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of

TRIARTEZENSREEABNTMHE

executive Directors and senior management. =
Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
=) B b=g) BRI
Basic Salary To reflect the market value of e Cash payment e Reviewed annually

each individual e Monthly e Compare against selected

comparable companies
e Market trend
Ee%® R FEA R T IHEE o BEXf o HFEMHE
e HH o HLEFA AL AR

Discretionary Bonus

To motivate employees to

e (Cash payment

o MiGEH

e Individual performance

deliver the high levels of e Annually e Market condition
performance of the Company e The Group performance
and individual performance relative to corporate targets
goals

BB TEAL HEBTIERSKTNARR o BEaXN o fAARIR
RBEREAKRRBR o BfF o TGN

o HNRIBFABENAERS
i

Pension To provide appropriate and e Cash payment e MPF scheme
competitive post-retirement e Monthly
benefits

RIRE REBEERARFNINRKE o Bef o RIEEREE
=l o Hf

Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration for the yearended #HZE-—ZT-——4F+_-_A=+—HIEEWNES
31 December 2021 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated Bl IEH N GETBBEMNE18 - HE
financial statements. For the year ended 31 December 2021, thereis —ZE—-—&+-A=+—HI|IEE  -BE=oH
no disagreement between the Board and the Remuneration #HES @A HMkEELZ M ESE RS
Committee on the remuneration or compensation arrangements. I o

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REELEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, I2E2Z 8B =KW EHEK  KZHKE &5
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors, namely T 3Eg17E % @ BV iEAE (ZESTER
Mr. Chan Siu Tat (Committee Chairman and independent non- B IEHTESE) « T T sk OB IEHITE
executive Director), Mr. Hu Jiangbing (independent non-executive =) R+ (H1T£E) o

Director) and Ms. Shi Qi (executive Director).
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Responsibility of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee’s responsibilities include the following:
o to review the structure, size and composition of the Board;

o to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
succession plan for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman/
Chairlady and the CEQ;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and to select or to make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors,

o to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors; and

o to review the board diversity policy as appropriate, and review
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy and the progress on
achieving the objectives.

Major work done by the Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the major works done by the
Nomination Committee were summarised as follows:

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

. reviewed the director retirement and rotation arrangement in
the annual general meeting;

o assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

o reviewed the board diversity policy, the measurable objectives
that the Board has set and the progress on achieving the
objectives.

REZBEMET
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AT RIE

o RHENEFEMRE  RRNAEX
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Eatd) - YABEF SRR

s YVEBABREERIALIXNAESTEMN
B - URHERALEEST 2 ATETT
BE - It MESSREES

o  MEBUFRITESFZBUIE:
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The Nomination Committee met one time for the year ended 31
December 2021, the attendance of the committee members is
shown in the following table:

Chan Siu Tat Mete2 ek /> g it 2
Hu Jiangbing ipaad

Shi Qi Notes BE B s
Lin Bing Note4 Rz
Liu Gang "ote> |4 irats
Zhang Lijuan Motes 3 ) BHits

Notes:

1. There is no attendance of the meeting by the alternate of the
committee members

Appointed on 4 April 2022

Appointed on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 4 April 2022

Resigned on 11 August 2021

Resigned on 19 July 2021

S e

Nomination policy

The Company has adopted and updated a nomination policy for the
Directors. The Nomination Committee and the Board shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

o character and integrity;
. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
board member and other directorships and significant

commitments;

o possessing core competencies that meet the needs of the
Group;

v e .
ﬁé Ly
Ao miad

REZEBENHE_T_—F+-_A=t+—H
LFFERETT mg CREGREHFERR
Rk

Number of meetings
attended Nete 7/

Number of meetings
held for the year ended
31 December 2021 or
during the Director’s
tenure (if applicable)

HEEE kg
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EEEHA(NER)
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1/1
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171
01
0/1
Hiet -
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4. M= —FY AN HEET
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o the board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Company for achieving diversity on the Board;
and

o the independence in case of an independent non-executive
Director.

For appointment of a new Director, the Nomination Committee shall,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new Director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria set out in the
nomination policy. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and reference check
of each candidate (where applicable). The Nomination Committee
shall make recommendation to the Board in respect of the
appointment of appropriate candidate for directorship.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and the Board shall evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out in the nomination policy whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship and where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and the Board shall make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.

For re-election of a Director at a general meeting, the Nomination
Ccommittee shall review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring Director including his/her attendance of
Board meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the
level of participation and performance on the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out in the nomination
policy. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the general meeting.
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance its performance. Accordingly, the Company adopted and
updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
which aims to set out the approach to achieving diversity for the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new Directors
from time to time to ensure that it has a balanced composition of
skills, experience and expertise appropriate to the requirements of
the businesses of the Company.

The Board Diversity Policy are reviewed annually. The Nomination
Committee will consider certain measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and make recommendation to the Board. For
the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were fulfilled as at the date of this
Annual Report:

o three Directors are independent non-executive Directors, as
compared with the objective of at least one-third of the
Directors should be independent non-executive Directors;

o one independent non-executive Director has obtained
accounting or relevant financial management professional
qualifications, as compared with the objective of at least one
independent non-executive Director should have such
qualifications;

o seven Directors are male and two Directors are female
(representing 22.2% of the total nine Directors), as compared
with the objective of no single-gender Board; and

o all Directors have 7 years or more of experience in the industry
he/she is specialized in, as compared with the objective of at
least half of the Directors should have such experience.

EFSSVECR
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As at the date of this Annual Report, other factors which are non-
measurable but also important to the diversity of the Board are:

o one Director is within the age range of 30-39, five Directors are
within the age range of 40-49, and three Director are within the
age range of 50-59; and

o one Director serves the Board for less than one year, two
Directors serve the Board for over one year but less than two
years, two Directors serve the Board for over two years but
less than three years, and four Directors serve the Board for
over three years.

Gender diversity

The gender ratio in the Board as at the date of this Annual Report
was 3.5 (7 males: 2 females), while the gender ratio in the workforce
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 1.2 (629
males: 535 females). As at this moment, the Company aims to
achieve a Board and a workforce (including senior management)
without single-gender, but recognises that the gender diversity at the
Board level can be improved given that the majority composition is
male. The Company will ensure there is a gender diversity when
identifying director candidate and recruiting employees so that there
is a pipeline of female employees, management and Directors in
near future. On the other hand, more resources will be engaged in
training female employees who have long and relevant experience in
the business of the Group, with the aim of promoting them to the
management or Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for, amongst other things,

o developing and reviewing the policies and practices of the
Company on corporate governance;

o reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirement,

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and
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o reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report contained in the
annual reports.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has reviewed the
corporate governance function of the Company, as well as the CG
Code’s compliance practices of each Director and the Board as a
whole.

ACCOUNTARBILITY AND AUDIT FUNCTION
Directors’ acknowledgement

The Directors acknowledge that they are primarily responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 which give a true and fair view and that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently. The Audit
Committee and the Board have reviewed the Company's
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2021, and the Board has
presented a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
2021 Interim Report and this Annual Report. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, there is no uncertainty relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant count upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor

Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”), being the auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021, acknowledged
their reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 as set out in this Annual Report. For a detailed statement of the
reporting responsibilities of Elite Partner, please refer to the section
headed Independent Auditor’s Report of this Annual Report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, Elite Partners is appointed as
the Group’s auditor until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are audited by Elite Partners. The
remuneration paid/payable to Elite Partners and its affiliates in
respect of their audit and non-audit services are as follows:

Audit services
Non-audit services

FaT RS
IR RIS

HE-TZ-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE B
EEEZAAAEENZEE  THEREER
RAFARGHERBLE HE-Z-_—F+=A
—t+—RILLFENGAV KRR AMATERE
Bz - BT B RBENEAFETE
EREBE AR T

2021
—E-—F
HK$'000
FET

1,660
1,010

Total 4t

2,670

The non-audit services of Elite Partners for the year ended 31
December 2021 includes, among others, (i) reviewing the interim
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (ii)
reporting on unaudited pro forma financial information for a rights
issue of the Company; (iii) reviewing and reporting on the working
capital sufficiency of the Group for two major transactions of the
Company; and (iv) reviewing and reporting on the indebtedness
statement of the Group for one major transaction of the Company.
Such non-audit services are performed in accordance with the
Listing Rules with a purpose of providing more independent
information to shareholders.

The remuneration of the audit and the non-audit services are
determined with reference to, among others, commitments and
workloads of the services, urgency and time-requirement of the jobs,
complexity of the underlying transactions and quality of the final
service results.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that Elite
Partners be nominated for re-appointment as the auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
re-appointment of Elite Partners.
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RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL CONTROL
AND INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has established
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, which are reviewed annually. Management is responsible
for the design, implementation and monitoring of such systems,
while the Board oversees management in performing its duties on an
ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk management system

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the
risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze likelihood and impact of the risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2022 and save as
disclosed in this Annual Report, no significant risk was identified.

Internal control system

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0") 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The components of
the framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
controls across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed.
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o Ccontrol Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal controls is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’'s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis, and employees who are
in possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Further to promote transparency and accountability, the Group
implements a whistleblowing and anti-corruption systems and
arrangements. Employees, suppliers, customers and business
partners of the Group can raise concerns, in confidence and
anonymity, about possible malpractice or improprieties in financial
reporting, risk management, internal control or other matters.
Depending on the then situations, whistleblowers may contact the
management, the Chairman/Chairlady, the CEO and/or the
independent non-executive Directors, and suitable following-up
actions may be taken.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2022, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

e EEED: RERXNMEFBEINTT
B BERERNTTE IR RRE R A
ZRK B RFTEH YRR

o HMKBE: RAREIREME
EFREMNAR NI B -

EITHEE

o BB SBEEYVEARE N EE
HMEAXEID R EFHELEFLS -

ANEAEERENTHEENGE - BRAM
BREEHMERE  EHEME  TBUEELE
1 REBRARAITARE SRR NIER
AEBD ARREE TRIEER - BREFED
IFBREERENBRERLE - HPBHE

e RERETHIZARFEMESAIER
HE -HENRBEENEETETHE
RTEEHEE -

o AKRERIVEAXNBEERF]IRE W&

o HESNF(IERRE - NITENSIREE ) BRE
B BTESR/RAERARRESTNIETE
At

RE—SRITBARLBEES  AEEEHRR
HBERESHERBBERY - AEEESR - H#
fEE - B REBRBHAIERE RERNIER

T B ERR - ERERE - AR A
EEHARFENTNESITETRARELEE - R
BRERNBERL BHRARTUBEERRE =
f TRBER, RBILIFNTES - RET

BEREUEE HRAETTE

RER T - —FETHOAMERRE - U E
IR EARIE IR



—E_-FER

AFESFEEZERERLST

Corporate Governance Report
PREIBHRS

Internal audit function

The Group currently does not have an internal audit department, but
has engaged an external advisor to provide internal audit services
which cover independent analysis and appraisal of adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control.
In light of the corporate structure and operation procedures, as well
as the relevant risks, the Board, as well as the Audit Committee, is of
the view that the existing practice is able to provide an internal audit
function which is commensurate to the Group’s requirements. The
Group will review and consider to establish an internal audit
department as and when it thinks necessary.

Effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually. Several
areas have been considered during the Board's review, which
include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks since the last annual review, and the Group's ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment;
(i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems; (iii) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Board
which enables it to assess controls of the Company and the
effectiveness of risk management; (iv) significant control failings or
weaknesses that have been identified for the year ended 31
December 2021, and the extent to which such failings or weaknesses
have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies; and (v) the
effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting and
the Listing Rules compliance.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company engaged Elite
Partners Risk Advisory Services Limited (“Elite Partners Risk”) to
conduct risk management and internal control review of the Group's
operation and made recommendation to Board accordingly. Elite
Partners Risk has, among other things, enquired, interviewed and
discussed with the management, and observed and inspected the
actual control procedures. Based on the report issued by Elite
Partners Risk, the Board, as well as the Audit Committee, considered
that the key areas of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems are reasonably implemented and the Company has
compiled with the requirements of the CG Code in respect of risk
management and internal controls.
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The Board, as well as the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications
and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programs and budget provided were sufficient.

The risk management and internal control systems, however, are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Lo Chu Wing has been
appointed as the Company Secretary from 1 January 2021 to 19 July
2021, and Mr. Zhou Danging has been appointed as the Company
Secretary from 19 July 2021. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
Mr. Zhou Danging has undertaken over 15 hours of relevant
professional training. The Company Secretary report to the Chairlady
and/or the CEO. The Board is fully involved in selection, appointment
and dismissal of the Company Secretary, and all Directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that Board procedures as well as all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with shareholders and investors. The
Board also recognises that effective communication with investors is
the key to establish investor confidence and to attract new investors.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the shareholders are
receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information of
the Group via the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
press announcements (“Corporate Communications”).

Corporate Communications issued by the Company are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and in both
English and Chinese versions to facilitate their understanding. A
section entitled Investor Relations is available on the Company’s
website which provides contact details to allow shareholders to
contact the Company easily. Enquiries from institutional investors
and analysts on the Group's strategy, operations, management and
plans are welcome.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the investor relation activities
of the Company include:

o attended telephone enquiries from analysts and fund
managers,

o updated of the Company’s website regularly;
o held annual general meeting;

o disclosed information on a timely basis via the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP POLICY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company reviewed and
updated its policy for communication with its shareholders and
investor relations. Having considered (i) practices and procedures to
convene the general meeting of the Company; (ii) practices to
publish and update information of the Company; and (i) feedbacks
from the shareholders and investors, especially absence of material
complaint from the shareholders, the Company is of the view that its
policy for communication with its shareholders and investor relations
is effective for the year ended 31 December 2021. The shareholder
and investor relationship policy was summarised as follows:

Rights of shareholders

o The right to attend the general meeting and to receive
information

The general meetings of the Company provide opportunity for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
Chairlady and the chairman of the Board committees will
attend the general meeting to answer shareholders’ questions.
In their absence, she/he should invite another member of the
committee or failing this her/his duly appointed delegate, to
attend. These persons should be available to answer questions
at the general meeting. The chairman of the independent
board committee (if any) should also be available to answer
questions at any general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval. The external auditor of the Company
will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about conduct of the audit, preparation and contents
of the auditor’s report, accounting policies and auditor
independence.
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The right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the
Company.

The voting powers at the shareholders’ meetings

Every shareholder has the right to vote at the shareholders
meetings subject to provisions of the Listing Rules and the
Articles.

The power to elect and re-elect Directors and auditor

The shareholders could hold individual Directors (or the Board
as a whole) to account for their actions by voting against their
re-election. The Articles provides at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of 3, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years.

For the Directors who retire by rotation, and if they wish, they
may submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible for re-appointment
to the office. Without the prescribed approval of the
shareholders, the Company shall not agree to any provision
under which a Director’s term of employment exceeds or may
exceed three years.

The shareholders also have the right to approve (or reject) the
appointment of the auditor each year. The Company may by a
resolution passed at a general meeting remove the auditor
despite any agreement between the auditor and the Company
or anything in the Articles.
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o The right to receive information of the Company

The Company shall keep shareholders informed of certain
developments and to obtain shareholder approval for certain
transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules. In these
cases, the Company must communicate with its shareholders
and seek their support.

o The right to communicate with the Company

The Chairman/Chairlady or the executive Director should
ensure that the views of the shareholders are communicated
to the Board as a whole and the Chairman/Chairlady or the
executive Director should discuss strategy and governance
with major shareholders.

Non-executive Directors should be given the opportunity to
attend general meetings with major shareholders, and should
be expected to attend general meetings if requested by major
shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquires

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s registrar, Union Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-
04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's Road, North
Point, Hong Kong.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make
a request for the company’s publicly available information. They may
also put forward proposals at the general meetings. The designated
contacts and addresses to enable them to make query and proposal
are:

Contact:  the Board of Directors

Fax: 28511038

Email: TaYang1991@tayanggroup.com

Address.  22/F, H Code, 45 Pottinger Street, Central, Hong Kong
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Effectiveness of general meetings

Shareholders should be given the opportunity to send in written
questions before the meeting. There should be a circulation of a brief
summary of points raised at the general meeting to all shareholders
after the event. The Board should dispatch a circular accompanying
the general meeting notice, which contains comprehensive
information on the business to be transacted at the meeting,
together with summary procedure governing voting at the general
meeting and frequently asked questions regarding voting
procedures.

The Company should arrange for the notice of the annual general
meeting and the related papers to be sent to the shareholders at
least 21 days before the meeting. For other general meetings this
should be at least 14 days in advance.

Resolution

At any general meeting there should be a separate resolution to
each substantially separate issue. The Company should avoid
bundling resolutions unless they are interdependent and linked
forming one significant proposal.

Proxy arrangement

For each general meeting, proxy appointment forms should provide
shareholders with the option to direct their proxy to vote either for or
against the resolution or to withhold their vote. The Company should
ensure that all valid proxy appointments received are properly
recorded and counted.

Result of general meetings

The Company should announce the poll results as soon as possible
and in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY WEBSITE

The Company’s website is www.tayanggroup.com.

Information submitted by the Company to the Stock Exchange is also
posted as soon as practicable on the Company’s website. All
presentation materials provided in relation to the Company’s annual
general meeting and results announcement each year should be
made available on the Company’s website as soon as practicable
after their release.

SUMMARY OF GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company held one
general meeting, being an annual general meeting (the “2021 AGM")
on 29 June 2021 which is also the last shareholders’ meeting. Notice
of the 2021 AGM and a circular which contains comprehensive
information on the business to be transacted at the meeting,
together with summary procedure governing voting at the general
meeting and frequently asked questions regarding voting
procedures, were dispatched to the shareholders on 28 April 2021,
at least 21 clear days prior to the 2021 AGM. Chairman of the
meeting exercised his power under the Articles to put all 7
resolutions to vote by way of a poll, and such resolutions were
separate on each substantive issue. The poll results of the 2021 AGM
were disclosed by the Company on 29 June 2021. For details, please
refer to the relevant circular, notice and announcements of the
Company published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

AT HEI

A BI48 UL A Www.tayanggroup.com o

AR ABRARREAEE THERTIERA
NEMEY - BARRBRRBFXEBENME
BRI RS FONRERAENERMEEEE
BRAITTHIE R TRREAARM@ ETE -

RERASIHE
HEZFT-—F+HA=1T—HLEFE &R
AIEIT—ARERE R T =—F A
“HNABERTHREBREFAS ([ ZFE=—ER
RAFEARG))  NARORITHRESE - &
e LHEREEEMNEZEER  BERBRERE
ERAAENEERFUALREBRREFNE
EREN - —FRFAFAGEERBEK
BERZE-—FRERBFRGETAED2
EEE (B ZE2-—FmA-+/\BH)FTETIK
c FHETFRIEERMANITEER - TE
THEREEEREARNETR L - FHEHEES
BEBBIRER - ARFER_ZE=_—F
NATHNEBRE - Z - —EREEFAEN
WERRER - BRAFEBHL2HEARRRAR
A ATk K B A FT AR TR ARRE B R - B K

D -



62

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Corporate Governance Report
PREIBHRS

OTHER INFORMATION IN RELATION TO
SHAREHOLDING

The following table summarized the shareholding structure of the
Company as at 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this Annual
Report:
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in

Category shares the Company

HARD TSN

HHl BHEE iy =R e
Substantial shareholder(s) and FTERENES

Director(s) 797,725,490 61.05%

Public NBRALT 509,041,510 38.95%

Total @t 1,306,767,000 100.00%

Based on existing information available to the Board, it is expected
that (i) the annual general meeting of the Company in 2022 will be
held by June 2022; (i) the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 will be published by around mid or late
August 2022; and (jii) the 2022 interim report of the Company will be
published by around mid or late September 2022. Shareholders are
advised to follow the publication of the Company on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has updated a policy on payment of dividends (the
“Dividend Policy”) in compliance with the CG Code, which
establishes an appropriate procedure on declaring and
recommending the dividend payment of the Company.

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending
dividends, to allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits, and at the same time, to ensure the Company to retain
adequate reserves for future growth.
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Factors to be considered

The Company's decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the
future, and the amount of such dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the current and future operations, financial condition,
liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group, as well as
dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and associates,
which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries and
associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the shareholders.

General Principle

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
laws of Hong Kong, the Listing Rules, the Articles and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Review of the Dividend Policy

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board's current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in
no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no
way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents for
the year ended 31 December 2021. An up-to-date version of the
Articles are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. For the
year ended 31 December 2021, the principal activities of the
Company’s principal subsidiaries were (i) designing and
manufacturing of silicone rubber products; and (ii) providing
healthcare and hotel services. In January 2022, the Group also
resolved to formally commence its business of retail services in the
United Kingdom.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 43 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual
Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Group are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss of this Annual Report, the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income of this Annual Report and in
the accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
this Annual Report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has not recommended the distribution of a final dividend
for the year ended to 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of business review, including a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group's business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this Annual Report
and the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Annual Report.

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships
with its key stakeholders, and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are
contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company to be published.

The above discussion forms part of the Report of the Directors.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risks of non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. There was no material breach or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees are valuable assets. Thus, the
Group provides competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, senior management have kept good communication,
promptly exchanged ideas and shared business update with them
when appropriate. For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was
no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
business partners.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, Lyton Maison Limited was the controlling
shareholder and also the ultimate holding company of the Company.
As at 31 December 2021, Lyton Maison Limited directly held
796,875,490 shares, representing approximately 60.98% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the ultimate controlling party of the
Company was Ms. Shi Qi, the Chairlady of the Board and an
executive Director of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, she
was the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of Lyton
Maison Limited.
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SHARE CAPITAL

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change to the
authorised share capital of the Company which is HK$2,000,000,000
dividable into 20,000,000,000 shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each.

As at 1 January 2021, the Company had issued a total of 871,178,000
shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each. In May and June 2021, the
Company conducted a rights issue on the basis of one rights share
for every two existing shares held on the record date (i.e. 28 May
2021) at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per rights share. The rights
issue was declared unconditional on 16 June 2021, and a total of
435,589,000 rights shares were allotted and issued. As at 31
December 2021, the Company had issued a total of 1,306,767,000
shares in the par value of HK$0.1 each, and all shares were fully paid
and rank pari passu with each other in all respects.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no outstanding options,
warrants, convertibles or other arrangements to issue shares.

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 34 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

ISSUE OF NEW SHARES OR DEBENTURES

On 13 May 2021, the Company announced a rights issue to raise a
maximum of approximately HK$61 million, whereby 435,589,000
rights shares would be allotted on the basis of one rights share for
every two shares held on the record date (i.e. 28 May 2021) at the
subscription price of HK$0.14 per rights share (representing a
discount of approximately 22.22% to the closing price of HK$0.18 per
share on 12 May 2021). The rights issue was declared unconditional
on 16 June 2021, and a total of 435,589,000 ordinary shares in the
par value of HK$0.1 each (representing an aggregate nominal value
of HK$43,558,900) were issued to qualifying shareholders who made
valid applications for provisional allotments and excess rights shares
under the rights issue.
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After deducting professional fees and other related expenses, net
proceeds of approximately HK$60 million (representing a net
subscription price of approximately HK$0.14 per right share) were
raised for the following: (i) approximately HK$42 million was used for
repayment of the outstanding loan amount and/or settlement of
other payables; and (ii) approximately HK$18 million was used as
general working capital of the Group on purchase of raw materials
for its manufacturing of silicone rubber and related products. The
proceeds of the rights issue were used according to the intension
previously disclosed by the Company.

Save as disclosed and for the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no new share or debenture of the Company issued.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution comprise the share
premium account, less accumulated losses.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity, together with relevant notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$738,000
(2020: approximately HK$1,328,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 19
to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 47% of the total revenue of
the Group and the largest customer accounted for approximately
17% of the total revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 35% of the total purchase of
the Group and the largest supplier accounted for approximately 13%
of the total purchase.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in
any of the major customers and suppliers noted above.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out in the Five
Years Financial Summary of this Annual Report. This summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office from 1 January 2021 and up to the date
of this Annual Report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Shi Qi (Chairlady)

Mr. Liu Wengang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Hong

Mr. Gao Feng

Mr. Yin Zhigiang Note?

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsun Hong Philip
Mr. Han Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Siu Tat Note2
Mr. Hu Jiangbing

Ms. Wang Lina

Mr. Lin Bing Notes

Mr. Liu Gang Nete4

Ms. Zhang Lijuan Note5

Notes:

Resigned on 11 January 2021
Appointed on 4 April 2022
Resigned on 4 April 2022
Resigned on 11 August 2021
Resigned on 19 July 2021
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Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chan Siu Tat,
being the newly appointed Director, will hold his office until the next
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and the Listing
Rules, Ms. Shi Qi, Mr. Han Lei and Mr. Hu Jiangbing will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

REASONS RELATED TO THE COMPANY’S
AFFAIRS GIVEN BY A DIRECTOR FOR
RESIGNATION OR NOT SEEKING RE-
APPOINTMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, all directors who resigned or
did not seek re-appointment confirmed that there was no reason
related to the Company’s affairs.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE
COMPANY

Latest biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the Directors’ Profile of this Annual
Report.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE IN INFORMATION
OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed in the Directors’ Profile of this Annual Report, there
was no change in information of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company up to the date of this Annual Report which is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

EFRETBITHRASHNIES
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RO REFTHEEZLNARRABREESK
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Approximate

Total number

percentage

of shares/ of interest in
underlying the Company
Name Nature of interest shares held (Note 1)
EARA RIS
st HEABE D
" ERME HERD A (HtaE1)
Ms. Shi Qi (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 796,875,490 60.98%
MER L (Kt 2) SEHEEER (Long) (#F &)
654,810,600 50.11%
(Short) %2
Mr. Hu Jiangbing Beneficial owner 850,000 0.07%

TR E BEmfa A

Notes:

1. Based on 1,306,767,000 issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.

2. Lyton Maison Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands solely owned by Ms. Shi Qi, is interested in 796,875,490
shares. Of the 796,875,490 shares held by Lyton Maison Limited,
654,810,600 shares are charged to Mason Resources Finance Limited,
which is indirectly wholly-owned by Mason Group Holdings Limited.

3. Before May 2021, Mr. Hu Jiangbing beneficially owned 850,000 shares
of the Company. On 10 May 2021, Mr. Hu Jiangbing placed a purchase
order of 300,000 shares on the exchange via his security accounts, but
such order was later non-executed and no share was indeed acquired.
Then on a genuine, but mistaken, belief that he had acquired 300,000
shares, Mr. Hu Jiangbing made a declaration that his shareholding was
increased from 850,000 shares to 1,150,000 shares. In 2022, the
Company conducted a review on the shareholding by the Directors
and found out such incidence that Mr. Hu's shareholding had always
been 850,000 shares for the relevant periods.
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As at 31 December 2021 and save as disclosed, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had registered an interest or a
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the
following person (other than Directors and chief executive of the
Company) has interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Name Nature of interest

=L EEME

Beneficial owner
EaEA A

Lyton Maison Limited (Note 2)
Lyton Maison Limited (K75 2)

Mason Resources Finance Limited Person having a security
(Note 2) interest in shares
ERERVBEERAR (MiF2) REOPEFRFERSZ AL

Mason Group Holdings Limited
(Note 2)
EKREBZERER AR (H:72)

Interest of controlled corporation
RAEHLEE S
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AN R R SORR (BRRE Ll E S
K B GG SR A3 B VR B 25 O
B IREBEESFEPE GO FE352FAES
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STRIZARME ANR R LB R ATV S SR B ©

FTERROVIES
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BIZEXVERSE 2 R 3D EIMTEABMA R BIHFE K
SLERA AN D AR IR 3B 5 K B S 16191 35 336 1677
EMERMAMERIOAS

Approximate

Total number percentage of

of shares/ interest in
underlying the Company
shares held (Note 1)
EARDTERE
Frism#, HBHE D
R A EE (KtaE1)
796,875,490 60.98%
(Long) (47 &)
654,810,600 50.11%
(Short) CX &)
654,810,600 50.11%
(Long) (47 &)
654,810,600 50.11%

(Long) (47 &)
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Notes:

(1) Based on 1,306,767,000 issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2021.

(2)  Lyton Maison Limited is interested in 796,875,490 shares. Of the
796,875,490 shares held by Lyton Maison Limited, 654,810,600 shares
are charged to Mason Resources Finance Limited, which is indirectly
wholly-owned by Mason Group Holdings Limited. Under such share
charge arrangement, there is a duplication of interests of Lyton Maison
Limited, Mason Resources Finance Limited and Mason Group Holdings
Limited.

As at 31 December 2021 and save as disclosed, the Company was
not notified by any person (other than Directors and chief executive
of the Company) who has an interest or short position in the shares,
or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 13 December 2018, the Company adopted the share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) which has been approved by
the shareholders. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme were
summarised as follows:

1. Purpose

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions to those who had made,
may have made or will make contributions to the Group. The
Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Persons (defined
hereunder) opportunities to have personal stakes in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(@ motivate the Eligible Persons to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(b) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.
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2.

Participants

The administration committee (“Administration Committee”),
currently comprising Ms. Shi Qi and Mr. Liu Wengang, may, at
its absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of
the following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for shares (the “Eligible Person”):

(1) any full time employee or director of any member of the
Group and any entity(ies) in which the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(2)  any part time employee of any member of the Group and
Invested Entity;,

(3) any supplier, distributor, service provider, customer of
the member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(4) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group;

(5) any consultant or adviser of or to any member of the
Group who has provided services to such member of the
Group in accordance with the terms of a contractual
relationship entered into between the consultant or
adviser with such member of the Group;

(6) any consultant, adviser, manager, officer or entity that
provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or Invested Entity; and

(7)  such other persons who in the sole opinion of the
Administration Committee from time to time, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group.
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Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is 87,117,800 Shares, representing 10% of the
total issued shares as at the date of passing the relevant
resolution to approve the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue from time to
time, unless approved by the shareholders in the manner as
stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

For any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant must not:

(@) exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue; and
(b)  have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the shares on the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5

million;

unless such grant of options approved by the shareholders at a
general meeting.
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Acceptance and exercise of options

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the offer of grant of an option and shall be received by the
Company within such time as may be specified in the offer of
grant of the option, which shall not be later than 28 days from
the offer date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on a day after the date on which
the offer for the grant of options is accepted but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.
Unless otherwise determined by the Administration Committee
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee,
there is no minimum period required under the Share Option
Scheme for the holding of an Option before it can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the
Administration Committee in their absolute discretion and
notified to the participant (subject to any adjustment made
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme) and shall be at least the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a trading day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily guotations sheets for the 5

trading days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.
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7. Performance target

Unless the Administration Committee otherwise determined
and stated in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, a
grantee is not required to achieve any performance targets
before any options granted under the Share Option Scheme
can be vested in, or exercised by, the grantee.

8. Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme is adopted. Accordingly, the remaining life of the Share
Option Scheme was approximately 6.7 years (i.e. until 13
December 2028).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no options or securities had
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme. As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and the date of
this Annual Report, there was no outstanding option under the Share
Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
or determined (in the case of executive Director) by the
Remuneration Committee, decided by the Board, and authorised by
Shareholders in the annual general meeting, having regard to the
Ccompany’s operating results, individual performance, experience,
responsibility, workload and comparable market securities. No
Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. Details of
the remuneration policy for the Directors of the Group are set out in
Corporate Governance Report under the heading “Remuneration
Policy”.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is reviewed
regularly by the management. Remuneration packages are
structured to take into account the merit, qualifications and
competence of individual employees as well as the general market
conditions.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements of this Annual Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors
regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and they all have confirmed their
respective full compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save for the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 13
December 2018, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2021 was the Company or any of its associated corporations a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors or their
spouses or children under 18 years of age was granted any right to
subscribe for any shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of
its associated corporations.

INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance,
to which the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries is a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time for the year ended
31 December 2021, nor had there been any contract of significance
entered into between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties
in his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

COMPETING INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Directors is
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter
into any management and administration contracts relating to all or
any substantial part of the business of the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 13
December 2018, no equity-linked agreements that have, will or may
result in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that have, will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 or subsisted at 31 December 2021.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this
Annual Report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company'’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND
GUARANTEES TO AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed, there is no advance, which is of non-trading
nature, to any of the affiliated companies as at 31 December 2021 as
defined under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group entered into
transactions with related parties, details of which are set out in Note
39 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this Annual Report.
None of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or a continuing connected transaction of the Company
as defined in and required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed auditing, financial reporting, risk management and internal
control matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021, and is of
the view that the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting standards,
the Listing Rules and the statutory provisions and sufficient
disclosures have been made.
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CHANGE OF AUDITOR IN ANY OF THE
PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Following the resignation of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
("SHINEWING") as auditors of the Company on 21 June 2019, Elite
Partners CPA Limited (“Elite Partners”) was appointed as the
auditors of the Company by the Board with effect from 21 June 2019
to fill in the vacancy following the resignation of SHINEWING. Save as
disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditors of the
Company during the preceding three years.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have
been audited by Elite Partners, who will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting for the re-appointment of Elite Partners as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Shi Qi
Chairlady
Hong Kong

29 April 2022
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elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To The Members of Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ta Yang
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 205,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended 31 December 2021, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘“HKFRSS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FIRBREEARKRFNZEAHEHS - YK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated  FIBZAENGAMBREZATENS
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 18 o ZZ =B ERMERERE S PBHRE
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial — EgtitH B &E BEETERER - BERMAT2 Y
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we  ZEEEIEMHEEBF SR - RFICE X Frts
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have JTEETEABRHRENBEMNBESFTIZEE -
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters

to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters
BREZEHE

(M

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
M - BB KRR RS E 2 RERE

The Group's property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets stated at amounts of
approximately HK$49,893,000 and HK$64,908,000
respectively as at 31 December 2021.
BEEE E  BERSHEUAREAEEER=
T FF+ZA=T—HIESEI AN
49,893,000 % 7T & 64,908,000 & 7T ©

For the impairment assessment, the Group
appointed an independent external valuer to
assess the recoverable amounts of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
HRETEME - EEEREBELINFAERD
FHEMIZE - B R EAREREEE 2o
o=

We had identified the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets as key audit matter due to the significant
judgement involved by the management in
impairment assessment.

BAIEE  BERZEARERAEEE 2RE
AHEE B REREZEE  RARBEEENRE
BREESINE DNl

FAREILEIA

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EMNEZNRRERELSIE

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
included the following:

BME@ADE BERIEUARCHAEEE 2REBEGZ
BEZRFEFETIIRIE

— We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised.
BMEEEEN RS FEERBETR RERRE
HYEZE o

— We assessed the methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption adopted in the
valuation.
BPEHEPTR AR GEMEA . BREEEEEE -

— We checked, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
BAEREREZE - REMFEANE A SURAERME
AR

— We evaluated the competence, capacities and
objectivities of the independent external valuer taking
account its experience and qualifications.

B EBLIINDEEMZER £ REEMNE - I
EREKHRRERE -



— g —
— & =

—FFR

AFSEEZERBERLS

Independent Auditor’s Report

E VA 74 S Gk S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters
BREZSEE

2

Assessment of expected credit losses (‘ECL") on
trade receivable
EREZEREHEEBE(HEREEERE)
]

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net
carrying amounts of trade receivables amounting
to HK$97,978,000.
R=ZE=-_—F+=-_A=+—H B£EMNEK
2 5 R A AREDFE R 97,978,000 7T ©

Management judgement is required in assessing
and determining the recoverability of trade
receivables and adequacy of allowance made
using the ECL model under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”.
BEBBHHEREERNEIR [€RTA] - BT
i R TE FE N E 5 BR SR AT UK [ 1 R ER R TR M
EEBREAMERENTEMREELHEERE
B o

We had identified impairment assessment of
trade receivables as a key audit matter because
the assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and recognition of loss allowance are
inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the
risk of error or potential management bias.

B E Z RV BB R 53 5l R B A%
F18 - REARTEERE 5 IR A AT E 1 &
REEREAGFETERE  TEELEAETERE
FIER - HEmIEIN T RSB EBRRENRR o

FARESIZEIA (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BPNEXNAIBREREZEE

Our audit procedures in relation to assessment of ECL on
trade receivables included the following:
BMEETEREEBE S RFEHEEBENEZEFBIE
THEIE

We tested the design and implementation of the
relevant key controls over the assessment and
monitoring of credit risks, and determination of
allowance for expected credit losses.

BPDRIHUE B R R ATl K BRI 60 AR B R S 45 I AV 3R &

HEN  WETHEHAEEEEREE -

We discussed with management and evaluated the
ECL model used in determining the allowance for
expected credit losses. We challenged and evaluated
management’s assessment on both the quantitative
and qualitative information considered by them that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information such as
credit ratings, trade receivables ageing analysis,
collections subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, local economic conditions, past collection
history and trend analysis, based on knowledge of the
businesses and industry.

BB B wmi st ARE R EEEERE
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FERER DT~ ME ARG AR - BB - B
MRS SR B B AT ) VE L BV ATk 1R 1 5F e 5 THE -

We checked the subsequent settlements of trade
receivables balances on a sample basis.
BB EEWE SRR ERNBEREFE SR

We assessed whether the time value of money was
considered in the ECL impairment model and checked
the mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

B ARG EEREREERA RS A ZEREK KM
BB  WiaEEEtENEERL -

We assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to trade receivable included in the
consolidated financial statements.

B AR A B WMERARY] BEEBEEKE SRR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the those charge with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charge with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number
P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsuli

Kowloon, Hong Kong

31 March 2022

P o
P
atort il A g

%SNS X RS M FEIRETARIE
BNSE®)

AT

feEEREEBRNERTD - HIUREH ANHH
HERHRRNBECRSEENSTIR - AME
PSR EAZFIH - WIS EZZEN RS it
ZEFR  EEARER T AFE R FTRED
RARKE  HEERFLOERT - FERE
BEHMAERFNRETRBRERERNBEEL
R SBEBEEENARNE @ BIBMAGTE
ELhEER TERETBBZER

B EARBIIAZBMBENETERAEALSE
BRI E (I EFEE R P05898) o

MR EMERERERA R
EAE Sy

EENE
2o

AXBB85E10E

- —_#=RA=+—H



88

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

O 2L

™
g‘ﬂﬂ: Bm 7

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHExT FH&TT
Revenue Wz 9 362,528 354,190
Cost of sales SHE R (286,247) (276,520)
Gross profit EA| 76,281 77,670
Other income and net gain R N Gy 9 63,102 36,522
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHAY (22,125) (17,893)
Administrative expenses TR (157,023) (118,359)
Other operating expenses B 11 (6,472) (13,938)
Share of results of associates i A= YNS e (214) (97)
Finance costs BhE R A 12 (22,816) (21,137)
Impairment losses on interests B E R RIS 2
in associates REEE (18,968) (18,939)
Impairment losses on goodwill HEZREREE - (8,008)
Impairment losses under expected EREEBEEXTH
credit loss model, net of reversal REEE - HRED (4,558) (10,808)
Loss before tax RFLBIE R (92,793) (94,987)
Income tax credit/(expense) Fri5Fiike,(FAx) 13 7,025 (838)
Loss for the year FREIE 14 (85,768) (95,825)
Loss for the year attributable to: UTFATEEFERESE :
Owners of the Company ZINNEIEZ =N (84,901) (95,822)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 (867) @)
(85,768) (95,825)
(Restated)
(F&E75)
Loss per share BREE 16
Basic (HK cents) AR (B (7.52) (10.48)
Diluted (HK cents) BE (BL) (7.52) (10.48)
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2021 2020
B —-F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Loss for the year FAEE (85,768) (95,825)
Other comprehensive income Hi2mE s
Item that will not be reclassified TEREBREFHIBREEEN
subsequently to profit or loss: BE
Fair value gain on financial assets at BRATEZ BRI Efth 2
fair value through other comprehensive Was MR IR ([HR A FEIER
income (“FVTOCI") WHEEMEEREANEE])
M2 BB EN AT E K 828 108
828 108
Items that may be reclassified AREBREFHEEIBRMIAR
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEFENELZR
translating foreign operations (10,792) 34,813
Share of other comprehensive income of FEAG B & A B A H fth 2T W e
associates 3,847 2,186
(6,945) 36,999
Other comprehensive (expense)/income & R H i 2 H (B ) Uk
for the year (6,117) 37,107
Total comprehensive expense for FREZEMXAHE
the year, net of income tax (HBRFr8BIE) (91,885) (58,718)
Total comprehensive expense for the DATATEEFAZHEBAX
year, net of income tax, attributable to: %8 (IR FFERIE) :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ =N (91,010) (58,705)
Non-controlling interests R (875) (13)
(91,885) (58,718)
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At 31 December 2021 R-ZZT=——F+-_HA=+—H

2021 2020
=B —F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHExT FHET
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R KR 19 49,893 151,497
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 64,908 135,688
Investment properties "EME 21 - 93,650
Goodwill EES 22 2,166 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAVES R EEMEE
other comprehensive income WHANRIBENSREE 23 3,921 2,756
Interests in associates RBE 2N R AR 24 31,882 45,175
Deferred tax assets BERIIBE E 36 545 =
Loan receivables U E R 27 3,206 -
Deposit Ze 26 24,400 -
180,921 428,766
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 25 63,987 34,877
Trade and other receivables B E PR R
H b FEURIR 26 243,014 244,604
Loan receivables EUE R 27 35,871 46,297
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 28 24 22
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 29 59,579 31,774
402,475 357,574
Assets of disposal group classified DEARBELRERN
as held for sale HEHSEE 33 205,053 =
607,528 357,574
current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables BB SEZRR
HAb T FRIE 30 121,129 197,689
Income tax payable FERTFR S AR 17,128 40,818
Borrowings B 31 13,500 234,027
Lease liabilities MEARE 32 14,085 8,553
165,842 481,087
Liabilities of disposal group classified DEAFBELERN
as held for sale TEHEAE 33 327,177 =
493,019 481,087
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AEB)FE 114,509 (123,513)

ILTIES EEABERRBAE

295,430

305,253
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Consolidated Statement of Financial

GOMBINE
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At 31 December 2021 RZZ=—_—F+=-HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B st FHExT FHET
Capital and Reserves B S
Share capital &4 34 130,677 87,118
Reserves i 111,783 187,942
Equity attributable to owners /NI Y DN o 2 242,460 275,060
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEFE A A 2 (522) 3,142
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 241,938 278,202
Non-current liabilities FRBESE
Borrowings B 31 2,146 3,564
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 49,065 5,451
Deferred income IEEUTA 35 2,281 3,165
Deferred tax liabilities BELETHIBEE 36 - 14,871
53,492 27,051
295,430 305,253

The consolidated financial statements on page 88 to 205 were £ 83 BZF 205 BEHGANBRENKEES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 R-T_-_—%F=H=+—B#bEREETZ

March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTIHEERKREE :
Shi Qi Liu Wengang
ik Ebdil|
Director Director

EE EF
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLOAERARE
Investments  Properties Capital ~ Statutory Non-
Share Share Other Accumulated  Exchange revaluation revaluation redemption surplus Legal controlling
capital ~ premium reserve losses reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total  interests Total
R& 0% B iERR FAkK

Bx  BfBEE  REEE  ROER EXGR EMERAR  ERER MEBR 0RE LRER it i it
HKSOOD RSO0 RSO0 HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSODOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSO0D

T Tt T T TARL TR T T T TARL T Tt T

(Noted) (Notee) (Note b) (Note¢) (Note )
(Fita) (Hite) (Hstn) (it (Mita)
At January 2020 KZB-%£-A-8 87,118 4,710 (3260 (663758) 106472 (4872) 34,063 200 30825 ] 333765 3155 336920
Loss forthe year FRER = = = (95822 - - - - - = (9582 6] (95.829)
Eichange differences arsing on HEEERELNEZE
translating foreign operations - - - - 34803 - - - - - 3823 (10) 34813
Netgainarisngonrevaluation of ~~~ BRERATEFIFLELL
financial assets at FVTOCI 2EbEARENEHAE
EEtbaRE = = = = S 108 - - - - 108 - 108
Share of other comprehensive income. (SRS A TR 2Bk
of associates - - - - 218 - - - - - 218 - 218
Total comprehensive (expenses) ERRE () Wi
income for the year - = = (95822) 37009 108 = = = = (58705) (13 (58718)
Appropriaton ostautory suplisresene Rz REATRS = = = (23] = = = = % = = = =
At31 December 2020 W-E-EE+-A=1-H 87,118 4,710 (3260 (799,675 143481 (4764) 34,003 200 30920 ] 25060 3182 278202
At lanuary 201 o S 2 S8 TMTI0 (3260 (S96TS) 1381 (476N 3408 240 3090 VO3 ATV 1 ¥
Lossfor the year ERpR - - - (B0n) = - - = = - (90 (867 (65,768)
Exchange diferences arsing on HEENFREENES 2R
translating foreign operations - = = o (10,784) - - - - - (10,784) ) (10,792)
Netganarisiigonrevaluationof ~ Bt RATEFIBLAL
financialassets at FVTOC SEMERRBNEHAE
EEEU%*&)%E = = - - - 828 - - - - 828 - 828
Share of other comprenensive income EEBEATHER2ENE
of associates - - - - 3847 - - - - - 3847 - 3,847
Total comprehensive (expenses)  ERZE(ER)/aLE
ncome for the year - = - (84,901) (6,937) 828 - - - - (91,010) (875 (91,885)
Release of evaluaton resenve of HERRERENZEREE
nvestment properties upon disposal - - - 34,063 - = (34,063) - - - - - -
Issue of newshiaresupon rigtsissue.~ AREEAHRE 43,559 17424 - - - - - - - - 60,983 - 60983
Shereissungexpense RiBfR% = (754) = = = = = = = = (754) = (754)
Release ofnon-cortroling nerest SENBARARE A RER
Upon deregistraton of subsiciary - - - - - - - - - - - (5.442) (5,442)
Release of resenve upon deregisiaion s E-FIMBATREBRE
ofa Subsidiary - - - 0] - - - - - 49) - - -
Acqiston of acitonlequiy interest WSk EIBATENRIE
nanon-wholly owned subsiciary - - (1819 - - - - - - - (1,819) 1819 -
Acisiion of interestinanon-wnoly B EIBATMER
onned subsidiary = = - - = = = - - = = 834 834
Appropriaton o statutory surplus resene EEERREARES = = = (5,009) - - - - 5,009 - - - -

At 31 December 2021 R-B=-£+Zp=1-A 130677 761,380 (5,081)  (815473) 136,544 (3,936) - 240 35,929 - 22,460 (22) 241938
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Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the capital
contribution received from/(paid to) a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and the increase/(decrease) in its shares of net asset value
of that subsidiary.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares
repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable reserves of
the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), the Company's subsidiaries established and operated in the
PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before distribution of a dividend to equity
OWners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company’'s
subsidiary Incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25% of its
net profit to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches
50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Legal reserve is not
distributable to shareholders.

Investments revaluation reserve
Investments revaluation reserve represents the change in fair value of

equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&TT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELETBHNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BR 7 Al & 18 (92,793) (94,987)
Adjustments for: AT SIBEL FHEE
Allowance for inventories, net of reversal TFEEE - RO
(included in cost of sales) (T ASHENA) — (20)
Amortisation of deferred income i FE U B2 8 (145) (242)
Depreciation of property, VI BB KRBT E
plant and equipment 20,518 14,504
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 12,019 11,571
Dividend income iz EWA (134) (56)
Fair value gain on investment properties HEYHEN N FEY R - (315)
Fair value gain on held-for-trading BEEERENANFEE
investments W g = (12)
Finance costs BhE pR AR 22,816 21,137
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries )N el (5,050) -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, HEME - HERKEKEN
plant and equipment (Uezs) 518 (7,330) 1,866
Gain on early termination of lease liabilities 12 AT4% IFFA & & Eay iz (219) -
Gain on disposal of investment properties — HEXREWEWE (31,437) -
Loss on disposal of held-for HEREEERENEE
trading investment - 3
Government grants B e (37) (1,688)
Impairment losses recognised in PLIEUE 5 BR 51 % Ho A fE KGR IE
respect of trade and other receivables REVREEBE (FORREE)
(net of reversal) 4,558 10,067
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE = 8,008
Impairment losses on interests NN e N (=] g
in associates 18,968 18,939
Interest income B A (118) (119)
Share of results of associates JE (R BN R AR 214 97
Operating cash flows before movements LEBESEYRINEEHERE

in working capital (58,170) (11,247)
Increase in inventories FEEM (28,568) (2,903)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUE 55 8K SR K ELAth B ORI 32 (34,643) (32,390)
Increase in trade and other payables FETE 5 8RR K ELAth B {5 SRR 3 A 60,947 64,380
Increase/(decrease) in loan receivables U EZEN S Ofd) 1,609 (968)
Cash generated (used in)/generated (AR, /KEaRLEeEniRie

from operations (58,825) 16,872
Tax (paid)/refund (B, REFHE (16,665) 2,331

Net cash (used in)/generated from (BR),/REELEEEH
operating activities HEeFE (75,490) 19,203
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #HZ-—ZT—-—F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EBEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETBNRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant &Y - BKE &
and equipment HIFT 1S I8 38,162 14,984
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading HE&EFEEFRE 2 FFEHIE
investment = 103
Proceeds from disposal of investment B EREYERTSHKIE
properties 110,746 -
Interest received B UHE 118 119
Dividend received from financial assets BIEAFENRYEE KRR
at FVTOCI FRIRH) & mh & B WA AR B 134 56
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE % - W= & &EE (10,431) (21,655)
Investment in an associate REEE R RRIRE (5,889) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W EE — R B A RIAIR &R R
a subsidiary (2,379) -
Placement in pledged bank deposits FEAERRITER = 1,110
Net cash generated from/(used in) RKE(FAR)RETEN
investing activities EHEHEE 130,461 (5,283)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RERMETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from government grants BB AT 7 B3R & 37 1,688
Repayment of lease liabilities EERHEAE (13,300) (9,218)
New borrowings raised MEEER 240,658 87,895
Interest paid ERFLE (21,344) (19,846)
Repayment of borrowings BRENK (286,054) (141,752)
Net proceed from issuance of new shares — {HAXRFZE7THTAR (DAY
upon rights issue FrS sk I8 F 58 60,229 -
Net cash used in financing activities AREEZENIRES FE (19,774) (81,233)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH ~ HR&RBESZEYHE M CHL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R 35,197 (67,313)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FINRERFLSEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 31,774 94,908
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ERgsE
RATE CHANGES (7,392) 4,179

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNFEESRBESEEY
END OF YEAR, represented by
Bank balances and cash SRITEHR MRS 59,579 31,774
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company is Lyton
Maison Limited which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI") and its ultimate controlling party is Ms. Shi
Qi, the Chairlady of the Board and an executive director of the
Company. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and sale of silicone rubber and related products
and providing healthcare and hotel services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearly
thousand (“"HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated. Other
than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China ("PRC") and the United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland (“UK") whose functional currencies are
Renminbi (“RMB") and Pound Sterling (“GBP") respectively, the
functional currency of the Company and its other subsidiaries
is HK$. As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the Directors
consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in HKS.

1.

—RERIREREE

AEEEZERERAB([ERAT]) BE
FEeRSEMAZIHBRAR - H&RHG
REBBMEXSMBRAR (TBRAHM])
T o EHEKIER A R A Lyton Maison
Limted( WRBEZHS((KEE L&
BaEMKY) RESKERFAES
SERRAABPITESHEB LT - K
NAEMPEE R EEEE A
RER [RARIER] —EHFHE -

ARB/—RAREZERDE - ARE R
HMBAR (TXSEA [AEE]) X2
REYRBRABEEMNRERFEENAR
R BB R BB S AR o

FaMBHmRIDAET(RT]) 25
MEr = BIAI AEESENBEREK
A TRBE(TFET) - BRPEAR
HME (THE]) RATHIERILE BE
e TE(HE DK ZNZENE QT
DAIAARB(T AR ) REH (TR
FEDIFRMEEREIN  RRARREHEM
MEBARMNEEBEYSET ARK
RANBFRB LT  RESRR/EAUH
BRAET2IEBIRE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(A) New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16~ COVID-19-Related Rent
concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSS in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Eﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂﬁﬂ%a%%ﬁ
RS HEAN ([ BB FERS R )

(A) BN [Z 5@ il 4 BV # 5T K

RKNZS] BB RS XER

RAFE  AEEEEXERELE
St AS((BREAMAE]) R
MAN—_F_—F—A—Bxk2’&
77 465 Y 6 &2 24 D 58 Il A B A TR
BRI BB HMERER - AR
BMBHE

BB IR SR COVID-194878

F16FMERT HETRH
BRMBRE £ ﬂ“‘”%“‘iﬂﬁli
F9%  BAGH —RER

RAIFE 395 - BB
MBERELERETH
BRRBIREEA
FARRBEHE
RELERE 165
MR

RAFERALETNEENER
EREAYEAAKEAFE BT
FENFHEMRRRRR R, LZE
RAMBBRAERBEENENY
@ .
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

2. EMRTRAEIZSTINEE M S

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ¥Re5HEBI ([ &80 FE RS A |)

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue (B) EREHmBEREBBIFET R
but not yet effective KAZ5] BB ISR S HER
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEBENEREFERNATEBME
amendments to HKFRSS that have been issued but are M AR AE AT E] RAAER] B A B 75

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

BB HREERE 75
Amendments to HKFRS 3
BB HREERE IFTMISET
Amendment to HKFRS 16

BRUBREENE 16 NER]

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28
BBV ELERE 1055 &
EBETAERIE 285 HEET
Amendments to HKAS 1

BB ERZE 15RAMEE]
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB ERIE 16 RAEE]
Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIZE 3R ANEE]
Amendments to HKAS 12

ARG ERE 125 /ST
Amendments to HKAS 37
ARG ERIE 37 HAEET
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB B HmEERRER]

Amendment to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ARG ERE 15 R BB
AR B RE S 25 AERT

e feq) -

Effective for
annual periods

beginning
on or after
RUTHE#HS 2%
MENFEEHBEX
Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
REeE L RIEBIEE] —E-=%—H—H
Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BESEZR 2 1Rt - —4—H—H
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 1 April 2021
30 June 2021
T —FXA=TH%COVID-1948# —E-—FmA—H
HEER
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an A date
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture to be determined
REEEEBENRREEDERN RFERE
BEHEITFE
Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023

Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
BEEBEIBEAREDNIERBAREAREESTK —T-_=F—H—H
—ECERF) 2 HRAEE]
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Intended Use
M - BERRE —BERASACAMERE —ZT=-—_F—H—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
FEHAEFT 2 EE —2-=%—H—H
Deferred Tax Related to Assets 1 January 2023

and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
EEBE-RGNEENAEHEBNELHRE —T-_=F—-—H—H

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022

BREEH — BITAKNZKAR —E-=F—A—H

Annual Improvements to HKFRSS 2018-2020 1 January 2022

ERMBHREEN T N\FE_T_TF —E-_F—H—H
BEARFEECE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

SRR —ET-=%—A—H
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE AER

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERMRTREETTNSBWF
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG RS ([ BBMHERSE])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(B) New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSS
will not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

(a)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment extends the time limit in one of
the qualifying criteria of the practical expedient for
COVID-19-related rent concessions from 30 June
2021 to 30 June 2022. As such, the use of the
practical expedient is available to more rent
concessions, in particular those involving reduction
in lease payments originally due after 30 June 2021
but before 30 June 2022.

A lessee is required to apply the amendments
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the
beginning of the annual reporting period. Lessees
that had elected to apply the practical expedient in
their previous financial statements are required to
apply the extension to eligible contracts with similar
characteristics and in similar circumstances.

The application is not expected to have impact on
the Group's financial position and performance as
the Group does not intend to apply the practical
expedient.

(B) EnahiBia R EMBVHST K
RESIBBMBEHRSER
(&)
B NPTt Ko 2 #TR] MARIERT BB
M mEERS  EREHEAM
BEMH BT RBU RS
EARA] R RGN YR E M
WRERBEATE °

() EBMBREEANFI165M
BT —E=-_—FXA=+
H#ZCOVID-19tEHEHEELE
b
A& ET ¥ COVID-19 18 &
ERNERAITERE ZFH
Hih—IHERZEERNRRRK
—E-—FARA=ZTHEE
E-T-__FxA=+H-
At - ZBEBR TR 2
ARAREZHASER ' LE
RYRBEENR T - —FX
A=THBz®BEE=_Z==
FXRNA=+BZA R HmAE
B RRERRE ©

EHANBENERZIER
HEFHEREFERSH
B A B FE ol 3 I R HA W) A 2
MEET - RIBAEMBEHRE S
BEXRAERATREZ
B A A DA TR EAR
AR BUFEREUB LN
HEGENEH -

HRAEBY T TEERAE
BRATREZR  B&ZHH
BT HAREE N T M
MR EREERTE -



100

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B ¥R R i 51

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(B) New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as
current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that:

(i)

the classification should not be affected
by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within
12 months; and

if the right is conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the right
exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a
later date; and

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

2.

&R T R AR 2 ST B0 8 Al 5%
RS HERN ([ BB RS R )
(%)

(B) EnaffhiBia R EMBVHST K
KEFTSBHMIB RS ER
(&)

(b) EBREEAE1ROBT
HAES ERRBRHHD
UREBRBESH (=T
) 2ERET
KSR S B A
RES TR ZEEEE
TR GOBE RS D
bS5 B BB AR B IR
ORE-TE

o FHARBERERHSH
REEZENMDERR
BB BB

B RFERIANRE

) ZPBRIXRER
BET-EAR
BEBEZREE
XEHAEE:
&

(i) fim 3% #E F £ 58 ~F

R s A GRE
BN f& RAE

% BB AR R
B
R R 5 R
B4 & 2 18
RTHE R
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. MERMSTREEST NGB IE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ¥Re5 B ([ &80 FE RS A |)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

(“HKFRSs”) (continued)
(B) New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue (B) EREHmBEREVBIFET R
but not yet effective (Continued) KESBUMIERS ER
(%)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of (b) HBETEAE 1S -
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and BEBLIEARBRIERS
related amendments to Hong Kong URERBREBESHE (==
Interpretation 5 (2020) (Continued) ZF)2EBRER (&)

e Clarify that if a liability has terms that could, o EEMABAEBKK:
at the option of the counterparty, result in its ARYEFHEESRE
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own EEBAR ERTH
equity instruments, these terms do not affect EITHE  BEEER
its classification as current or non-current JERBAEREREI2
only if the entity recognises the option FEmMIA : 2555
separately as an equity instrument applying BoRERRERTA
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. B ZEGRR A TEY

ESBEAREKIERD
B

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised Itoh - R BB EFTLERIE 1

as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 SMZER]AR - BEREELSR

to align the corresponding wordings with no BB - AR AR FE IR Fl MR
change in conclusion. BB &ERTE -

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at BEAEBER_ZT=Z—F

31 December 2021, the application of the +—A=+—HZHKEE

amendments will not result in reclassification of the BE ZEEBIIZERKBT

Group's liabilities. SBHAEEAEAEN

DFE o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(B) New and Amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

update a reference in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations so that it refers to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) instead of
Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2010 issued in October
2010),

add a requirement that, for transactions and
other events within the scope of HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies,
an acquirer applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a
business combination; and

add an explicit statement that an acquirer
does not recognize contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

BE_Z_—Ft+_A=t+—HLEE

2.

&R T R AR 2 ST B0 8 Al 5%
RS HERN ([ BB RS R )
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain investment
properties and financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 Leases (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 Leases (before
application of HKFRS 16 Leases), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technigue that unobservable inputs are to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technigue equal the transaction price.

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t+—HLEFE

3. ¥EE5HBR
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly;, and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

3.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE @)

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued) SOE¥E &)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains M B A RARE AR A& B BS % M B
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses RDAEMIEHI RS - WRAEEKE
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of ZB AR MG ERR L B8
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are T REARE TS HHE AR
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ARAY BAXRSEESESI#E L BB
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains EARSETBEZESIZMB AR 2B LR
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the ANirG Bm R EMEERER o
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income EankAEt2EBENSEEBBRA
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the non- RNAEB ARFEZERER - B RR®
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of E2HWNEREEBRNARREES ARIE
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to TR RE s 0 B Utk BB = S B IR AR A
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non- H IR E AL A5 64 o

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial HEBAa M BHRERN Y ERGELH
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in B UFHEGFHRREREEN T
line with the Group’s accounting policies. T

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses REBKE AR ZERNMEEREAZLE
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of ErEE BEx Was THERS5E
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. B eREE NGRS ARR 22N -
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented PABR B8 X B SRR AR M 2 JD A AR SR E Y
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent RSSO HEY  HIEERMAES
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a R T ERA ARMNE R
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries Bl GBI E A R EEFE -

upon liguidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. A
discontinued operation is a component of the Group that
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting
purposes, from the rest of the Group. It represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as
held for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is
abandoned.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an assets and liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statement (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.
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Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not quality as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting date and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date the have previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income and measured
under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had disposal directly of the
previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for
the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that exist at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as establishment at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group'’s cash generating unit (“CGU") (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the
Group of CGU, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU (or
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis
of the relative value of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The result and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, an investment in associates in
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associates. Changes in net assets of the
associates other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group'’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that
the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
it carrying amount.

Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any assets,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal of the relevant associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made to make the associate’s accounting
policies conform to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE @)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEPBH IR

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a RIBERBHBHRELERF 155 - A5HE
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the RIER B A B AT R (S BE L) R U AR -
goods or services underlying the particular performance B E AR R 2 Ema iR 2
obligation is transferred to the customer. [EfhfE | EETEPRE -

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a BHOEFE —BEEE @RS (3 —H#t
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of FEEMIMRE) sk— R ABHER &R
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same. EEma AR °

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over T PR R MMM E A TER
time by reference to the progress towards complete —IEZER| - B ES Th 2 BRSE A AR B 4Y
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the B R R BN M kE R R

following criteria is met:

e The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the s HPAAKERBRAMRRIRFIEE
benefits by the Group’s performance as the Group BAREEBAONE
performs;

e The Group's performance creates and enhances an asset o  AEEMELBIENE(—IARA
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or SEBARNARFESINEE

57

e The Group's performance does not create an asset with e AEEMNBEAVKREEHASER
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an BERAZHEE BAKEHZS
enforceable right to payment for performance completed B BN FIER G ST
to date. A e

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the TR WERE PG EE MRS

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service. 12 | e O R B TR o

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer GHEBEEASBERE B FPWEIRE

goods or services to a customer for which the Group has (IRELEINH)  MAEEERIR

received consideration (or an amount of consideration is dug) BTITEFPHELL -

from the customer.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement PEIS IR E  stERERET
of progress towards complete satisfaction of BHRSENER

a performance obligation

Output method [ eh7S

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance TEBITRAETRERE THIBESE T
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to e EREEAEREZACEE
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the TEFHNERIBRENEE  BEEL
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer to TAEAGEIREH SR T & ek RIEH B EE
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised R BT EEARMAEERE
under the contract, that base depict the Group’s performance 2 Do IR IE B S B 4150 o

in transferring control of goods or service.
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Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its contracts. The
Group first assesses whether these costs qualify for recognition
as an asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing which
it recognizes an asset for these costs only if they meet all of
the following criteria:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the Group can specifically identify;

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to lease that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHBER®)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities, other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from COVID-19-related
rent concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed lease payments (including in-
substance fixed payments).

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the date of reassessment; or

° the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

COVID-19- related rent concessions

In related to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether
the change is a lease modification if all of the following
conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same
as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

. any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due one or before 30 June 2021; and

. there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHBE#)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) [EE=1€))
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERRBA(E)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HERE (&)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHBFK @)
(Continued)
Leases (Continued) W& (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBERRBA(E)
COVID-19- related rent concessions (Continued) COVID-19- 1HEFH & Z )5 (&)
A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes EBEANERERATHRE G HEE

in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the change applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or wavier of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
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recognised in the profit or loss in the reporting period in which LHIREE RSP ERERERE -
the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor TEBERAEHAA
Classification and measurement of leases HEZHERGE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
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as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date at amounts
equal to net investments in the leases, measured using the
interest rate implicit in the respective leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period/year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHBER®)
(Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or 1oss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such grants are presented
under “other income and gain”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans/state-managed
retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the recognition
good consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amount of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
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(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or lease liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate the items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position as cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production or
supply of goods or services or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fn O B 855 R Bl 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

FTEEHBGR @)

i I8 (48)

RAKERAEREEENEREER
BEZHERGHAEELEHRIEAMS - K&
B B S B IR IRGE D R B M A
BEEXMEERE -

W8 B AR MITHA A KA TR IR E &
HEHHBRELRE  BRFEERA
BER-REHERR - ERHEER
WS HRAEBAASEEIZFEEL
BEHINMNAEERAGR  AET
HREENAEA EHELH -

B R SRR R 1R 2R R - ME iR D A8
MEERBABRTREMEm KB &R
RiESTERMIAR - BB B 1A
IR B EL A 2 [ Y 2f S B IR O A ot

=7
s ©

ME - BERR

WE - BELERE(BREFIEEESEE
Emk RGBS HITEAENEE L RE
F)RER A M BARN R PR AN ERE R
REERERRGBEER(ME) S
B o

FIFEERHEEmNRBAUITERE
B e T AP D 36 T 12 A AN RAE A E R Y
BERBEIR RABREEXRER &
(LABREEMS ) REAEE ST
RENENBERL - ZFEWERENT
REFERERERBREENE  BFE
REEHEERR - RA TR &
B ZSEEQRERMMEEEZMER
MEEFIGHEITE -



_—FFR

AFSEEZERBERLS

ll‘l

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3.

SRS Hw&MIEE

BE-Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property when there is a
change in use, as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in properties
revaluation reserve. The properties revaluation reserve in
respect of that item will be transferred directly to retained
earnings when it is derecognised.

Depreciation is recognised so as write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held on earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the different between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or 10ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI"):

3 the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income
if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from change in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses will continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in “other income and
net gain” line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other income and net gain” in line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit l0ss
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, other receivables,
loans receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the end of
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and loans receivables without significant financing component.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including
the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
1 year past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

3. EESBHBR#E

EMEEE)
ARBEREMBRESENEIRETH
BN ESREERNE(E)

() (EEEBEZENE)

AEBEEHEZIRNEERRED
ijﬁﬁaﬁ%gigbﬂﬁﬁ)ﬂ$¥+ﬁﬁﬁxﬁl %
I AR E B B /] ARERTE IR
BHERTA R LR EER R
LB -

ERIE S
AEERBHABEERRERM
5 MABAERE B INERIRER
FMERKRE  EHATARERE
BERA(BEAEE) THERCK
FHRAKERAMETMERR)
ABRGERN ST -

(ii)

B LR - NREERRREF
EESABAIF  AIEEENE
% BRIERNKEBEFHAERRD
BHNBREEREENAENESR
¥ RVERIER -

(i) (EEBEDHEE
ERE-AKZEATREEG
ARREREATNTEZEMN
B SRMEERREERE - S8
BEFERECEBRBREBHANAT
SRR EBREUE

o BITAHERABAEKRE
TS R 2

s ERAHN MENIEBRE
f



134

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B ¥R R i 51
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of loans receivables, when
the amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments;
o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and loan receivables, where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥EgHIE®)

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The financial asset is derecognized only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

A financial liability is derecognized when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate assets
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Contingent assets/liabilities
Contingent assets

contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ¥ESHEE )
(Continued)
Provisions Bl
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Contingent assets/liabilities (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Where the Group
is jointly not severally liable for an obligation, the part of the
obligation that is expected to be met by other parties is treated
as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
continually to determine whether an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits has become probable. If it
becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits
will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the
change in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare
circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of resulting
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

The impairment loss of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets was recognised for the amounts by which
the carrying amounts exceed their receivable amounts, in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy when
impairment indicator is identified on those assets. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value in
use calculations and fair value less cost to sell. The value in
use calculations require the use of estimates such as the cash
flows projections and pre-tax discount rates. In determining
the fair values, an independent professional valuer assesses
the significant unobservable input by reference to market data
and takes into consider certain estimates of market conditions.

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
industry forecast as groupings of various debtors that have
similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on the
Group's historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in note 26 respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank balances
and cash, lease liabilities, borrowings, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves. The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issue and the issue of new debts.

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EfITH
Categories of financial instruments Eat TEHEVERI
2021 2020
—E=—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT
Financial assets tREE
At FVTPL — Held-for-trading investments 1z A (&7 BRI fE 1825 N R 18
—HEEERE 24 22
At amortised cost (including bank bire:. K=
balances and cash) (BERTESREES) 262,623 313,831
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEY R EEMEE
WENRENSREE 3,921 2,756
Financial liabilities TRIBE
At amortised cost by ¥ =] DN 130,743 417,872
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, held-for-trading
investments, bank balances and cash, loan receivables,
deposit, borrowings and trade and other payables (including
trade and bills payables, accrued expenses and other
payables). Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than those
subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition, certain portion
of the financial assets at FVTOCI, held-for-trading investments,
trade and other receivables, loans receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and borrowings are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the entities to which they relate.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t+—HLEFE
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Liabilities
afE
2020 2021 2020
—ETEF —E-—F —ZE-%
'000 ‘000 "000
T Fr 7
6,309 - 21,688
155 - -
367 - -
- 549 -
10,683 - -
2,698 47,873 -

Assets
BE
2021
—E-—=
‘000
Fr
United States Dollars Erx((%Ex))

("US$") 8,552
Euro ("EUR") BT ([®oe)) 16
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(TAE] 143
GBP HeE 453
New Taiwan Dollars ek Ha))

("NTD") 13,873
RMB AR 57,280
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. EEESREERDBER &)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Currency risk (Continued) SEEEE)
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging NEE B AT N SR IBUR o AT -
policy. However, the directors of the Company continuously RRARESFHEEZABINERR - I
monitor the related foreign currency exposure and will BN EEREEE AINEE e EITE
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should o
the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis BBED M
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in AEBTFTEARZETT By BHE - &
US$, EUR, JPY, GBP, NTD and RMB. BB RARBHRBNTE -
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2020: TR AEESEASEEEAIEE
5%) increase and decrease in functional currency of the BE(AE2AREBETRARE) L BB
relevant group entity (i.e., mainly HK$ and RMB) against the HBREERARKSD(ZFE=ZF : 5%)
relevant foreign currencies, 5% (2020: 5%) is the sensitivity rate HIBEE 5% (—E—FF : 5%) AHRME
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key FEEIR A BB REDHNEE & b B R
management personnel and represents management’s FTRRMSRRELL R WAEIEEHING
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign FERGIEAEFE A - MREDT
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only ERENIINEEERRERIEER - W5t
outstanding foreign currency denominated items and adjusts INEEIE R B 5% (=T T F : 5%) &
their translation at the year-end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in FAREERFRBRENSTE - TERHIE
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an YRETEEREENEEE LARE
increase in loss where respective functional currency FES% (ZFE=FF : 5%) FAIEMe
strengthens 5% (2020: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a 7 o AR eE B KR S 2 E 5%
5% (2020: 5%) weakening of respective functional currency (ZE2ZF :5%) AIBGFEBERA
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and HESERERERARNFZE M TX
opposite impact on the loss for the year and other equity, and REEHAAEE -
the balances below would be negative.
EUR JPY GBP NTD RMB
BT =| B HAa AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET FH&IT FHEIT FH&T
Loss after tax b2 &R
— 2021 — T 7 - 51 194 573
— 2020 — T -FTF 667 - - - 189
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. EEESREIERDBEE )
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Currency risk (Continued) SE [ ()
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRED (&)
In view of the pegged rate between HK$ and US$, the directors AR ITHEETHEEER - NRAFE
of the Company do not expect there is a material effect by any EHEFETRBTNEEERSEISE
changes in movement in value of US$ against HKS. EEFERTE o
In the directors’ opinion, the sensitivity analysis is FERE ARFRARY NREER
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the BB - BURE S TR sE R K B A INE
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the [Z\Bgz
year.
Interest rate risk i) == [ R
The Group is exposure to cash flow interest rate risk in relation AEEREZERTFREAXESME
to its variable-rate deposits with banks and is also exposed to FEER - A EBEEBRITHERER
fair value interest rate risk in relation to its fixed-rate short- NFEMERE o BRERZREH
term bank deposits. To mitigate the impact of interest rate 2 AEERFET G RERASHF
fluctuations, the Group continually assesses and monitors the K[E K o

exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities is AEEH® ﬂﬁ@ 1) 2 & B 7 AN B 507
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note. FECRREIE B o

Sensitivity analysis BBEDM

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on TXHGEREITIIRBEIETET AR
the exposure to interest rate for non-derivative instruments at HEARNFERGBET - mESTE
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared BENRBERROAREESH T ANE
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of EFEHRERE -SOEEM(ZZTE_F
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 F : SOMEEE)ENSR L AERAEEE
basis points (2020: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is A B 1EH A AR H R b b R AT ER
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key A UAERESENESEREETHH
management personnel and represents management’s A o

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis WFZE EF TBOEEH(ZZE=F
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, F - S0{EER) - MATA EMZE BT
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December g RBE-_E-_—F+=-A=1+—H
2021 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$103,000 B R 18 5 A 2 18 0,58 4> #9 103,000 74

(2020: approximately HK$105,000). TL(ZZEZFF : #9105,000%87T) ©
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. HEEREEBIRRBE &)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed financial assets at FVTOCI and held-for-
trading investments. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity securities have been 5%
(2020: 5%) higher/lower:

— Loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$1,200 (2020:
approximately HK$1,000) as a result of the changes in fair
values of held-for-trading investments; and

— Investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$196,000 (2020:
approximately HK$138,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

H th {18 21 bR
AEBRKREND LTRAFETIRYL
FEEA 2 E WS AR S RS E MR
EEEREMAZREERER - B
EZBmBERREETANKEARE
Iilitﬂ % o tbSh s NREED R ERHIE
BERERRER YRR EFTEEZE
EmpTAS B R -

HRED T

VAT B9 8RR FE 3 AT 0 AR AR R 55 3 R B o
XHBERERRRMERE

K8 BB B EF T 5%(—
T TF 1 5%)

— HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HIt
FENEBEBAFBEEERENR
FEZB) MR IN# 1,200 7%
T(ZZEZZFF : 91,0008 7T) :
&

— RESHRBEEBREAFEYEL
EEMEARENERENSREE
HRFE & B MmN R
196,000 T(Z T F: 4
138,000/87T) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group does
not provide any guarantees that would expose the Group to
credit risk.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 57% (2020:
78%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at 31 December
2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 16% (2020: 15%)
and 27% (2020: 50%) of the total trade and bills receivables are
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively.

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t+—HLEFE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on
debtors with significant balances individually and/or by using a
provision matrix, grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to past default experience and
current past due exposure of the debtor. As part of the Group'’s
credit risk management, the Group uses debtors’ past due
status to assess the impairment for its customers because
these customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. Loss rates from 0.93% to 100% (2020:
0.95% to 28.9%) were applied by the Group to the trade
receivable with carrying amount of HK$25,515,000 (2020:
HK$11,923,000) which are past due at the reporting period end.
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost of effort. The grouping is regularly
reviewed by management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

The credit risk on short-term bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables and loan receivables,
other receivables, bank balances and financial assets at
FVTOCI. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

Loan receivables

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of loan
receivables based on historical credit loss experience of the
debtors as well as the fair value of collateral pledged by the
customers to the loan receivables. Based on assessment by
the directors, the loss given default is low in 65.7%.
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FERESHAIREEERHELFAZE - 4
TEREREET BB - UWRREFE
5 E PR BR SRAB R RO B RS o

HREFHLEBEREEFREERT
SEEFMRNRT  WEEHRTER
MIRTTHBNEERRBR -

FEERREASENEFRERTEA
MEBYHAEEERMBBRRZE
o ARBEZERERREIZERANEK
HHERRARERER - E b EUYRIE
RITEBKERAFEIRLEEGBEE
WaENEENEREE - AKE W ER
BEEMEARSIEMEERIAARER
ERMEEABERER -

FE W & 5K
BEERBEBANBECEEHRLR
UEREFPERTRRERNWERRNHA
FEMFERRERNGTEREER - ZER
BT ARG IBNENEBRER
i
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. EEESREIERDBEE )
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk menE F [ b
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REBRDESRERME  AEEER
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed ReRBREEEY IH%EI,ET%BAEE'E
adequate by the management to finance the Group's EWLEEEE’J7J<$ ﬁKi@%i‘%k{
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash B WHERESRERIDHTE -
flows. The management monitors the utilization of borrowings BEERERNER - IEE{%?*/\%
and ensures compliance with loan covenants. During the years RE - RBE_T-_—FR_ZT_TF
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loan covenants were +-—A=1+—BLLFE  BERZLHWE
breached. Details are set out in note 31. The following table o FEIBEHNHFES - TRV ARESR
details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its SHMEBENBRT AL HBR - 2%43’7
financial liabilities. The table includes both interest and EH B &K:—ciﬁémi e ) 2%
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are P XRGHE - AIRFTRESEIR &%ﬁﬁ%
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest BF R AR E
rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
More than More than
oneyear  two years
Within but not but not Total
one year or exceeding more than More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand two years five years five years cash flows amount
—ERH —Fp LB MEALE RERES
REXR TRBWE THBRF BEERE TEAE RAEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FABT FTAET FAT FTAT T
At 31 December 2021 R=—B=—%
+=H=+-8H
Trade and other payables (I E SEER K&
Hib R 115,097 - - - 115,097 115,097
Borrowings &3 14,243 2,146 - - 16,389 15,646
129,340 2,146 - - 131,486 130,743
At 31 December 2020 R=Z=T&
+=A=+-8H
Trade and other payables FEfTE S BRZ K&
HitpEf30E 114,944 - = = 114,944 114,944
Borrowings 1%?& 204,457 18,546 31,200 = 254,203 237,591
319,401 18,546 31,200 = 369,147 352,535

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “within one year demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts
of these borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$13,500,000 (2020: approximately HK$237,591,000). The
directors of the Company believe that such borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in note 31. The aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows with amount to approximately HK$307,398,000 (2020:
approximately HK$161,598,000).

R RERKE B IR A £ B E
BAMFRETA [ —FERREK ] #EE#
MNT - RZBE—_—F+=—_A=+—8 "
ZEEFHEMEL A 13,500,000 7T
(ZZE =T 4 : 49237,591,00058 7T ) ° A
AR EEE  AEEREBRENES
Tl E B R B HEE - REBERF
BIRE R #5849 /5307,398,0008 7T (=
T4 #7161,598,000 7T °
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8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 8. EMITANAYTEA
INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of held-for-trading investments and listed RIEBEBERERDBEAEATETERL
securities classified as financial assets at FVTOCI is calculated Eﬁﬁﬂiﬁuﬁl W)@@E’Jirzﬂﬁ?mt
using quoted prices. MEHFN AT EERETE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RABEERAE  HRGREVBREKIR
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at BEKNAARNEREERSREER
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements were BN EEANEE WZEemEER
approximate to their fair values due to their immediate or TRIAENRAEREE AT ERE

short-term maturities.

The following table provides an analysis of financial assets that TREHNRESRERRERETFTEEA
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period FEFENSREENT - IIREARSE
for recurring measurement, grouped into level 1 to 3 based on Eof=y .#EK%HZ FEABREED A
the degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance BH—==E-

to the Group's accounting policy.

Fair value as at Fair value as at Valuation
31 December 31 December  Fair value technique(s)
2021 2020 hierarchy and key inputs
—E--F e 223
+=-ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H HEIER
HWATE MRFE DFEER FEBARE
Financial assets
CREE
Listed equity securities classified HK$3,921,000 HK$2,756,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
as financial assets at FVTOCI 3,921,000 % T 2,756,000/87C F—E active markets
DEEER WE@J% ERTIZATRE AE
TEEMEZAMSARENSHEE
B EmRAEH
Listed equity securities classified HK$24,000 HK$22,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
as held-for-trading investments 24,0008 7T 2000%8T F—E active markets
PERFEEERE ERTIZFTRE AE
B ETRAE F
There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy REE=Z :—i&_ T _ZTF+_H
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. =t+—HIEFE  AFEEBEHZEILE

LR -




B —FFR AFSEEZERBERLS 151

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statep
‘RO M TS R RO 5E ol ﬁi  x

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE A

9. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 9. IWEREMUIARRINGFEE
NET GAIN

Revenue represents fair value of the consideration received or WiEE W ERRENMNEB BEBB
receivable and for goods sold and healthcare and hotel BhEEPHEE RN HERERE
services rendered in the normal course of business to MBERSHORENRFE - BRI
customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes. MAHEHERNIE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Revenue Wizs
Sales of goods — point of time HEER —NE—Z 361,234 343,922
Healthcare and hotel services — ERERENAERS —
overtime R—ER B 1,294 10,268
362,528 354,190
Other income and net gain N NS Enk
Interest income FLE WA
— Loan receivables — ERER 5,609 2,371
— Bank deposits — RITER 118 119
Total interest income FBU A 4B RE 5,727 2,490
Dividend income & B U A 134 56
Fair value gain on investment properties  #& 2 H) A T E Mz - 315
Commission income BEWlA = 14,910
Gain on disposal of HERED N KR
investment properties 31,437 -
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - HEMLEN
plant and equipment e 7,330 -
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries FEEHET A AR as 5,050 -
Gain on early termination of IRANR I E B EREE
lease liabilities 219 -
Reversal of impairment losses on FEWE B RFORER1E
trade receivables e = 512
Government grants Bt E
— Amortisation of deferred income — F IR A B SH
for the year 145 242
— Government grants (Note a) — BSHEhE (ffaFa) 37 1,688
Net rental income (Note b) S WAFEE (D) 7,632 10,647
Sundry income ZIFIE A 5,391 5,662

63,102 36,522
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9. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND

NET GAIN (continued)

Notes:

(@  The amounts represent unconditional grants from government
for subsidising the operations of the subsidiaries in the PRC.

(b)  An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows:

9. WERHIUXARIWEGFEE (=)

@ BEFBRABNBIEEFENERR
EENERIHEDE -

() AKEHESWAFEDFTMT

The Group's reportable and operating segments, based on
information reported to the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), being the chief executive officer of the Company,
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment focuses on type of goods or services delivered or
provided are as follows:

(@ Silicone rubber and related products — manufacturing
and sale of silicone rubber and related products; and

(b)  Healthcare and hotel services — providing healthcare
and hotel services.

No operating segment identified by the CODM has been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Gross rental income i N 8,593 13,173
Less: Outgoings incurred for investment & : RERELHS WA

properties that generated rental RIEEMERT S KRS
income during the year (961) (2,526)
Net rental income HE WA FEE 7,632 10,647

10.SEGMENT INFORMATION 10. REpER

REZBTIELERRE((ZEEE
REE ) (AVARRZITHARE) AETT
BRDEMKBAFENER (FERAR
NEWHRERFHER) - AEEHOA
WERKEDEEHIIAT -

@ WEBREMER — HERHEY
BRAEEER &

b BERREMEERE — REEE
PREE KB B IR

REBAKE R A HRE DA - LHEE
BEREERRERRNEED R -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments:

10. REb&ER (=)

pak- il EEYNE 3

AT RANEEZ A dE RAEE DR E D
Ml es M RAE DT

Silicone
rubber and Healthcare
related and hotel
products services Total
YBR BERER
HEER SEIE RS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT
Year ended 31 December 2021 X _-——4%
+=ZA=1+—HIEE
Revenue &=
External sales HINHE 361,234 1,294 362,528
Segment results DEEE 35,662 (25,960) 9,702
Unallocated income KO B U A 2,628
Unallocated expense RO (105,123)
Loss before tax & FL AT ETHE (92,793)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ_—ZS_FF
+ZBA=+—HILEFE
Revenue Uy #=
External sales HINEE 343,922 10,268 354,190
Segment results DEEE 8,860 (27,854) (18,994)
Unallocated income KO BECUA 1,962
Unallocated expense AOBHAZ (77,955)
Loss before tax Br & A& 18 (94,987)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3 of
annual report. Segment results represent profit earned by (loss
from) each segment without allocation of impairment losses on
interests in associates, share of results of associates, directors’
emoluments and central administrative costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

& REE & S IR B P R 3 A
EUZIK%I SHRAAR » DR FEAEIRE
DEREE R RERHBERR
{Eﬂﬁﬁ%fﬁ?%ii EEME RPRIT
BRARERT » &2 BBEREX A0 M (&
EHER) WH2BTEIELERRE
ETERDEERRRFENE -

WD AR SIEINBE P ELEN
REBE-_Z_—Fh_Z_FTF
T—RIEFELEDREHE -

H&ZW
tT-A=
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

10. RE&ER =)
NPEERERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

AT R/ARBEIRAHREREEDHE D

by reportable and operating segment: MEERBED
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&TT
Assets BE
Silicone rubber and related products W Kk EREEm 437,320 399,866
Healthcare and hotel services BB R RO T AR TS 205,121 315,392
Total segment assets DEPEELBE 642,441 715,258
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRBEE 146,008 71,082
Consolidated total assets REEEMRE 788,449 786,340
Liabilities =L
Silicone rubber and related products W RBEEM 202,555 226,965
Healthcare and hotel services BRI ROB JE AR 7S 327,180 247,801
Total segment liabilities DEP B EBEE 529,735 474,766
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROEARERE 16,776 33,372
Consolidated total liabilities IREBERE 546,511 508,138

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
assets for corporate use including financial assets at
FVTOCI, held-for-trading investments, interests in
associates, certain furniture, fixtures and equipment,
deposits and other receivables and bank balances and

cash; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

MEEDBRREERDBZEOEER

me :

e KRERFAAENEE(BRERAF
151 BRI A H b 2 Y ok R TR
TREE  FFERRE  RBE
REMHELD - BETHRM KERR
B e K HE M REYRIRIA RRTT

REREIRE) I

EEEHT R

FTEEESDE

e KRAFABBRETEMHAXK

than corporate liabilities including certain accrued HMEMNRIE) N FIEARE S
expenses and other payables. BeE A& D& o
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information

Year ended 31 December
2021

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Additions of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use
assets

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

(Reversal of impairment losses)/
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of:
— Trade receivables
— Loan receivables

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

Interest expenses

Interest income

Share of results of associates

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on deregistration of
subsidiaries

Amounts regularly provided to
the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment
assets:

Change in fair value on held-for-
trading investments

Loss on disposal of held-for-trading
investments

BE-2--F
tZA=t-A

SAS BREAS BEE
SrEMEH

NENFE - BER&E
EREEENE

nE  BELRRENE
BLUA T BIRRER R
CREsERRE)/
{EEE

— BB SR
— BWER
HEREMENO YR

MERX
MESA
JEIRBE R EIMEE
HEWE - B L& E
Yogs
B[l PNl 6

EHRUTFIRLEEBREE
B AL BRER
PBEEFENEH

BIEEERAMATES

HEREEEREMNER

——F+ZA=T+—HILFE

10. REER 2
Hfth N EPE Y
Silicone

rubber and Healthcare

related and hotel
Unallocated products services Total

vBRk - BERERER
RAE HEER B IE R #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET
2,048 8,364 19 10,431
5,379 6,640 - 12,019
2,882 14,257 3,379 20,518
- (2,471) - (2,471)
7,029 - - 7,029
- (31,437) = (31,437)
1,195 3,618 18,003 22,816
(2,065) (3,642) (20) (5,727)
214 - - 214
= = (7,330) (7,330)
- - (5,050) (5,050)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. REP&ER (#)

Other segment information (Continued) Hith nEE ()
Silicone
rubber and Healthcare
related and hotel
Unallocated products services Total
wBxR BERE
AAE BEER  RBERE 4Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FTAET
Year ended 31 December BE-Z-EZF
2020 +ZA=t-HLEE
Amounts included in the SARBEES T HEE
measure of segment results  ;FEH£EE -
or segment assets:
Allowance for inventories, FERE - MiREE
net of reversal (including (GEASHERMA)
in cost of sales) = = (20) (20)
Additions of property, RNEWE  BEKEE
plant and equipment 9,682 11,941 32 21,655
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE
assets 1,921 7,244 2,406 11,571
Depreciation of property, M BEREENE
plant and equipment 2,008 8,298 4,198 14,504
Fair value gain on investment REMENRATEK R
properties - (315) - (315)
Impairment losses recognised FAT S BERANREESRE
in respect of:
— Trade receivables — EWE SRR - 4,731 - 4,731
— Loan receivables —ERER 5,336 - - 5,336
Interest expenses FBFAE 4 4,624 16,509 21,137
Interest income FEWA (19) (1,701) (770) (2,490)
Share of results of associates FEREEE A RIS 97 - - 97
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE « BEREEEBRE
plant and equipment 22 1,842 2 1,866
Amounts regularly provided to ~ FHEEF T ELERFE
the CODM but not included in BRFA S BB
the measure of segment profit 7 #EET BRI L
or loss or segment assets:
Change in fair value on held- FHEEBERENATEE
for-trading investments 12) = = (12)
Loss on disposal of held- HEREEBERENERE
for-trading investments 3 - - 3
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. REp&ER =
Revenue from major products and services FTE2ERMIREERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from sales AREEMRINPEFEHEEHE FEE G NMIE
of its major products and provision of services to external BRI AE RA M= AT T -
customers:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FH&T
Consumer electronic devices HEBETREREE®
peripheral products 234,930 230,980
Keypads for computers and notebooks B & S22 FUE f i 19,283 27,942
Lifestyle products AEEMm 81,027 58,137
Mobile phone peripheral products FHESER 9,172 8,220
Automotive peripheral products B FERE R 6,468 9,448
Chemical products {LEBE R 3,957 2,531
Other products HhEm 6,397 6,664
Provision of healthcare and R EERGE B IS RS
hotel services 1,294 10,268

362,528 354,190
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. pEp&ER (2)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers based on the location of the customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical
location of the assets are detailed below:

th (5 & Y
REEHEELBUNPEAREE

AREBEREPHAEME D 2 KRBT
FrlmEr iz EEMRE D 2 IER
BEEAMFIMT

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIEBEF U I REBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —T-FTHF ZEZ-— —EEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT F#ExT FHT
The PRC R (B AERRAIN)

(excluding Hong Kong) 216,220 140,474 108,853 371,760
Hong Kong &8 42,053 45,413 15,372 9,075
Other Asian countries N [ETE 19,779 53,099 - =
America =M 56,543 91,414 - -
Europe &M 22,242 23,790 18,727 -
Others Efb 5,691 - - -

362,528 354,190 142,952 380,835

Non-current assets exclude financial assets at FVTOCI,
interests in associates and goodwill.

FRBDEETBREBAFEIIRLEE
heEmEERNEENSREE KBS
RANERREE -
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Information about major customers

10. 5388 (s
EEFEN
REBEE-ZT-_-—FR-F-_FF+=A

=t—BLEFE KABAKEHER
BB 10% MR PR R E I T

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
sales of the Group in the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—-F —ETTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FH&T
Customer A ZEA 60,687" N/A N5 2
Customer B ZFB N/A 738 2 N/A 5 2

1 Sales are derived from the sale of consumer electronic devices L HERNRBHEBEEETREREE
peripheral products. o ©

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the z
total revenue of the Group.

B8 M5 i BRI R 28 7 R (B W s 4R R
#)10% °

11.0OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES . Hith#& S %

2021 2020

B —-F ZETHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Exchange losses PE 5 B8 2,928 8,061
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMRENER

plant and equipment - 1,866

Gain on fair value of BIEEBERENATA

held-for-trading investments ek = (12)

Donation =) 738 1,328

Others Efh 2,806 2,695

6,472

13,938
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B&RI R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET Fi&TT
Interest on: AR EENFE
Borrowings EEN 20,582 19,807
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,234 1,330
22,816 21,137
13.INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 13. PRiSHHE (k%) X
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
PRC Land Appreciation Tax AR R £ 3 IR (E A 3,607 100
Current Taxation BEARR I8
Provision for the year IR E 5,587 -
Qver-provision in prior years B E R (573) =
5,014 -
Deferred taxation EREFIR
Current year RNEFE (15,646) 738
(7,025) 838
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the BARAEEE EHNEETIEEEIR
financial statements since the Group has sufficient tax losses SHZN G S B FE R A e ) - R AR R B S
brought forward to set off against current year's assessable MERAELBEFEHEE -
profit.
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands BEASHENEBELESNEA X
and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the ER G ASEBEAMFEREREB
Cayman Islands and BVI. BRRBENEMFTER o
No provision for Indonesia Income Tax for the current and prior BRI EENHEB A AL ETEE
years has been made as the subsidiary operating in Indonesia EXERERF AN HITERREE

did not generate any assessable profitisfin“ Indonesia. KB FEEREEMEHEME -
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(Continued)

No provision for UK Corporate Tax for the current year has
been made as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits in UK.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards. Accordingly, provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25% of estimated
assessable profits for the current and prior years.

Land appreciation tax of the PRC is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value,
being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or l0ss
as follows:

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t+—HLEFE

13. Fhigii (18%) Rz @)

i sl
8,73 ) GRS s

AT

P A 7 5= [ I 488 7 5 8 A A ] AR A
A MAFEWERREDEMEHR
TR -

RETBECERMAESHE(EERER
ED REEMBTORBRES - BN
BRRANR_ZFTNF-—A—HENHRE
25% ° At - FEMBARNFED
EEHBREAFERBEFEMGE
JEFRTIAE A ) 25% = 5. ©

B+ 3R E A D3 s EE TR (BN
& W) 3 A 1S SRR AT AR R ) 1B
30% 2 60% K RAER R B

FAMBHAN REABRRMER
BATEIRERIAT ¢

2021 2020
—E—-— ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Loss before tax bR AT E R (92,793) (94,987)
Tax credit at rates applicable to (loss)/  IRERRABEAEEER
profit in the jurisdictions concerned (B518), /S F B R ER
HHE L (16,426) (18,777)
Tax effect of income not taxable B AR A R T 7S
for tax purposes (211) (232)
Tax effect of expenses that are AATH0% A S MR
not deductible for tax purposes 12,942 14,341
Tax effect of share of results DIGEE R R EENT B2
of associates 52 25
Land appreciation tax T+ IR E R 3,607 100
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR WVERRNHEER
not recognised (9,160) (5,005)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised A< f& 525 755 85 18 A 3 7% 2,171 10,386
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year FERFFEH (Ee) Fx (7,025) 838

Details of deferred taxation are shown in Note 36.

BT RF B FES6 ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

14.LOSS FOR THE YEAR 14. FAEIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Loss for the year has been arrived FREBEIE (GEA),/ kR
at after (crediting)/charging: ATR&FIA -
Auditor's remuneration ZE A<
— Audit services — FET RS 1,660 1,580
— Non-audit services — EEFT IR 1,010 420
Allowance for inventories, net of reversal 77 &8 - 1k B[

(included in cost of sales) (BT ASHERA) = (20)
Costs of inventories sold (Note) BEFEXA (A1) 284,122 274,481
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRHESENE 12,019 11,571
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERRETE

equipment 20,518 14,504
Directors’ emoluments EE=ME 8,487 6,716
Staff costs (excluding directors’ ETXAN(TEEZEEZMNE)

emoluments) 124,642 92,264

Note: e :
Cost of inventories sold includes approximately HK$87,499,000 (2020: EEFEXRABRERETIRA WX BFE
approximately HK$73,979,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation of REEBHRERXREABREENESBAN
property, plant and equipment expenses and depreciation of right-of- & B H87AN9008 (T —_FF:
use assets which amounts are also included in the respective total 73,979,000/ L) * ERASBIEFT AR £EX
amounts disclosed separately above. B IWENBRBARENA -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE HELE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. 2
No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended 31 REEZZT=_—FR=-ZFT-_FTF+=HA
December 2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed =+—H tiflﬂiﬁ HEFIRET
since the end of the reporting period. IR E - B RS BRI R I 2 35k 3
EAARE ©
16.LOSS PER SHARE 16. 828
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss BRERNBEBEDNEZEREBEE_T_—FK
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted —ECTFF A=+ —HLEFEAR
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the years RIFEE AEMLEERR B BT @R
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. IEEFHEEE -
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETTF
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR GHEA AEGEARER
of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) (84,901) (95,822)
(Restated)
(s=E5)
Weighted average number of ordinary B2 247 @ A% H9 1t 198K
shares in issue ('000) (Fh%) 1,129,295 914,178
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the basic RBE-FZ_-—FR-F_FTF+ZA
loss per share and the diluted loss per share are the same =T—HIEFE: ngmgﬁ/?ﬁiﬁx
because there are no potential dilutive shares outstanding. BEEEMAR - RARLEEITEIG
BIEEERD
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year B EEREAREIERME @ BE
ended 31 December 2020 for the purpose of calculating basic ZECEFt AT RLEFENE
and diluted loss per share have been adjusted for rights issue Lﬁxﬂﬂ*ﬁq:i’j BERR_F=_—%~A

which took place in June 2021. ETHHRIEL T -



164

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

17.

wn © 8 15 # 2= bfd 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

17. ETR (RBHEEEME)

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEIETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits He o BB REAMER 113,181 91,116
Performance related bonuses FRIRAARIIEAL 104 =
Retirement benefit schemes contributions R @FIET 214 % 11,357 1,148
124,642 92,264

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance which are available to qualified
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the subsidiaries in independently administered
funds. Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, with maximum relevant income level for
contributions of HK$30,000 monthly.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group participate in respective
government retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions represent
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in Hong Kong.

BEENNBARREBEE AT EATES
ETEHED BE B8 E B R E R
gle ZEHENEERBUEEESH
B HIBARNEESH - HEBAR
BARBATFHRANETE D kiR
FERAAR E AT PR M E B SREE B (5K o
KEAE U AKTE LR &S A 30,0005

JT °

RIETEARERNVRL - KRB
J& 7] 2 B0 B B 0 AR K 4R A A 8l
(IZEst8))  HBARARLRZSE
SHEEL R - REERERMNRINE
MIRHES - AZFETEMERBERTD
B BRPIRT AR ERFMAANE T
BNLEE - FEEHEERARRERK
BEXNEZRRE - AREIZFR
- EERFEXNZFTEMR
TEHIHEK -

BB ERFEASRERTEEH
ERRIMLFERNEBRILNTE
BHSGHEIE R AR o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE T

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 18. ESRiTH@MEHE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s () EERTHEABE
Emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s emoluments for REERBEALTREEER
the year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing AGAIE BN E S RITBBHME
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as O
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—ZEZ-_—F+=-A=+—H1t
FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus contributions Total
- 1.1 RIKER
e  REMER kg HE 35 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT FHT FHT FAT THET
Executive directors: HTES:
Shi Qi il - 4,271 - 18 4,289
Cheng Hong (YN - 120 - 6 126
Gao Feng 513 - 1,500 - - 1,500
Liu Wengang el = 2,004 = 18 2,022
Yin Zhigiang (Note ) FEoR (7t = = = = =
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Han Lei BE - = - - _
Chan Tsun Hong Philip BRIEE = = = = =

Independent non-executive By FHITEES :

directors:
Zhang Lijuan (Note i) SR8 (et i) - - - - -
Lin Bing M - 240 - - 240
Liu Gang (Note iii) 2I58 (Kt iii) - 70 - - 70
Wang Lina TEH - 120 - - 120
Hu Jiangbing IR - 120 - - 120

- 8,445 - 42 8,487
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 18. ESRITH@HMEE )
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(@) Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s () ESRITHREME &)
Emoluments (Continuead)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-HA=+—HL
FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
He R BINEH
e REMER [Euf =Pt an HEG5 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT FiET TER TR
Executive directors: HITES
ShiQi i - 3818 - 18 3,836
Cheng Hong (EVN - 120 - 6 126
(a0 Feng mig - 1,500 - 18 1,518
Zhao Ang (Note vii) B (fat viii) = = = = =
Liu Wengang (Note X BU R (Kiztxi) = 700 = 8 708
Yin Zhigiang (Note ) FE (M) - - - - -
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Han Lei BE - - - - -
Sze Wai Lun (Note ix) it tm (it ix) = = - - -

Chan Tsun Hong Philip (Note x)  BRIEE (Mt x) = = - - -

Independent non-executive B FHITEES :

directors:
Zhang Lijuan ®IA - - - - -
Wu Tak Kong (Note iv) st (At i) = 9 - - 9
Lin Bing (Note v) WE(Hitv) - 232 - - 232
Liu Gang (Note i) ISR (i) - 114 - - 114
Wang Lina (Note vi) TBM(Hatvi) - 83 - - 8
Hu Jiangbing (Note vi) TR (ftvi) - 90 - - %0

= 6,666 = 50 6,716
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &E-—T——#+-A=+—RAit&Eg =

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

18. EBRITHAHME =)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s
Emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Resigned on 11 January 2021 and appointed on 31 March
2020.

(i) Resigned on 19 July 2021.

(i) Resigned on 11 August 2021 and appointed on 21 January
2020.

(iv)  Resigned on 13 January 2020.

(v)  Appointed on 13 January 2020.

(vi)  Appointed on 31 March 2020.

(vii)  Appointed on 22 April 2020.

(viii)  Retired on 29 June 2020.
(ix)  Resigned on 30 July 2020.
(X)  Appointed on 3 August 2020.

(xi)  Appointed on 26 August 2020.

Shi Qi has resigned CEQO of the Company on 26 August
2020. Her emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by her as the chief executive officer
from 1 January 2020 to 26 August 2020, but retained as
an executive director.

Liu Wengang is the CEO of the Company from 26 August
2020. His emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by his as the chief executive officer
from 26 August 2020.

No directors and the chief executive officer waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

(@ ESRITHRHME &)

Hit
) R-E-—F-A+—BBER
“T-TFZA= +-REE
£
() RoT-—FLAtABBE-

(i) MZTBZ—FNA+—HBER
R-ZE_ZTF A+ AEE

£
vy W=-ZT= —A+=H§fE-
V) RZZETF—A+=BEZE-
Vi) RZZE_TF=A=+—HEZ
£
(i) RZZE_ZTFWMA-+-—HEZ
£ o
(i) R=ZF=ZTFA=-t+IBRE-

ix —E-_ZT+HA=1+HEHT-
x Z—E-ZTFN\HA=-HEZE-

R-ZZB-ZFFN\HA-1TA "
BHEARLDBITHRAER - XTI
e BEEN T _FF—A—
BE—_Z_FFN\A-_1tBER
TTRASEHRREHOME - BRI
BERTES -

BxXME —T_FF/\A=_1H
RETARRITHAEL ° E3FTH
BEnMeeREE —_T_FF)\A
Z AR BERITRAREIRHARF A
M -

REREFE  HEEERITHRAR
MESLR B RETAE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 18. ESRITH@HMEE )
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals emoluments (b) hERSHALHE
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the PINS @ hEAEmHALTH =%
Group, three (2020: two) were directors of the Company (ZE_ZFF : MB) BARAE
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of = {BZ—;H’]M‘i%XE/\\J:X R
the remaining two (2020: three) highest paid employees H(CE-TF: ZF)ReF AL
are as follows: HE ST
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Salaries, allowances and e EREREMEF
other benefits 2,929 3,658
Performance related bonuses B sEe = =
Retirement benefit schemes RRTE TSI K
contributions 36 48
2,965 3,706
The emoluments are within the following bands: BN T IATEE -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAH BB AEK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 % 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000% 7T £ 1,500,000 78 7T - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 78 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T £ 2,500,000 7T
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. 1% - BRERRIE
Properties Furniture,
held for Motor Plantand fixturesand  Leasehold Construction
own vehicles  machinery  equipment improvements  in progress Total
i BER BR - £B HENE
BRME RE He Ri&fE #% ERIE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR TR T TR
Cost ﬁXZK
At 1 January 2020 “E-Z%-f-H 121,823 6,157 179,701 74,697 37933 922 121,233
Exchange realignment E AR 5022 374 6,450 3521 2428 65 17,860
Additions NE 27 30 9,827 2,162 8465 1,144 21,655
Transfer Loy - - - 961 - (961) -
Disposals/Write-off HE /i - (446) (26,558) (9,036) (3.284) - (39,324)
At 31 December 2020 and R-E_FF
1 January 2021 TZR=T-Bk
“Z-—%-f-H 126,872 6,115 169,420 72,305 45,542 1,170 421,424
Exchange realignment ERA% 2,742 39 4,097 1,267 524 87 8,756
Additions NE = 3,165 236 3,094 1,569 2,367 10,431
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —FRBAR
(Note 38) (H1:£38) = 135 = 993 66 - 1,194
Reclassified asheld for sales ~ EHHEARBIELE
(Note 33) (H13£33) (70,041) (610) (3,669) (20,126) (3,929) - (98,375)
Transfer & = = 1,060 408 1,336 (2,804) -
Disposals HE (32,038) (854) (26,531) (4,719) (5,806) = (69,948)
At 31 December 2021 RoB=-%
+=B=1+-8 27,535 7,990 144,613 53,222 39,302 820 273,482
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitiiE
At 1 January 2020 W_ZE-TE-F—H 33335 3,602 145,135 55,263 29,934 = 267,269
Exchange realignment ERAZ 2126 230 4,201 2,168 1,903 = 10,628
Provision for the year FREE 3431 818 2,808 5922 1,525 - 14,504
Disposals S (406) (402) (14,411) (4,493) (2.762) - (22,474)
At 31 December 2020 and RZB-FF
1 January 2021 +-A=+-Bk
“Z-—%-f-H 38,486 4,248 137,733 58,860 30,600 - 269,927
Exchange realignment i 5% A 131 33 932 766 390 - 2,252
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeE—FRBAE
(Note 38) (Hi#38) - 32 - 84 - - 116
Provision for the year FREE 563 892 9,145 4,800 5,118 - 20,518
Reclassified as held for sales B A ARIELE
(Note 33) (H15£33) (7,061) (596) (303) (18,908) (3,240) - (30,108)
Disposals He (8,800) (42) (24,291) (4,271) (1,712) - (39,116)
At 31 December 2021 R-E--&
+=B=1+-8 23,319 4,567 123,216 41,331 31,156 - 223,589
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%
+=A=1t-8 4,216 3423 21,397 11,891 8,146 820 49,893
At 31 December 2020 R-E-TF
+=R=t-H 83,386 1,867 31,687 13,445 14,942 1,170 151,497
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19.

SRS HR&MIEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in process, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives less residential values as
follows:

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of initial recognition.

Estimated useful life

AT A ERFH
Motor vehicles 5 years
art 5
Plant and machinery 10 years
R Bs K g5 104F

Furnitures, fixtures and equipment
&~ HENEE

Leasehold improvements
MEMERE

3E104F

At the end of each reporting period, the directors of the
Company have performed impairment assessment in respect
of the healthcare and hotel service, the recoverable amounts
of which have been determined based on value in use using
cashflow projection approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five years period. The pre-tax discount rates applied
in measuring the amounts of value in use is 20% (2020:18%).
There was no impairment considered necessary of provide in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HKS Nil).

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

19.17% ~ BEK®IE 2

310 10 years

BREZTREN UEME  BEERE
0 B A B ARRIR A Nl AT 2 A 4 HR
FIMEERTENE -

ME T FHRHER RYMERZEARERD
AR ERE A5 R ERFEH (R T H#RR
HIfR SOFA) MBI EIE -

Residual value

FIEREE

10%

10%

10%

Shorter of the lease term and 5 to 10 years =
HEHAKRSE10F - REE A%

REFREPRR AR EEEREER
2 FH JE AR 7S TR E R - H A ke
SRENFERAANRREBIERE AT
HENRER=BAREBEFEREEE
7o s 2FBEESETEANT AT,
WK A% (ZZE T :18%) - &=
—EBE-—F+-A=t+—BItEE &
ERERRAERGE B BRRAED
BE(ZZE_ZF T%T) °
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19.12% ~ BB R iE =)

(Continued)
The carrying value of properties held for own use shown above il e BYERREERE
comprises of:
2021 2020
:%ﬁ: - ﬂi — 7 — E'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Medium-term leases FHEEE
— In Hong Kong —REB 4,216 4,334
— Outside Hong Kong — HEEIN = 84,052
4,216 88,386

As at 31 December 2021, properties located in Hong Kong
under medium-term leases with carrying value of
approximately HK$4,216,000 (2020: approximately
HK$4,334,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, properties located in the PRC under
medium-term leases with carrying value of approximately
HK$81,242,000 have been pledged to secure bank borrowings.
The aforesaid bank borrowings was repaid during the year
ended 31 December 2021. Details of borrowings are shown in
Note 31.

R —F+— )EJ +—8 - BREEY
4,216,000 7T (ZE ZFF : 494,334,000
BIL) MR EBIRETRBHEERENME
ETFRE - (EAREBAMERRITEER
HOPELR o

R-ZE-_TFE+_A=+—0 KHEHE
#781,242,00078 JT iz B B AR 4% 1 HAAE
ERANYEE TER  ERRITER
MR - FLRTEFRRBE_T——
FT-_A=+T—HLFEREE - EFD
BN -
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20.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

20. [FHIES=E

Leasehold Lease
land properties Total
HELi HEWE Loy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 January 2020 RZEZZTF—H—H
Carrying amount REE 116,987 7,372 124,359
As at 31 December 2020 and RZE-TF+=ZA=+—H
1 January 2021 RZFZ_—F—H—H
Carrying amount BREE 122,529 13,159 135,688
As at 31 December 2021 RZZE=_—%F+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount REE 3,908 61,000 64,908
For the year ended HE_Z_T
31 December 2020 T-A=T—HLEFE
Depreciation Charge WEER (2,882) (8,689) (11,571)
Expenses relating to short-term REMEREEEER
leases with lease terms end TEEREREATBHRE
within 12 months of the date of ER|E 1652 BiE
initial application of HKFRS 16 12 A W& LE 1,188
Total cash outflow for leases HEHR €L EeE 9,218
Addition to right-of-use assets NEFEHREEE 13,514
For the year ended 31 December HZ=-Z=—fF
2021 +=A=+-BLEE
Depreciation Charge WEER (96) (11,923) (12,019)
Reclassified as held for sales BENDEAERE ﬁ &= (117,522) - (117,522)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — RS P B A - 9,259 9,259
(117,618) (2,664) (120,282)
Total cash outflow for leases HERE ML 13,300
Addition to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 54,059

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets with carrying
amount of approximately HK$116,983,000 has been pledged to
secure borrowings. The aforesaid bank borrowings was repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Detail of borrowings
are shown in Note 31.

RZZE-_ZTF+=-A=+—H0" KEE
116,983,000 L E R + 1ERERAIE
ReAIMBITERRBE_ZE=—F
+T—A=+—RHILFECEE - E3F
TBEEB I FEST ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 HE—ZT_—4+_A=+—HILFE
21.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 21. 1R&1M%E
HK$'000
FH&TT
FAIR VALUE NFE
As at 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZFTF—H—H 87,191
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss R8s HERE A LEZE) (F:19)
(Note 9) 315
Exchange realignment [E 5 A2 6,144
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZE_THE+_A=+—HRK
—2-—%—H—H 93,650
Exchange realignment PE 5 A2 1,121
Disposals k== (94,771)

ASs at 31 December 2021

R—E-_—F+-_A=+—H -

Notes:

(@)

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties shown above are situated in the PRC
and held under medium-term leases.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed
the investment properties at consideration of approximately
RMB115,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$138,748,000).

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the investment
properties amounted to HK $93,650,000 was valued by an
independent valuer, by using the investment approach.

At 31 December 2020, investment properties with fair value of
approximately HK$93,650,000 has been pledged to secured bank
borrowings. The aforesaid bank borrowings was repaid during
the year ended 31 December 2021. Detail of borrowings are
Note 31.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information

about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 and 2020
are as follows:

Investment properties BB

Bt -

@ AEREREEEERABRRIES K
BAREENE Y FEE DG AR FEE
Xt 8 ADBRARIMEREDE -

() ALEFRAREDBHEERELNH
HREYE

© #HBE-FT-_—F+-A=+—H1tF
& AEBAREL AR 115,000,000
7T (FB% 1 49138,748,000% 7T ) HH &£ %
B -

d RZZEZZTF+-_A=1+—1H &Y
$#H) A F1E 593,650,000 7T+ TH 7B
S ERMER AR B AR o

2’793650000%7EE’J&§¢%¥E?’T&
| AERIRITERAOER o ATAERTTHE
FRBE_Z-_—F+-A=+—Hit
FEBERER  (ARFBHAMTEI

Hh RZTEZ—FRZZFEZZTF+=A
=t+—8": lk‘igﬁﬂxé%%ﬁl &=
AAFEERHERDT

2021 2020
:g:—fﬁ —7— i
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

- 93,650

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both years.

MEFERNL REBRERERBE=
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_F

21.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of investment

properties as at 31 December 2020 is as follows:

——Ft-A=t-BILEE

21. REWME @)
HizE - (45)

R-Z-ZFF+_A=+—B BEKEY
EXFE=REATEAENERNT :

Significant Relationship of unobservable
Asset Valuation technique  unobservable input input to fair value
BE HEFE ERFABEREARE FABERARBEATENER
Investment properties Investment Approach Market unit rents of building A slight increase in market unit rent will
(per square meter (“sq.m.”) are have a slight increase in the fair value
in range from RMB12 to RMB16
FEZ TEE EEYRTISHEE MHEHEERM EAEESATE
(B FFAR(BERZKD) G by
NFEARE12TTE
AREE16TT
22.GOODWILL 22. B8
HK$'000
FET
At carrying value: %ﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁ
As at 1 January 2020 RZE-_ZFTF—H—H 8,008
Impairment losses on goodwill EERESE (8,008)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZEZZE+_A=1+—HRK
—T——i—ﬂ =] -
Arising from business combination (Note 38) BEBa0tEE (M 38) 2,166
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—+—-H=+—H 2,166

For the purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to CGU relating to the silicone rubber
and related products.

The recoverable amount of CGU as at 31 December 2021 has
been determined based on a value in use calculation with
reference to a valuation performed an independent
professional valuer. The calculation use cash flows projections
based on financial budget approved by management covering
5-years period and pre-tax discount rate of 13%. Cash flows
beyond the 5-years period have been extrapolated using a
steady 5% growth rate. The growth rate is based on relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows include budgeted sales
and gross profit margin.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on East Shack
Ltd.

The recoverable amount is significantly above the carrying
amount of East Shack Ltd. The Directors believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not result in impairment.

BBERENE  tAREE ke H
YRBMABERBABNBRESELEMN -

R-ZE-_—F+-_A=1+—H B&E
A B A7 A AT YR Bl 5 58 TH EAME BB E AT
%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%io
e B EAENEREAIERED
FHIMM B RE R R B TRAA R
AAGIRE13% - BB AFHNIBLRE
Eﬁ%%i%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%o%%%
THER IR 218 K188 & I £ 8 1B 48
BTN REREK - BERESR
AR E M EREETENE
DRRBIEREHEREFNE -

BE-_T -GS+ -_A=+—HIF
[+ ANEER)E IR EE E East Shack Ltd.
I ERE -

A] Y [B] ¢ BB K8 i 7 East Shack Ltd. AYBR
Efﬁ BEEREAMNZEREINEME
%ﬁ@%K BHURE -
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23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

24

BE-_E-—S+-_A=+—HILFE

23. I"'"SIZiEWEFIT',HJEEElIi

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE SNERNENEE
INCOME
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Listed at Taiwan =y A=l
— Listed equity securities — ERAE 3,921 2,756
Note: Bt -
The above equity securities represent ordinary shares of entities at LR AFBHRIEREERENETAR - 25

Taiwan. These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are
held for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments in financial assets at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in
these investments' fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent
with the Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the long run.

The listed equity securities are determined based on the quoted
market bid prices available on the relevant stock exchange and
categories as level 1 under fair value hierarchy. During the year ended

ﬁﬁﬁ#%fﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁmﬁr{’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁm ZS

AR EZEEREEXFREREEZRE
BAFEIREEEMEERRAEE R
ARERRNIEAANRRBZEREQATEN
MRS EAEBRFAZSREFERNEN
Mt REBRARBE DR —B -

ETRAEBFTDRENEBZS RS ARG
MM EAREBEE  YHBEARFEER
E—E- b"‘éti_?_—ﬁ'f—:ﬁz-f-—ﬁ

31 December 2021, the fair value gain of approximately HK$828,000 IEFE - AFEREA)828,00078 T B HAb
had been recognised in the other comprehensive income (2020: 2EKEARR(ZZTZFF : 49108,000%8
approximately HK$108,000). JC) °
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 24. REENaNES
2021 2020
—E-F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost LM - K AE
(note a and b) (Ktetakb) 63,247 63,247
Additions (note c) ANE (Mfatc) 5,889
Share of post-acquisition results and DMEBEB R FEE N
other comprehensive income HEaemma 1,233 1,447
Accumulated impairment losses EERRFTREBE (MEd)
recognised (note d) (38,487) (19,519)
31,882 45,175




176

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#n © B ¥R R i 51

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

24.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 24. RS A\ SINEm (&)
Details of the associates at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as RZEBEZ—FhR_ZE_FTEF+ A4
follows: =+ —HHEBEQRFBNT :
Place of
Form of incorporation/ Proportion of ownership
business place of Registered/ interest and voting rights
Name of company structure business share capital held by the Group Principal Activities
AMAI Y AEEHENETRRER
AREH EREBES  KEnE T/ BA REERELH FEEK
2021 2020
BT CZZ-F%
BiOcean Holdings Limited  Incorporated  Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 49% 49%  Investment holding
Ak BE 2,500,000 %7 REER
Biomar Industries SdnBhd  Incorporated  Malaysia MYR400,000 49% 49%  Trading of chemistry ol
BauAs SRAE 4000009 % t2hE5
Yuntou (Note @) Established The PRC RMB150,000,000 35% 35%  Construction project
in the PRC
=R (Hita) XL H AR # 150,000,000 7C HEERIER
Sinohk Group (Note b) Incorporated  Hong Kong HK$150,000 33% 33%  Financial services in HK
HEEE (fizFh) Ttz BA 150,000/ 7T EAERRSG
AR (Note o) (Afatc)  Established The PRC RMB10,000,000 49% - Retall services
A H ARH10,000,000 7T TERE

Note: Kt -

(@)  In 2019, the Group, together with two independent third parties, (@ RZZE—NF rKEERMEBBILE
set up Yuntou Infrastructure Investment Co., Limited (“Yuntou”) = AR B B ERE R R EBR
in the PRC, of which the Group holds 35% equity interests in AAIER])  HAAEEREER
Yuntou. The registered capital of Yunton is RMB150,000,000, of 35% B AN ns - ERMFMERAAAR
which RMB52,500,000 to be continued by the Group, #150,000,0007T + EFAREEHFE A
representing 35% equity interest in Yuntou. During the period R #52,500,0007C b ER XA &
ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s portion of capital 3B5% - RBE_TE—NF+-_A=+—
contribution has been fully paid. HILERE AEEFERBH BRI

fiF o

(b)  In 2019, the Group acquired 33% equity interest in Sinohk Link b RZZE—NF AEEURESRKE
Capital Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary, i-Golden Data 3,697,000 TWER BRERBRA
Capital Limited (“Sinohk Group”) at a cash consideration of AIREEZEWNBARIAREEEERRA
HK$3,697,000. Sinohk Group is principally engaged in the Al ([RBEE]) 0 33% AR o 75
provision of financial services business in Hong Kong with Type SEREEEERENENERENSR
4 and Type 9 licenses issued by the SFC. MR FERERHSBMBRIBELS -
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24.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Note: (Continued)

©

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group, together
with independent third person, set up db R A FHERIEHEFER
RAaE (" AFEHR") in the PRC, of which the Group hold 49%
equity interest of AR . The registered capital of AJFHE is
RMB10,000,000, of which RMB4,900,000 to be contributed by the
Group, represent 49% equity interest in A tt 5% . During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s portions of capital
contribution of RMB4,900,000 (equivalent to HK$5,889,000) has
been fully paid.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group engaged
an independent external valuer to assist the management in
performing impairment review for associates of the Group,
which is considered as having impairment indicators. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the management reviewed the
recoverable amount of the interest in Yuntou after taking into
account of the financial performance and financial position of
the associate and the poor business outlook of the associate in
2022 and 2021. The directors of the Company estimated that
there was a significant decline in the present value of the
estimated future cash inflow comprising expected dividend
income from the associate and expected ultimate disposal.
Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of the
Group's interest in an associate is approximately HK$22,456,000
as at 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$41,525,000) and impairment
losses of HK$18,968,000 (2020: HK$18,939,000) recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group's material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in the
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSSs.

Non-current assets EMENEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mENEE
Revenue Wzs

Loss for the year FAEE
Other comprehensive income H2mEmBA
Total comprehensive income EHE =BT

i sl
8,73 ) GRS s

24. REi=Ac0NiEs &)

libgz3

(©

C (&)

BHE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HIHF
& ANEEEBE=FRFP BRI
R SREHPEBR AR ([ KFEH
R])  HRFAESEFANFHRE49%
BEAE - RFHRHFMERABARE
10,000,000 7T + H A A K ¥ 4,900,000 7T
BHRAEBEERFF  HRXFERH
%k E - BHE-_ZE=-_—4+=-A
=+—HLEFE  AEENBHIEEA
R #4,900,0007T (485 #5,889,0007% 7T )
BB -

RBE_T=_—F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEEZRE—ZB N EER 7
MEREHAEERE A ETRESR
B ZAHEERAEEREER - R
T FR_F_TF+_A=+—
H BEEAZER_Z-__FKk=-%
Z—FRE N R MBI SR RSN
AREEE R RN EB IR R ERERE
RH SN KW E S5 - AAREER MG
i AEFRRBRESARA (BEEHKA
BN AR BMA RTEB SRR EES
H)MBEBEEAE TR - BETE - ©
B —F+-"A=1+—0  A£ER
— A& A R R A AT UK Bl £ 5 5 Bl
49 522,456,000 T( =T = T F:
415250008 L) W HERHEEZE=ZF
——F+-_A=+—HILFEREEE
18,968,000/ T( — T = T 4 :
18,939,00078 7T ) °

SABE R cMEERNIE

NTREBAKEBEABE DR M
EMBE - TXHECMBERRER
BERBREBEEBVIERE L REM

EMERMRZ E5E -
Yuntou
ER
2021 2020
—E—F —EETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
418 504
106,759 106,696
(64,557) (64,467)
(289) (141)
10,992 6,245
10,703 6,104
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24.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of material
associates (Continued)

24. REi=AcIN@Es &)
SABEL S B ERIBE (#)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information of
material associate as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 as

RZEZ—FR_ZE_FTF+_A
T+ HEBBERARNYBERES

follows: RSEBRINT «
Yuntou
ER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Associate’s net asset B AR EEFAE 42,445 42,733
% of interest held by the Group AEEFEEERNA DL 35% 35%
The Group's share of net assets REBEYHEEFE 14,856 15,017
Goodwill FEES 7,600 26,568
Carrying amount in the consolidated AV HHRERMNREE

financial statements 22,456 41,525

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually

material as follows:

The Group's share of profit

The Group's share of post-tax profit

The Group's share of other
comprehensive income

The Group's share of total
comprehensive income

Aggregate carrying amount of
the Group's interests in these
associates

Z-SE i fapingil
AR E EARRR B A

AEBEREEMEEKE

AEBERE2E KSR

AEBRZEHE QT
HEEREE

&

=

FEEREZMEE QR BT

2021
—EgE=-—fF
HK$'000
TR

(113)
(113)

(113)

9,426

2020
—E-EF
HK$'000
FHEIT

3,650
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25.INVENTORIES 25. 78
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Raw materials ExF 14,252 8,941
Work-in-progress ER G 10,297 4,145
Finished goods RUAK T 39,438 21,791
63,987 34,877
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. FEUYES 5 88 Fh B2 H fth fEUL FR 16
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHET
Trade and bills receivables FEH&E%HE &Fﬂﬁlmﬁ%
— from third parties — RUWE= 103,693 93,771
Less: Allowance for ECLS b %Eﬁﬂﬁff)%%ﬁéﬁéﬁ (5,715) (9,318)
97,978 84,453
Prepayments, deposits and FERRIE - Zek
other receivables H b pE U I8 169,436 160,151
267,414 244,604
Presented as: 2% 4 :
— Non-current assets —ERBEE 24,400 -
— Current assets — RBEE 243,014 244,604
267,414 244,604

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods
ranging from 30 to 90 days which are subject to periodic review
by the management.

On 15 December 2021, the Group entered a memorandum of
understanding (the “MOU"). The MOU granted the Group an
exclusivity period of six months for due diligence and term
negotiation. The Group paid a refundable deposit of RMB20
million (equivalent to HK$24,400,000) as an option of partial
payment for the consideration, if an acquisition materialises.

REBIW Rz SR A A ER R o

AEE—RETHEEFPNFIRENAR
MEEH MEEESEMRAEHE

AEER—E-_—F+=-A+HAFZ
REEE S ((REERE]) - MEER
BRI T AEENEANBREALETR
BESRGEHES - AEEXMNARK
20,000,000 7t (#8572 24,400,000 7% 7T ) #Y
REF S MKBEENEET %
AR PEREMEHARE -
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26.

SRS HR&MIEE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The amounts are mainly represented to prepayment of
consultant services and inventories in order to maintain daily
operation.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables,
net of allowance for ECLS presented based on the invoice date,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition date:

BE_Z_—Ft+_A=t+—HLEE

26. [EUX & 3 R FR K2 H fth FE U FR 18

(%)

ZEFRTIEARANBERAREEEFE
AERFE B EE o

IR BEREEERERBERNERE SR
REENRERERBH (IS EHK
SRR A H) KRBT 2500

2021 2020

—E-—F TECEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&T

0-90 days 0Z90H 86,292 78,722
91 days to 1 year THE1FE 11,686 5,731
97,978 84,453

The movements in the allowance for ECLs of trade and bill
receivables is as follows:

RUE SRR REREENEREERS
BREEHOT

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECTE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT FH&TT

At 1 January Rn—H—AH 9,318 4,358
Exchange realignment bE X 3R (1,132) 229
(Reversal)/Impairment 10ss recognised (#@),/ B HERREEE (2,471) 4,731
At 31 December Rt=-—A=+—H 5,715 9,318

Included in the allowance for ECLs recognized are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$5,715,000 (2020: approximately
HK$9,318,000). The individually impaired receivables mainly
relate to customers that are in financial difficulty or of poor
credit history.

EERTEHEEBERERIE AR EELY
5,715,000/ 7T ( —ZFE ZZ4F : 499,318,000
BIT) B E R 2R E R E SR o &R
B R (B 8 W R IE = 2 B A ¥ B B R B sk
EEEHITRENEF,EH -
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the analysis of trade and bills
receivables that are past due but not impaired are as follows:

BE-_E-—S+-_A=+—HILFE

26. [EUX & 3 R SR K2 H fth FE U FR 18

(&)

R_B_—FRFR_FT_ZFF+_H
=+t—H EafETERENEKE
ZEFERREERN DT

Neither Over
past 90 days but
due nor Less than less than
Total impaired 90 days 1 year
i3 EL DI 90H X £
F ERE 2H90H BIR—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2021 R=T=—4F
+=HA=+—8H 97,978 77,455 19,017 1,506
As at 31 December 2020 R -FTF
+—A=+—H 84,453 80,904 3,549 =

Trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
is no recent history of default.

Trade and bills receivables that are past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a good
track payment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no allowance for
doubtful debts is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

b 4 36 A 7 428 O M ) B M B 5 R K I B
WRBET MY BERLHENSEEP
BHEA -

E #8 H18 3 SR (B H) B UL 5 R K M
WEBEAEESZ 2E RIFNKLED
BUEPER - REBELR  BAR(E
EEXYEEREHRERDBRRA
BEME - REEEBREBANZETE
BRVE R RS
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts in currencies other than the functional currency of
the relevant group entity to which they relate:

26. [EUX & 3 R 58 B2 H fth FE U FR 18
(&)
FEUWE 5 iR R Bt R R TR B T 5
UREEEERNEER AT
SIERSER

2021 2020
—EB-—F TECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Us$ v 55,442 143,030
27.LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. EINSZR

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FET
Loan receivables FERE K 52,435 52,626

Less: Provision for impairment of loan B R E FORE RS
receivables (13,358) (6,329)
39,077 46,297

Presented as: 27545 :

— Non-current assets —ERBEE 3,206 -
— Current assets — REEE 35,871 46,297

39,077 46,297




B —FFR AFSEEZERBERLS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
el TEA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

27.LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. BEWSIR#)
The credit quality analysis of the loan receivables is as follows: EREFHEEERSITAT :

2021 2020
B -F —ECTRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Neither past due nor impaired 3 f 380 B TR (E 39,077 46,297

The carrying amounts of the loan receivables are denominated EWEFHEREEN T EBEHE

in the following currencies:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Hong Kong dollars BT - 3,391
RMB AR 39,077 42,906

39,077 46,297
All of the loans receivable bear interest and are repayable FrBEERE K AT B AR EER AR
within the fixed term agreed with the borrowers. As at 31 EWEBEEHRARE RZT=Z—%F
December 2021, the average effective interest rate of the loans +TZA=+—H BERERNFEHER
receivable was 5.5% to 12% (2020: 5.5% to 15%) per annum. AR EFGESSRE12% (T T F

5.5% & 15%) ©
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27.LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the Group's impairment of loan receivables are

27. BUWSR =)
AEBHOEKETREZLBNT

as follows:
Loan receivables
ERER
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
12-month (not-credit (credit
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
FESEH REHEN
12188 HEHEEFE BEHEEFE
BHEEFE (WREERAE) (FERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr FEx TE FET
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZF—F—H 993 - - 993
Charge for the year FRTH 5,336 - - 5,336
At 31 December 2020 and _;_?¢+ A=+—H
1 January 2021 ~“Z2-—%—f-H 6,329 - - 6,329
Transfer to 12-month ECL %Tﬁéﬂﬂlﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ié@ﬁﬁ = = = -
Transfer to lifetime ERSFENR
(not-credit impaired) (TEEERE) (1,070) 1,070 - -
Transfer to lifetime (creditimpaired) ZEEZEEELE (EEHAE) = = - -
Total transfer between stages BREER 7 PR R i RE (1,070) 1,070 - -
Charge for the year FRLH 4,750 2,279 - 7,029
At 31 December 2021 R-Z-—F+-A=1+—H 10,009 3,349 - 13,358

In general, loans receivable are considered as default with the

loans receivable being overdue by 180 days. As at 31
December 2021, loan receivables were not default under
lifetime ECL. As at 31 December 2021, no loan receivables nor
interest receivables were default.

For loans receivables that are not credit-impaired without
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
(“Stage 1"), ECL is measured at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events possible
within the next 12 months. If a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet
deemed to be credit-impaired, ECL is measured based on
lifetime ECL. If credit impaired is identified (“Stage 3"), ECL is
measured based on lifetime ECL. In general, when loans
receivable and interest receivables are overdue by 30 days,
there is significant increase in credit risk.

—BmE - WEKREFEEREIE 180K
AR E R WERBELN R —_—F
+—A=1+—H BERKEZINEE
HENBHEEBIETEEN - R
——F+-_A=+—H HEEKEXR
SHPEUR R BB L -

S0 BAE EORE A K B MR FERR LA K
EERRI EAEZE ([ E R K
RUERN  FEHMEEERNFTESRS
RARRI2MEA AR R EMEDHENE
BOFENRNEREEBRZHS -
i 5 W SE B PR R R E B AR R E T
MIE=RR]DERRKREREER
B AFRHEEERSREFENEMN
BHEEBEAE - MERESHRE
ERE(SE=KE])  ABEHEEESR
HRBEFENENRACEEEIRTE -
—RME - BEKE RN EER S a
30KEF - EERBREBRZIL N -



B —FFR

AFSEEZERBERLS 185

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sta

wn © B 15 2= bfd 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &E-—T——#+-A=+—RAit&Eg =

27.LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the charge of impairment allowance
of loans receivable of approximately HK$7,029,000 (2020:
approximately HK$5,336,000), was due to change in probability
of default and loss given default during the year.

27. [BUSR &

A maturity profile of the loans receivable at the end of the
reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of provision,

R & R R E R
HiR (fORRBUE) SHET ¢

R-E-_—H+-A=+—8 EYkE
FOREREE B 497,029,000 T (ZF
= F : %5,336,000% 7T )
MR OB M HNBRNE

EHRF
BATEL

AHER - EF

is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Within one year —FR 35,871 46,297
On the second to fifth year inclusive MEL EBTBBRF 3,206 -
39,077 46,297
All the interest receivables at the end of the reporting period, REER - BT R EIREIE A&
based on the maturity date, are within one year. HR—FA -
28.HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 28. EHHEEBIRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHExT FHET
Equity securities at quoted market prices & AZFE % (R HiH®RE)
— listed outside Hong Kong — RBEBFINET 24 22

Held-for-trading investments are classified as financial assets

FIEEERE D BREAFEIRL

at FVTPL and are determined based on the quoted market bid Zﬂa ﬁqréiisﬁi mMEE  WBERHE

prices available on the relevant stock exchange and categories oS

R A5 R T 5
at level 1 under fair value hierarchy. EEEAANTEERE—IE -

ZEAREET



186

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ll‘l

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SRS HR&MIEE

29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank balances and cash held
by the Group at prevailing market rates. The maturities of bank
balances and bank deposits are within three months.

Bank balances and bank deposits carry interest at average
market rates of 0.3% (2020: 0.3%) per annum.

At 31 December 2021, conversion of the Group's bank balances
and cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB17,949,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,898,000)
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Group
to which they relate:

Us$ X7
EUR BT
RMB AR
GBP i

BE_Z_—Ft+_A=t+—HLEE

29. iRiT

TRBRRIAE

R-B_—HF_"F_FF+_A
=t—8" ﬁEﬁmﬁ%&$$lh*ﬁ&§$
ﬁl‘ﬁ%?u¥§+§ﬂ’ﬁﬁé RITAERR IR
TEFR=EA KR -

RITRBRBRITHERIROIE(ZF=F
F: 03E) W F B FHRTE o

RZB-_—F+-A=+—8 #%&&%
B AR ERRTT *ﬁ%&iﬁﬁiﬁ/\
FR ¥ 17,949,000 7T (18 & 7 4921,898,000
FBTT) AR INE A S B SINE B IR AR
KAEE - EERNEERSREMR -

fﬁ EHRRIREBR T IIAREENT)
BRI EREIERN SR

2021 2020

B —-F —ECRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
10,838 2,530
146 987
30,742 22,605
4,607 -




B —FFR AFSEEZERBERLS 187

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statgpafts,
i O RIS = P 5 18 ﬁ&m&

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE T

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. [E {3 & 2 8RR Bz H {th [ < SR 18
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FH&T Fi&TT
Trade and bills payables BB SRR RENEE 62,652 65,588
Accrued expenses FEErAX 37,317 31,501
Other payables H b~ A 10,913 55,023
Other tax payables H b fET IR 6,032 11,000
Deposit received EliEe - 4,157
Contract liabilities EHEE 4,215 30,420
58,477 132,101
121,129 197,689
An aged analysis of trade and bills payables based on the RMEER - ENE SRR NENZIE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: REZAHNRRI 25T
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FH&T FAET
Within 1 month or on demand — (@R NSIREKERE 18,238 14,739
More than 1 month but less —EA EEBELR={EA
than 3 months 26,539 22,424
More than 3 months but less @A EELR+=EA
than 12 months 11,462 27,565
More than 12 months +Z@AMNE 6,413 860
62,652 65,588
The average credit period on purchases of goods is ranging BEEMNTHEESHN FI0HZED
from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management B REBEXEMBRBREIEBR - A
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within HERFTE BN RIBEREERAS T

the credit timeframe.
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continuead)  30.

Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity to which they relate:

us$ E

FE f 58 5 BR 5R bz H {th & {4 7R 18
()

FERTE 5 8RR bR SR RE T3
CAFEIR S B R AR M0 T BL BT HE DA S 0 B
SIEN S :

2021 2020
—EB-—F TECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
184 337

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

TRETHREBEE_ZS-_—FR_ZT_F
F+-_ A=+ HULFEERNKZS
HEAEAOBERR -

Revenue recognised that was included ~ R —A— Bt A DA BEHT

in the contract liabilities balance at BERlE — HEYEBK
1 January — Sales of silicone rubber B Em
and related products

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
30,420 5,002
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31.BORROWINGS 31. 8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Carrying amounts of borrowings that BRRE KRN S R
are not repayable on demand or —FREZENBRK
within one year from the end BRMEE - M
of the reporting period but:
— repayable on demand due to breach — FAERERZLHMmA
of loan covenants (note) BEREE (K1) - 163,944
— contain a repayment on demand clause — & B ERERIFK 13,500 70,083
Amounts classified as current liabilities DEERSEENR 13,500 234,027
Amounts classified as non-current %iﬁﬁ#mébﬁﬁﬁklﬁﬁ
liabilities 2,146 3,564
15,646 237,591
Carrying amounts repayable (based on EEZEMNERAE (ERER DG
scheduled repayment dates set out s T EIZ R B E) ¢
in the loan agreements):
Within one year —FR 13,500 123,552
More than one year but not exceeding —FU L BENEBRE
two years 2,146 61,771
More than two years but not exceeding MF LA BB EBA R T
five years - 52,268
15,646 237,591
Note: As at 31 December 2020, a borrowing of approximately Mt - RZZEZTF+_A=+—H &K
HK$163,944,000 were secured with certain properties, which #9163,944,000 8 LT AR TERBE
were disposed of in prior years. The Group has breached the FEHENMEERLER AEEDE
bank covenant. Reference to the respective bank borrowing and RERTTHHL) o ZZiR M AL B EIRITE]
pledge asset agreements entered into between the Group and Y HBEBRITERREEERHZE -
the bank, the bank has the right to demand for immediate a?fﬂﬁﬁ%x*iﬂﬂﬁt ESl AN
payment. The bank borrowing has been therefore classified as a —E-TFE+ZA=1+—8  R7E
current liability as at 31 December 2020. During the year ended BEolEARBEE #HET—_—
31 December 2021, the Group settled borrowing of ﬁ-f— A=+—RHIEFE A5£EE
approximately HK$163,944,000. B EFRAY 163,944,000 7T °
As at 31 December 2021, a borrowing of approximately W—ZT=-——%+—AH :+— B 1%%’\,’7
HK$15,646,000 will be repayable in 2022 to 2023 (2020: 15,646,000 8 T BER ST - —_F =
approximately HK$70,081,000 and will be repayable ranged T FEB(ZZT T F: ,%"7
from 2020 to 2022). 70, 081 L0008 T M5 BER — & :TEE

T _FRER) -
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3 1. BORROWINGS (continued)

The effective interest rates on the Group’s bank borrowings
ranged from 2.64% to 3.06% (2020: 3.50% to 7.70%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021, land and buildings located in Hong
Kong under medium-term leases with carrying value of
approximately HK$4,216,000 (2020: approximately
HK$4,334,000) have been pledged to secure borrowing
granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, buildings and right-of-use assets
located in Hainan, the PRC under medium-term leases with
carrying value of approximately HK$81,242,000 and
HK$116,983,000 respectively, have been pledged to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group settled borrowing of
approximately HK$163,944,000.

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties and right-of-
use assets located in Huzhou, the PRC with fair value of
approximately HK$93,650,000 and carrying value of
approximately HK$1,639,000 respectively, have been pledged
to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group settled borrowing of
approximately HK$102,611,000.

Included in borrowings are the following amounts denominated

in a currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity to which they relate:

us$ ETT

——Ft-A=t-BILEE

31. gk

AEBRITERNERFEREN T 2.64
EZE306E(ZZE_Z4F : 350EE7.70
[E) -

R-B_—F+= ﬂ T—B  REELD
4,216,000/ 7T (ZT =T : 494,334,000
B NREERETBHEHERAN LI
REFETER  ERAKEMERE
FEVELR °

EA_7_?¢+ A=+—8'  REE

2 Bl #981,242,0007% 7T & 116,983,000 7%
TR AR B RIERHREEREW
EFURFEAEEED 7B EAXRX
SEMERBITERNER BE-ZT
4+ -_A=+t—HILFE xEE
4= R4 163,944,000 78 7T

RZZEZTFF+A=1+—H ' fRF
B 58 1 B9 2 1B 49 93,650,000 5 7T 2 &%
&2 K BRTEE 491,639,00078 7T 2 1% 3
ﬁéiéfF‘Eﬂfﬁﬁ 1E BN EEATER R
TEFRNER BE T -—F+_8
_+ BIEFEE AEBELZBERY
102,611,000 7 ©

fEﬁ%T B TNIAEBEEEREMY
REEHASNMERIIENEHE

2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

- 21,688
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32.LEASE LIABILITIES 32. iHE&f&E
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T Fi&TT
Within 1 year 1FER 14,085 8,553
Within a period of more than 1 year 1FA BB A2 F 2 BN
but not exceeding 2 years 13,366 4,593
Within a period of more than 2 years 2F A BB BB F 2 HIF R
but not exceeding 5 years 26,221 858
Within a period of more than 5 years 5L EZ HA A 9.478 =
63,150 14,004
Less: Amount due for settlement with B mBBERR 12 AR
12 months shown under BIE4EE 2 IR
current liabilities (14,085) (8,553)
Amount due for settlement after EREBEEMR12E A%
12 months shown under FIR4EE 2 IR
non-current liabilities 49,065 5,451

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.45% to 15.70% (2020: 3.45% to
15.70%).

LH%WHEEEE’JM%H?WEE%#ﬂﬂ
& £33 45% % 15.70%( B = B4 : 3.45%
Z15.70%) °

Lease obligations are denominated in currencies of the HEEBAEEEEEEHNIEES
functional currencies of the relevant group entities. & -
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33.ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL

GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 5 July 2021, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with United Crown Century Company Limited to
dispose of its 71% of equity interest in Ta Yang Medical
Investment Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary, which
through its subsidiary hold the properties in Hanian, PRC at
consideration of approximately RMB14,771,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,725,000) in cash and the repayment of
borrowing as at the date of disposal. The disposal had not been
completed as at 31 December 2021 and the subsidiaries’ net
assets were classified as held for sales.

At 31 December 2021, the major classes of assets and liabilities

——Ft-A=t-BILEE

33. i

BRISIFLENLEHNSS
Ekafs

R-ZT_—FtHREA AEERKT
e BRARIZEEHZE  UNHEH
RRFBRERREBRAAREZENE
RAET%H I E - REBBEMERF
T—ir*ﬁ1jEAEPliiﬁE’J%¥ REBHA
R #14,771,000 7T (48 & 5 917,725,000
/an)fﬁé&%i@#iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ JiS
B+ _"A=+—R - HEFRA
HARZTEK  MBRBNFEEDBERR
fEHE -

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—H LEA

of the disposal group are as follows: ENFEEERABBREANNT -
HK$'000
FExT
Property, plant and equipment Y 68,267
Right-of-use assets EREEE 117,522
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 1,886
Other receivables H e U RIR 17,378
Total assets classified as held for sales NEAFAHENEELE 205,053
Trade and other payables FE B 5 BR 5k Ie AL FE - 5RIE 150,277
Borrowings (RN 176,900

Total liabilities associated with assets classified EAEAEEEEMNEERBN

as held for sale BERRE 327,177

As at 31 December 2021, right-of-use assets and properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$148,250,000 has
been pledged to secure borrowings of approximately
HK$174,460,000.

R_Z-_—F+-_A=+—8"  kAEE
#49148,250,000 78 JT K {5 FR 1 & /22 R W 35
B TR - 1EAE 5K 4174,460,0007% 7T
HIPELR o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 BZE—Z——fF+-A=+—-RirEg &
34.SHARE CAPITAL 34. 37K
Authorised and issued share capital EERBE BTN
Number of shares Share capital
RAEE (T
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F Sk 23 ZEZ-F S
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tit T Tx FEL
Ordinary shares of BREECIETH
HK$0.1 each LRk
Authorised: EE

At 1Januaryand 31 December  RA—A—BEt+-A=+—H 20,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BRIREHE :

At 1 January R—F—H 871,178 871,178 87,118 87,118

Issuance of shares (Note) TR (B E) 435,589 - 43,559 -

At 31 December R+=ZR=1+—H 1,306,767 871,178 130,677 87,118

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company M HE—FT=——F+-A=+—HItF
completed a rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of B ARARR=ZE-_—FRA=-+N\HAH
one rights shares for every two existing shares held on 28 May RERHEMREABRMNDERE —RERR
2021 at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per rights share and MEEETRER (THR]) - RIEEA
allotted and issued 435,589,000 shares of the Company. Gross FIEIAZD 0148 T - WHEEE KRBT
Rights Issue proceeds of HK$60,983,000 of which HK$43,559,000 7R R A #9 435,589,000 A% AR 17 o 4 A% PiT
was credited against share capital and the remaining proceeds 18 7R IH 42 58 5 60,983,000 T H &
of HK$17,424,000 were credited against the share premium 43,559,000 Tt ABR AR - i H &R ETS

account. FKIE 17,424,000 7T aT ARR D 5= EER ©
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35. DEFERRED INCOME 35. IBREUT A
2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 3,165 3,112
Exchange realignment bE o 52 68 295
Release upon disposal HERE YR
B EEEWA (807) =
Credited to profit or loss st AEDZ (145) (242)
At 31 December Rt+t—A=+—H 2,281 3,165
In 2009, the Group received a government grant (“Grant A”) of RZZENG  ASERBABRNSHE

approximately HK$1,049,000 from ST A B R E R R
8% for the acquisition of prepaid lease payments. The amount
is recognised as other income over the unexpired lease term
of right-of-use assets. During the year ended 31 December
2020, deferred income of approximately HK$34,000 has been
recognised for Grant A in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

In 2013, the Group received a government grant (“Grant B”) of
approximately HK$2,962,000 from = 5= £ £ fif H for the
development of high resolution flexible circuit board
technology. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
deferred income of approximately HK$145,000 (2020:
HK$208,000) has been recognised for Grant B in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RBEWREATHMNEEREREEERS
SRTHBREADS(HBERD O
1,049,000/ 7T ° ZE RN EREEERN
REREHAERSEMBUEA - REE
:-?-77&—1— A=+— EIJtHHFEJ B
REFABRR AT & FHERETEWR
A#)34,000#7T °

R-E—=F AEERERSOHEX
FZEBEIREMRE REMRI2RM B
4T 492,962,000 TTHI BT A AL ([ 48
ezl REEZE-_ZEZ=-_—%F+=-A
=+—HIEHMAE - RIEW AL 145,000 7
T (ZZT =24 : 208,000/8T) 2 5L Bh
LR EBERER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &E-—T——#+-A=+—RAit&Eg =

36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 36. BTG E &I

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities ANEERBEFEERRANEZRTR
recognized and movements thereof during the current and B(EE)/BEREZFHNT :
prior years:
Deferred
income
Unrealised Change in arising
(profits)/  Accelerated fair value from
loss on tax  Estimated of government
inventories depreciation  tax losses  properties grants Total
BB
FEHAREE i fiat WEN EENEL
(&H) /B8 BEHE HEERE ATEESE WA @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET TET TET

At 1 January 2020 R-Z-T£-f—H 2 266 (266) 14,643 (808) 13,860
Exchange realignment L - - - 272 1 273
Charged to profit or loss i Egilli = - - 738 - 738
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZE-_ZTF
1 January 2021 +-A=+—-HkK

—FT-—4%—f—H 25 266 (266) 15,653 (807) 14,871
Exchange realignment B R = - - 207 23 230
Released upon disposal ) E B B ) - - - (15,860) 214 (15,646)
At 31 December 2021 R-T-—F

+=A=+-H 25 266 (266) - (570) (545)
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BECEMEEE  FEMBARHB=
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries EENF—A—BRBRARFRENEIR
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been B SBANTENT - AEBEWENEGZE
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect 75 R 3R R BL AP B B B A B e AT E A
of temporary differences attributable to the profits of the PRC B I Z B8 47 10,448,000 8 L (=& =
subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$10,448,000 (2020: T F 1 492,824,000 70 ) FT IR EE R IE
approximately HK$2,824,000) as the Group is able to control B RE RS B B S 6 5 [0 i
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is MEENRE BZFEREEZEHBTA
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the ATRE A Al R A SR E o

foreseeable future.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$383,726,000 (2020: approximately
HK$411,682,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of the losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

36. IEIEIRIAS(E (&)

RIEHR - NEEGHASDAREES
1849383,726,000 8 L (Z T = F : 4
411,682,000 7T ) + AT 5K AR F) ©
R ARBETERT AR & - SISt
EREERIBEE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 &E-—T——#+-A=+—RAit&Eg =

37.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 37. EiFEAETENEEHIR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAMFALEERETDHEERE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash WEE BRERERIREGEDH HE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those HHEEMNBERAREREE LI AR
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, ReMEeRNEERERERIEAR
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows MEEHELRESRENEAE -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Interest
payables
(including
in trade
and other Lease
Borrowings payables) liabilities Total
ERFIE
(BHEER
E2HRRK
B HESHE) HESE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET THT
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-FF—-f—H 279,680 801 - 280,481
Financing cash flow BERESR=E (53,857) (39) (9,218) (63,114)
Initial application of HKFRS 16 BREABRANBREEN
F165 - - 7,372 7,372
Increase in lease liabilities from A HEESHER ELN
entering into new leases - - 13,514 13,514
Interest expense incurred BEELMNERX - - 1,330 1,330
Exchange adjustment B N % 11,768 - 1,006 12,774
At 31 December 2020 and EA_7_7¢+ A=t+-H
1 January 2021 k=E-_—-%—A—H 237,591 762 14,004 252,357
Financing cash flow BERERE (45,396) (762) (13,300) (59,458)
Increase in lease liabilities from AEESHERELM
entering into new leases - - 54,059 54,059
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiBE —RIHT B A7) - - 9,831 9,831
Early termination of leases AR IEEE = = (3,891) (3,891)
Reclassified as held for sales BN BARELE (176,900) = = (176,900)
Interest expense incurred BEEAMERAY - - 2,234 2,234
Exchange adjustment [ X R 351 - 213 564

At 31 December 2021 R-E-—&F+-A=+—H 15,646 = 63,150 78,796
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

38. ACQUISITIONS OF A SUBSIDIARY

BE-_E-—S+-A=+—HIEE

38. X —RIMIE A S

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary for the year @ RazZ2_F_—F+_AH
ended 31 December 2021 =t+—B 1 FEUREE — Rk
B2a)
On 4 June 2021, WTS 2020 Limited, a subsidiary of the RZZ=—FAMAB - XEEH
Group entered into share transfer agreement with J8 A FIWTS 2020 Limited 8258 37 55
independent third parties, pursuant to which the Group = AR MR EE R - B - R
agreed to purchase 60% equity interest of East Shack Ltd. % [# [/ = i & East Shack Ltd. 60%
at consideration of approximately GBP318,000 (equivalent A #E - RIEX)A318,000 £ 85 (HHE
to HK$3,417,000). #3,417,00087T) °
The acquisition of East Shack Ltd. was completed on 13 East Shack Ltd. g EIBE R =F
August 2021. ——FN\A+=HB%EK -
HK$'000
FHER
Fair value of assets and liabilities RBHHREINEER
recognised at the date of acquisition: EEATHE:
Property, plant and equipment Y - B K& 1,078
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9,259
Trade receivables FEUE 5 IR 26
Inventories FE 542
Prepayment and other receivables TE S FRIE I B At FE Y R IR 984
Bank balances and cash RITHBRIR S 1,038
Trade payables ENE SRR (806)
Other payables H At fE TR (205)
Lease liabilities HEAE (9,831)
Total fair value of identifiable net TR BRI EEFE
assets acquired N ERE 2,085
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEENEE
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred EEENAE 3,417
Add: non-controlling interest 40% B0 5 East Shack Ltd.
in East Shack Ltd. VAR 2R A 40% 834
Less: recognised amount of net acquired W BRI F 5 (2,085)
Goodwill arising on acquisition I E AR R 2,166
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38. ACQUISITIONS OF A SUBSIDIARY

(Continued)

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary for the year

ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

Net cash outflow on acquisition of East Shack Ltd.

BE_Z_—F+t_A=t+—HLEFE

2 . 8
e
5,04y e bad s %
Var

38. E—RMEAS ()

@ REEZE_FT_—F+_H

=t+—B It FEUE— [
- YNCIE-)

I B8 East Shack Ltd. 893 € % H
TREE

HK$'000
FET
Consideration paid BARE (3,417)
Less: cash and cash equivalents balances B FTERIR e MR e EEBYMES
acquired 1,038
(2,379)
Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group WREEUAEEEENS

Included in the loss for the year is HK$2,158,000
attributable to the additional business generated by East
Shack Ltd.

Had the acquisition of East Shack Ltd. been completed on
1 January 2021, revenue for the year of the Group from
continuing operations would have been HK$20,958,000,
and loss for the year from continuing operations would
have been HK$6,474,000. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2021, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had East Shack Ltd. been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the directors of the
Company calculated depreciation of property, plant and
equipment based on the recognised amounts of
property, plant and equipment at the date of the
acquisition.

T X %% A B2 FE East Shack Ltd. FT 4%
EEEINFETSFE(R#92,158,00078 7T °

fii East Shack Ltd. W EIBEE R =
T —F—F—HA%K NEBK
BERBELEEBNTFARTE A
20,958,000/ T © MK BHFE KL
EEHF AN BB B 6,474,000%8
TC o HEERMEME - RBRE
RZE-_—F—F—HKREFER
18 N5 B BB RIS 2 e a8
BEE IR TR ERRELE
ZTBA o

REEEAREEBERAFE VIR
East Shack Ltd. 8150 8 [E= ]
Ua2s BR FEsF - AAREZIREK
BHBHEERNYE  BEKRE
SR EME  BERZENTT
.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. [ERXS
(a) Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated Q) BRGAMBHREIITHEEN
financial statements, the Group entered into the following RER  REBEBERIAT
transactions with related parties during the year: R5:
Name of company Nature of transaction 2021 2020
NCIEZE REME —E-—F —ECEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Ms. Shi Qi (Note) Rental expense 241 150
Wzt () e
Note: These transactions were carried out at terms determined Mfet - ZERSIIIRBAEE RS
and agreed by the Group and the respective related party. EHETE R ERRFGETT ©
(b) Compensation of key management (b) T2EIRASIEREN
personnel
The emoluments paid to the directors of the Company, MARNREE(AASBEETEEE
who are the key management of the Group, are included AB) X2 e Z R kizE18@) °
in note 18(a).
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. ERIE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but 7 & IBEH D ;T B HARNGEE
not provided for in the consolidated MM BEENEARRY
financial statements in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, — REWE BB MEE
plant and equipment 5,964 2,129
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE Y

41. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 41. BEIHSHIE

LEASES
The Group as lessor AEBERBMEA
Property rental income earned during the year is approximately HA BRER &) ¥ %/ £ WA 495 7,632,000
HK$7,632,000 (2020: approximately HK$10,647,000). The BIL(ZEZZF : 410,647,000/87C) °
investment properties held have committed tenants for the IR EMERREFE B FAM o
next year.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted REEER - NEBE DR THRRHE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: MERIBHEBFETA
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within 1 year 18R - 921
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_BERF
(BEEMEBREEAN) - 58

= 979
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #Z_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

42. KA FIRR %

2021 2020
B -F —ECERE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P5E FHBxT FHEIT

Non-current assets FkRBEE
Plant and equipment = M & 4,544 4,377
Investment in subsidiaries R B RRIMIEE 124,160 124,160
128,704 128,537

Current assets REEE
Other receivables E b e IR 11,787 43,522
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGRS (@) 66,962 112,192
Bank balances and cash IRTEBR LIRS 2,073 1,235
80,822 156,949
Current liabilities REBAE

Other payables H fth <RI 6,104 3,623
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETIT B A R IE @) 198,206 202,209
204,310 205,832
Net current liabilities mENaESE (123,488) (48,883)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAZBER T A E 5,216 79,654

Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share Capital N 130,677 87,118
Reserve e (b) (125,461) (7,464)
Total equity ERBE 5,216 79,654
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #ZE_—Z_—F+_A=+—HIFE A

42.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 42. RSN AR E &)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(@ Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries (@) MW (FERT)FiBLIFRIB
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and EHAFEAEERR  RERKREXK
repayable on demand. BiE -

(b) Reserves (b) f&fE

Capital
Share Accumulated redemption
premium losses reserve Total
B3R E RitER BEXEERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2020 R-—ZE-T&—HF—H 744,710 (733,336) 2,420 13,794
Total comprehensive FANEZARXEHE
expenses for the year - (21,258) - (21,258)
At 31 December 2020 —E-TF
and 1 January 2021 -I—_H_-I- =P
—E-—F—H—H 744,710 (754,594) 2,420 (7,464)
Issue of new shares upon (AR AFZE1 TR AR (D
rights issue 17,424 - - 17,424
Share issuing expense R fn 31T (754) = = (754)
Total comprehensive FANEARZEE
expenses for the year = (134,667) = (134,667)
At 31 December 2021 R-E=-—F
+=-HA=+—8H 761,380 (889,261) 2,420 (125,461)
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43. T 2B AT
RBEHK - ARARENEENER

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company at the

end of the reporting periods are as follows:

Place of Issued share
incorporation/ capital/
establishment  Class of registered Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary and operation  shares held capital interest of the Group Principal activities
MR B AL BRITRA/
HEAREE wRRELHE  ARRGER HMEX REBEERFER FEER
2021 2020
—E--§ C—T-TF
Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Industrial Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of silicone
Company Limited rubber
REWRBIEARAT &% LER 1,000,000 7T EEYE
Chief Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of
management services
FEERRA 30 LER 18T REEERS
Ta Yang Medical Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$20,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (“Ta Yang Medical)
AFBEREABRAR 30 LER 20,000,000 % 7T REER
([REBE])
Ta Yang Group Limited BVI/HongKong  Ordinary shares US$11,930,811 100% 100%  Investment holding
AEEEERAR RERZES/ LER 11,930,811 £ 7T HEER
BE
Top View Investment Holdings BVI/HongKong  Ordinary shares Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BREREZERERAR EBRELRE/ LER (E REER
BE
Ta Yang Group (Macao MSAR Ordinary shares MOP100,000 N/A 100%  Trading of silicone
Commercial Offshore) Limited rubber
AFEE(RMBEERERE) RMEE LER 100,000;R79% TEA BEWE
BRAE
Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone Rubber The PRC (note i)  Contributed capital HK$86,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Industrial Company Limited silicone rubber
RERNFYRBERBERAR HB (Bt i) YNV 86,000,000 % 7T SEYR
Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic The PRC (note /i) Contributed capital US$38,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Technology Company Limited silicone rubber
MMAFEFRIBAERAR HB (Bt i) YNV 38,000,000 7T SEYR

AREMT -
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEARAME

Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber
Plastic Company Limited
(“Dongguan Tai Yang")

REXFBREERBRAR
([REAHE])

AF (B BREXZE
BRAR

—nAERREEERAR

WTS 2020 Limited

East Shack Ltd. (Note iii) (f7 i)

Notes:

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation
MR L
HHREEGY

The PRC (note ii)

hEl (ffati)

The PRC (note ii)
H B (Batii)

The PRC (note ii)

hEl (ffati)

United Kingdom

4

®

=

United Kingdom
R

Class of
shares held

Fris R0 R

Contributed capital

BAER

Contributed capital
YN

Contributed capital

BAER

Contributed capital

BAER

Contributed capital
BANER

T Ft+-A=t+—HILFE

43.

Issued share
capital/
registered
capital
BRITRA
EmER

HK$130,000,000

130,000,000 7% 7T

RMB150,000,000
AR 150,000,000 70

RMVB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T
GBP1,001

1,001 E

(GBP60,000
60,000 8%

(i) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

(i) The subsidiaries are wholly-owned foreign enterprise in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group acquired 60%

equity interest in East Shack Ltd. from the non-controlling
shareholder. Accordingly, East Shack Ltd. became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. Details are set out in Note 38.

L A
FEMBAS (2)
Attributable equity
interest of the Group
AEBEERSER

2021 2020
—E--§ —T-TF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% N/A
NiEA
Bt -

() ERIFARDERTRBRE

Principal activities

TEER

Manufacturing of
silicone rubber

Healthcare service
BERERSE

Hotel service

BIEBR

Trading of silicone
rubber

BEWE

Retail service
TERE

BEYEARE

BRERBEENARENBAR - A2

AIEER
HREBNITE

(i) ZEHE
£

(iii)

S EMKBARERNEE

REABETENIIEEE L

BE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—HIF

B - A& B[R 3F 12 A B R UK BB East

Shack Ltd. #960% A% # °

Itt, - East

Shack Ltd. X B A EEHIEZEWNE A
7)o BRAFIEHNHIFESS ©
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS e
Seventeen
Year ended Yearended  months ended Yearended  Year ended
31 July 31July  31December  31December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
T 5 —T-N\E “T-NEF —T-% k-t 3
+A=t—-H +A=t-H +tZA=+-H +ZA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HFE HFE @A LtFE LHFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETL FET TEr
Revenue e 400,500 377,160 520,956 354,190 362,528
Loss for the year/period F /HNEE (74,060) (4,310) (90,980) (95,825) (85,768)

Loss for the year/period PAR AT RE(S

attributable to: F/HNER
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (72,943) (3,756) (86,420) (95,822) (84,901)
Non-controlling interests FEERE R (1,117) (554) (4,560) @) (867)

(74,060) (4,310) (90,980) (95,825) (85,768)

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #&GE&Ekals

As at As at As at As at As at
31 July 31July  31December  31December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

RZE—+F RZIZ-N\F RIZ-NF RIZTZZT R-E=--F
tA=t-B +A=+-8 +A=t-B +ZA=+-B t=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT THT THT TR

Total assets BELE 954,503 914,240 804,363 786,340 788,449

Total liabilities AfELE (510,617) (467,856) (467,443) (508,138) (546,511)

Total equity EniaE 443,886 446,384 336,920 278,202 241,938
Equity attributable to: AT AL REfRER :

Owners of the Company ARREEA 444,282 442173 333,765 275,060 242,460

Non-controlling interests IR S (396) 4211 3,155 3,142 (522)

Total equity EniaE e 443,386 446,384 336,920 278,202 241,938
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Definitions
90 ==
e %
“Board” the board of Directors of the Company
[EFg] i AAREEE
“Company” Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, whose Shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange
[ARRE]] i3 NESEZERERAGF - —FRASEHSTMAIHERAR - HRHR
B R PTER Eh
“connected person(s)”, each has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
“percentage ratio(s)” and
“subsidiary(ies)”
[BEAT] [BoE] R i} EEER LTRAE T ORE
(B
“Directors” the directors of the Company
[E%] i KRARESE
“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries
[REE ] i AR a REHE AR
"HK$" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
sl B BT BBETEY
“Hong Kong"” Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
[ &% i R BB AR RITTIR R
“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
[ Ema A1 15 B X FTEE S E AR Al
“PRC" the People’s Republic of China (for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan)
[ i REARANE  fiAREMS - TEESE  RFISIITHRERAE
“RMB”, “Renminbi” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
[ARE] i HRENETE B AR
“SFO" the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended or supplemented from time to time
[ &% K HRE 15401 | i BBEDIE 571 BB 5 KBGO (K RRHERT R T)
“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Shares

[RER ] B ROFAEA
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Definitions

90 ==

o £

“Shares” ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
[ A5 | i1 AR E R AR AR EE 0.10 B T /) I AR

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ B 22 P i BRBERXFFER AR

“the year” the year ended 31 December 2021

[FRN] i HE-Z -+ -A=1+—HILFE

“%" per cent

[%] i3 Akt

“Chief Executive Officer/CEQ” chief executive officer of the Company

[1TEUAEE i RNAFHTHRAREL

“Chairman/Chairlady” chairman/chairlady of the Board

[EF] i EEEFE

“Committee Chairman/Chairlady” chairman/chairlady of the relevant Board committees

[ZEE®EF] i HHREEFREEEE

“Model Code” the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

stated in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
[1Z%E=r A B EIRBINETAEC EMBEITAZEZETRE SR HHNEESTA]




RiF&KEBEERBRLQF
Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
22/F, H Code, 45 Pottinger Street,

Central, Hong Kong
EEPIRM A EE455H Code 22[E 2 [

Tel B - (852) 3678 5088
Fax 85 - (852) 3678 5099
Website #F3E  © www.tayanggroup.com


http://www.tayanggroup.com

	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Profile & Review
	Corporate Information
	Directors’ Profile
	Chairlady’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis

	Corporate Governance
	Corporate Governance Report

	Financial Information
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Years Financial Summary
	Definitions

	Back Cover



